Abeddaa Soufiane

The systematic international market selection (IMS) process for a library management system provider

Fuzzy expert system application

Master's thesis in International Business and Marketing Supervisor: Siv Marina Flø Grimstad Co-supervisor: Ibrahim A. Hameed December 2018

Norwegian University of Science and Technology Faculty of Economics and Management Department of International Business

Master's thesis



Abeddaa Soufiane

The systematic international market selection (IMS) process for a library management system provider

Fuzzy expert system application

Master's thesis in International Business and Marketing Supervisor: Siv Marina Flø Grimstad Co-supervisor: Ibrahim A. Hameed December 2018

Norwegian University of Science and Technology Faculty of Economics and Management Department of International Business



Mandatory statement

Each student is responsible for complying with rules and regulations that relate to examinations and to academic work in general. The purpose of the mandatory statement is to make students aware of their responsibility and the consequences of cheating. **Failure to complete the statement does not excuse students from their responsibility.**

Diagon complete the mandatory statement by placing a mark in each boy for statements 1.6					
Please complete the mandatory statement by placing a mark <u>in each box</u> for statements 1-6 below.					
1.	I/we herby declare that my/our paper/assignment is my/our own				
	work, and that I/we have not used other sources or received				
	other help than is mentioned in the paper/assignment.	\boxtimes			
2.	I/we herby declare that this paper	Mark each			
	 Has not been used in any other exam at another 	box:			
	department/university/university college	1. 🖂			
	Is not referring to the work of others without				
	acknowledgement	2. 🖂			
	Is not referring to my/our previous work without				
	acknowledgement	3. 🖂			
	4. Has acknowledged all sources of literature in the text and in				
	the list of references	4. 🖂			
	5. Is not a copy, duplicate or transcript of other work				
		5. 🖂			
3.	I am/we are aware that any breach of the above will be considered as cheating, and may result in annulment of the examination and exclusion from all universities and university colleges in Norway for up to one year, according to the <u>Act</u> <u>relating to Norwegian Universities and University Colleges</u> , section 4-7 and 4-8 and Examination regulations at NTNU.				
		\boxtimes			
4.	I am/we are aware that all papers/assignments may be checked				
	for plagiarism by a software assisted plagiarism check.				
		\boxtimes			
5.	I am/we are aware that The Norwegian University of Science and				
	Technology (NTNU) will handle all cases of suspected cheating	\boxtimes			
	according to prevailing guidelines.				
6.	I/we are aware of the University's rules and regulations for using				
	sources.	\boxtimes			

Publication agreement

ECTS credits: 30 Supervisor: Siv Marina Flø Grimstad Co – Supervisor: Ibrahim A. Hameed

Agreement on electronic publication of master thesis

Author(s) have copyright to the thesis, including the exclusive right to publish the document (The Copyright Act §2).

All theses fulfilling the requirements will be registered and published in Brage with the approval of the author(s).

I/we hereby give NTNU the right to, free of charge, make the thesis available for electronic publication:

- 🛛 Yes
- □ No

Is there an agreement of confidentiality?

(A supplementary confidentiality agreement must be filled in)

- ⊠ Yes
- □ No

Date: 15.12.2018

Acknowledgment

This master thesis represents the completion and the final work for my Master of Science in international business and marketing, it acknowledges the precious contribution of many, at NTNU Ålesund and at Systematic, to whom I express all my gratitude and appreciation.

It is known to all master students or thesis writers that it is not an easy job, and that it requires a great deal of patience and perseverance, toward all different challenges it encompasses, in adjusting, structuring, digging, improving and writing. Eventually, the presence and the support of all of you made it quite a great experience and allowed to reach the final line safely and with a good feeling of achievement.

I would like to thank both my supervisor and my co-supervisor: My supervisor, associate professor at the department of international Business, Siv Marina Flø Grimstad, for her support and guidance, and her never ending motivation through this whole process, in research and writing. My co-supervisor, associate professor and deputy head of research and innovation at the department of ICT and natural sciences, Ibrahim A. Hameed, for his undisputed availability, precious guidance and expertise, which without them, this work will not be completed. Thank you very much.

This thesis is an application of the International market selection' systematic approach in choosing new target markets, for a specific company case: Systematic. I would like to thank for their collaboration: The product manager Hans Martin Mærsk-Møller, for his valuable time and his great willingness to make this work succeed by providing all he could in term of information and field expertise. In addition, to Flemming Bent Thomsen, VP Sales Group and Senior Vice President and Dina Myrup Raabjerg, Senior Manager Business Development, for their involvement and insightful feedbacks. And thank you all for taking the time to fill the surveys and taking the interviews.

A Special and warm thanks to Gianluca Marchi, one of the authors of the article "The decision process for the International Markets selection: A fuzzy model application to a small firm case", for his valuable feedbacks and information sharing that gave me valuable insights. And finally, a great thank to Richard Glavee-Geo, for his support and orientation beyond his respective duties. This whole collaboration yielded to valuable knowledge about the IMS process and gave me another perspective into approaching this specific business issue.

Soufiane Abeddaa,

Ålesund, 5th of December 2018

Abstract

The International market selection has a critical role in defining the entry strategy, the more accurate and relevant the approach, higher the odds to succeed in entering the targeted market(s). The International market selection approach studied here, is another contribution to the works already done before, it involves practical application to a business context, and cover quantitative and qualitative aspects of criteria shaping the decision making, which has been translated into a functional tool, a multicriteria approach based on a flexible model, namely the fuzzy expert system.

This tool demonstrates the potential to make accurate choices and orientations, beyond the solely instinctive managerial directives.

The approach based on the fuzzy expert system provides another perspective into assessing foreign markets attractiveness and accessibility, preventing missteps and costly decisions. The Model was applied to a multinational IT firm, under their branch specialized in library management systems, to identify potential markets worth investigating for future market tenders and entries. The Final results, limitations and managerial takeaway, were discussed.

Table of Contents

Acknowledgment	1
Abstract	2
Chapter 1	6
1.1. Introduction	6
1.2. The Case Company	7
1.3. Thesis structure	9
Chapter 2: Theoretical and conceptual framework	10
2.1. Theoretical framework	10
2.1.1. Internationalization theories	10
2.1.1.1. Behavioral theories	10
2.1.1.1.1. Uppsala internationalization model (U-Model)	10
2.1.1.1.2. Network theory	15
2.1.1.2. Economic Theory: Eclectic framework	17
2.1.2. Framework explaining the relevance of internationalization theories	
2.1.3. Theories Summary	
2.1.4. The international market selection (IMS)	
2.1.5. Overview of the International market selection literature	23
2.1.5.1. IMS approaches	
2.1.5.2. Systematic and non-systematic perspective	25
2.1.5.3. Proposed IMS models	
2.1.5.4. Complexity and limitations of the IMS	
2.1.5.5. Model building and the choice of criteria	
2.1.5.6. IMS for service firms and its determinants	
2.1.5.7. Chance factor and knowledge sources within the IMS	
2.1.5.8. The psychic distance	
2.2. Conceptual framework	
Chapter 3: Methodology	
3.1. Research Design	
3.1.1. Model variables description	
3.1.1.1. Subjective variables description	
3.1.1.2. Objective variables description	
3.1.2. Fuzzy expert system, definition, links and weights	
3.1.2.1. The System's Memberships	
3.1.2.2. The System's Rule bases	

3.1.2.3. The System's Weight	
3.2. Data collection and validation	
3.2.1. Triangulation approach	
3.2.1.1. Key informants	
3.2.1.2. Qualitative research	
3.2.1.3. Scaling form: Complementary quantitative form to the qualitative re	esearch 52
3.2.1. Secondary data	
3.2.2. Validity and reliability of the data	
3.2.2.1. The Interviews and the constructs operationalization	
3.2.2.2. Secondary data tradeoff choice	
3.2.2.1. Data Normalization	
3.2.2.2. Data triangulation and data approximation	
Chapter 4: Data analysis and discussion	
4.1. Data analysis and main findings	
4.2. Discussion and managerial implications	
4.3. Research limitations	61
Chapter 5: Conclusion and Implications	
5.1. Conclusion	
5.2. Implication for future research	
References	
Appendices	
Appendix 1: Cicero LMS Product (Company Brochure)	
Appendix 2: Interview Guide – 13 slides	73
Appendix 3: Subjective variables scaling Form	77
Appendix 4: Subjective variables – Form result compounding	
Appendix 5: Fuzzy expert system settings	
Appendix 6: Rule base and their arguments	
Appendix 7: Source Code of the Fuzzy Expert System	
Appendix 8: Interviews - Follow up emails	
Appendix 9: Data set	
Appendix 10: Data sources	
Appendix 11: Definition of the level of competition	
Appendix 12: Cultural differences - Morosini Formula using Hofstede dimension	ns 111
Appendix 13: Definition of the Number of public libraries	
Appendix 14: Subjective variables – Result compounding	

List of tables

Table 1 - Uppsala model improvements	15
Table 2 - Theories Summary	22
Table 3 - Differences between systematic and non-systematic approach of the IMS	
Table 4 - Proposed screening criteria by different authors	30
Table 5 - Predefined country targets	38
Table 6 - Perceptual variables and their Operationalization	39
Table 7 - Objective variables	41
Table 8 - The Inputs composition	42
Table 9 - Parameters' weighting	48
Table 10 - Interview guide	52
Table 11 - Key informants	52
Table 12 - Advantages and disadvantages of secondary data	55
Table 13 - IMS Countries' ranking scores	57
Table 14 - Norway and New Zealand indicators	58

List of figures

Figure 1 - The basic mechanism of internationalization: State and Change aspects	12
Figure 2 - U-model improvements from 1977, 2009 and 2013	14
Figure 3 - Framework for classifying internationalization theories	19
Figure 4 - Inventory and taxonomy of statistical approaches to IMS	
Figure 5 - Conceptual framework of the international market selection process	
Figure 6 - Fuzzy expert system' tree for the IMS	
Figure 7 - HDI Membership and range variation	
Figure 8 - Market intensity composition	
Figure 9 - Market intensity rule base	47
Figure 6 - Fuzzy expert system' tree for the IMS Figure 7 - HDI Membership and range variation Figure 8 - Market intensity composition Figure 9 - Market intensity rule base	43 45 46 47

Chapter 1

1.1. Introduction

Globalization has shaped entirely the international business environment, pushing firms to conduct their business in a multi-dimensional and fast-moving ecosystem, characterized by stronger competition, lower barriers and a beyond boundary expansion. But still, the environment in which each of those firms operates is defined by the strategic decisions they take upon their internationalization process, (Papadopoulos & Martín Martín, 2011).

Each firm that plans to expand internationally face the important concern of choosing which country to target, and the stakes of this guessing game are very high, because defining the right market determines the success or failure of the expansion, it defines the development of the marketing programs, the coordination of foreign operations and in a higher scale the shape of its global competitive positioning strategy, (Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

The international market selection (IMS) is a central feature of international business, (Papadopoulos and Martín Martín 2011; Root 1994). Central but also quite diverse and complex, especially when we think about the large choice of alternative market opportunities that a firm can consider, involving a vast array of differences in term of size, income, infrastructure, market access, and so forth. However, to discriminate between options and determine which market is worth entering, the key lies within those differences and similarities, (Brewer 2001; Cavusgil, Kiyak, and Yeniyurt 2004; Farrell and Wood 1994).

Therefore, the IMS is a critical issue in the definition of foreign entry strategy. Studies have shown that the internationalization process is often sequential and might involve an incremental commitment to the entered markets, hence, choosing the right market is an important milestone that will support the entire internationalization strategy of the firm, (Johanson and Vahlne 1977; Kumar, Stam, and Joachimsthaler 1994; Papadopoulos, Chen, and Thomas 2002).

International market selection should be seen as a complete decision process, by which a firm end up allocating marketing resources to one or many specific market(s), even though the selection might be unsuccessful, the completion of this process is achieved when the firm decide whether to allocate or not its marketing resources to the target market, (Brewer 2001).

Firms should be aware of the importance of the IMS, considering that mistakes related to international market selection often occurs because of inadequate evaluation of markets, " *and*

the outcomes are almost always more expensive than the costs associated with a systematic evaluation that would have prevented their occurrence", (Rahman 2003: 119).

Important research attention has been oriented toward IMS since the 1960s, but the difficulty in developing powerful and generalizable models remain an issue up to date, framed between qualitative assumptions and non-sufficiently tested operational models, (Papadopoulos et al. 2002).

The intention of this thesis is to supplement the extensive research that has been conducted on the international market selection. It tests and examines the use of systematic IMS in the specific case of a software provider, Systematic, located in Denmark within the library automation industry. I choose to adopt an approach often used in the IMS literature, a multi-criteria selection approach to determine the right target market that will help define the subsequent guidance to choose the adequate entry strategy, (Kumar et al. 1994; Marchi et al. 2014).

Thus, the main research question and its sub-questions can be formulated as follow:

Research question: How can Systematic define the most suitable market to enter?

- What are the pre-requisites that defines a right target market?
- What are the key criteria to fine-grain the selection?
- Which market is the best and second-best to target, and which one should be considered for future moves?
- Which elements should be used as main directives for a potential market entry strategy?

1.2. The Case Company

Under this investigation, to develop and test one of the IMS approaches, a Danish multinational enterprise, named Systematic has proposed to collaborate as a case company.

Systematic is operating within the software industry and provides high-end IT solutions for five core business areas: healthcare, intelligence & national security, defense, government agencies & large corporations, library & learning.

Founded in 1985, Systematic is one of the largest privately-owned software and IT companies in Denmark, the company achieves over 150 Million in yearly revenues and employs more

than 900 employees worldwide (that represent over 23 nationalities). All business units combined, Systematic has partners in 15 countries and has sold solutions to customers in over 50 countries, involving subsidiaries in Australia, Finland, France, Germany, New Zealand, Singapore, Sweden, the United Arab Emirates, the United Kingdom and the United States, (Brøchner-Mortensen n.d.).

For this study, the focus will be aimed at the library & learning business unit with respect to a library management system, called Cicero, which is mainly addressed to public libraries for the time being, (*See Appendix 1*).

Why was this case company chosen? First, the need was expressed by the firm to deepen and gain knowledge on IMS, consequently, the vice president, the product manager and his team were highly committed, since the issue faced is real and existed during the period of the research. Second, the internationalization market selection made previously by the firm, with respect to library & learning business unit, consisted mainly on choices based on client enquiries emanating from close markets: The Swedish market was an outsourcing work which ends up by the acquisition of the client. The Greenland market followed due to the existence of strong networks with the Swedish industry, furthermore, all other attempts elsewhere were only responses to available tenders at that time. Therefore, the management expressed the need for a more proactive approach in addressing the expansion choices.

Moreover, the firm does have a monopoly in its respective market (Denmark) since the product is addressed to public libraries, involving almost all municipalities in the country. Which makes no room for more expansion locally, in addition to the fact that the business unit currently does not achieve yet the strategic growth objectives it is supposed to achieve.

Finally, the size of this kind of projects is tremendous and involves considerable investment to implement, which make the IMS even more sensitive, considering that any wrong choice may yield to considerable loss.

1.3. Thesis structure

The thesis consists of five chapters:

Chapter 1: Introduces the topic, the purpose of the paper and outlines the research questions and gives a justification for the study and the firm's collaboration, in addition to the paper structure.

Chapter 2: Highlights the theoretical framework of the thesis, including some of the relevant internationalization theories to the subject, and the dominant IMS literature, in addition to a display of the conceptual model adopted for the study.

Chapter 3: Draws the overall design of the research and its methodology and describes the necessary approach, data and measures to be adopted to answer the research question. The overall model proposed is based on a multi-criteria selection algorithm, commonly known as Fuzzy expert system.

Chapter 4: The results on the application of the fuzzy expert system are analysed and presented accordingly.

And finally, in Chapter 5: Includes a discussion, a conclusion and further implications for future research and managerial applications, that might represent important insights for the company case.



Chapter 2: Theoretical and conceptual framework

2.1. Theoretical framework

2.1.1. Internationalization theories

There is no general agreement on the definition of the internationalization concept, but based on the two strategic dimensions that this concept involves: Which country to enter? and which foreign market entry strategy to pursue? The following definition can be adopted *"Internationalization is the process of adapting exchange transaction modality to international markets"*, In other words, international market selection and choice of entry mode, (Andersen 1997: 29; Calof and Beamish 1995; Welch and Luostarinen 1988).

The early literature on the internationalization has its roots in general marketing. Later, when firms started facing choices to export or enable foreign direct investment (FDI), more interest rose toward the internationalization of the firm. However, the international business research was mainly focused on multinational enterprises (MNEs). Today and during the last two decades, the interest included the small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and the focus started shifting significantly to the network aspect in internationalization, in which firms are seen not only as part of a firm-customer relationship but also part of relationships with other actors in their environment, (Hollendsen 2011; Knight and Liesch 2016).

This chapter will give an overview of some selected theories belonging to the behavioral and economic theories, it includes for the former, the internationalization process theory and the network theory (Johanson and Vahlne 1977, 1990), and for the latter, the eclectic paradigm (Cantwell and Narula 2003; Dunning 1988; Hill, Hwang, and Kim 1990), then goes through the literature of one of the important dimensions of this concept, and basically the main research area related to this thesis work: The international market selection (IMS).

2.1.1.1. Behavioral theories

2.1.1.1.1. Uppsala internationalization model (U-Model)

Back to 1970, researchers from the University of Uppsala Studied the internationalization patterns of a number of Swedish manufacturing firms, based on that, they created a dynamic model that explains the characteristics of the internationalization process and displays its mechanisms. The model aims to capture the gradual process of acquisition, integration, use of knowledge and commitment to foreign markets, (Hollendsen 2011; Johanson and Vahlne 1977).

The basic idea of the model is that firms tend to begin their expansion abroad in physically nearby markets, which often are of low psychic distance, and start penetrating the market gradually on a low involvement pace, which is known as "the establishment chain". While they are achieving a better learning and market knowledge, firms advance to more distant markets. The researchers noticed that most companies started their expansion by exporting to new markets and seldom used other modes of entry. A firm could create its own branches only when it achieved several years of export within the same market. However, this view has been very challenged by new research in the field, and the authors updated their model and integrated, with a great emphasis, the network aspect that was lacking in the former version, (Hollendsen 2011; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

Before going further, an introduction of the psychic distance concept is of utmost importance, it's a core construct within the internationalization stages. The decision makers prioritize market entrance based on countries that are perceived similar to the home country, which means that firms consider factors that prevent or disturb the flow of knowledge from markets, factors such as language, culture, industrial development and others, and since geographical proximity may imply greater market knowledge, firms tend to target their neighbors, and it is particularly the case for firms in their early stage of internationalization, that lacks international experience. In fact, the psychic distance is an uncertainty avoidance strategy that decision makers follow when they have a low understanding of the decision problem and its context, this distance is highly context specific and depends on the experience of the decision makers, (Andersen and Buvik 2002; Johanson and Vahlne 1977; Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

In Figure 1, the structure of the model distinguishes between a state and a change aspect of internationalization, seen as an interplay between growing knowledge on foreign markets and operations and increasing the level of commitment to those markets. The state aspect considers the market commitment and the market knowledge. The change aspect is typically the decisions to commit resources and the current business activities' performance, (Johanson and Vahlne 1977, 1990).



Figure 1 - The basic mechanism of internationalization: State and Change aspects (Johanson and Vahlne 1977: 26).

Within this model, a firm is supposed to change by acquiring knowledge and learning from the experience accumulated in its foreign market's operations and current activities, then through its commitment decisions, that aim to enhance its position within the foreign market. Commitment can be defined as the combination of the size of investment and the degree of inflexibility, in other words, not only the size of investment matters but also to which extent the company is able to dedicate more effort for its customer's needs. Consequently, the body of knowledge achieved shapes those decisions, and define in return, the level of commitment and the activities in accordance, yielding to the next level of commitment on the model and keeping the incremental dynamic, (Johanson and Vahlne 2009).

According to Penrose (1959), as cited in Johanson & Vahlne (1990), knowledge appears under two forms: The objective knowledge that can be taught and the experiential knowledge that can only be acquired by personal experience. Knowledge is a critical element in this model and a building block for the revised U-Models because it is assumed that market knowledge is primarily acquired through experience or experiential learning, which is a central force that drives the internationalization process, (Johanson and Vahlne 1990).

Based on this critical dimension of knowledge in addition to other postulates, many updates of the internationalization process will take place, with a more proactive approach, looking for opportunities instead of only risk reduction when addressing the internationalization patterns, (Knight and Liesch 2016; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

Furthermore, the establishment chain has been described as sharing similarities with the eclectic framework, that we will discuss later on when addressing the paradigm, (Andersen 1997).

Finally, the revised U-Models integrated new interesting postulates: Network view, Dynamic capabilities and the business enterprise' role of the multinational business enterprise (MBE), (Johanson and Vahlne 2009; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

First, the unit of analysis shifted from MNE to MBE, "moving the focus from structure of production to change processes in business relations and entrepreneurship", as the MBE encompasses "a firm that has the capability to build, develop and coordinate value-creating multinational business network structures, involving both internal and external actors", (Vahlne and Johanson 2013: 194)

Second, the network view, where markets are considered as networks of relationships, connecting firms to each other (Business networks) in various levels and complex links. Which make the success of the model to be within the reciprocal commitment between the firm and its counterparts. Implying that the unit of analysis should go from MNE to MBE in its respective network, (Johanson and Vahlne 2009; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

Each firm entering a new market face the so-called liability of foreignness or outsidership, consequently growing the right relationships and the effective network can transform it to an insidership state. Back to the knowledge postulate, relationships partners represent a relevant source of information, about their own network, which was previously a distant one for the firm could become a closer one, through privileged knowledge displayed within this business network. In addition, opportunities are more likely to rise from this kind of relationship-specific knowledge, allowing the firm to recognize what others bypass. The existence of business relationships, enhance the chances to identify opportunities and therefore have influence on the entry mode decisions, (Johanson and Vahlne 2009; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

One important take away from the network view is that while studying foreign market entry, the firm should not address the issue as an entry mode decision, but more like a positionbuilding process into the foreign market network, (Johanson and Vahlne 2009).

Finally, the dynamic capabilities concept finds its roots in the resource-based view, it's the ability of an organization to purposefully create, extend and modify its resource base, and unlike the traditional resource view, the dynamic capabilities can exploit and develop a given set of resources by operating strategic changes, performed in an "*evolutionary fitness*" in order for the firm to adjust to its environment. Dynamic capabilities are used through

organizational processes but in the meantime developed by such processes, (Vahlne and Johanson 2013).



The U-model updates are illustrated below, from the three chronological versions:

Figure 2 - U-model improvements from 1977, 2009 and 2013

As mentioned before, the model has two aspects: State and Change, with variables interacting, the table below gives a summary of the U-model improvements:

Before	After	Improvements	
Market	Dynamic	Great importance attached to the dynamic capability of	
knowledge	capabilities	firms, including the knowledge required to use the	
		resources.	
		Dynamic capabilities are influenced by processes of	
		learning, creation and trust building and the related	
		commitment decisions.	
		Three types of dynamic are considered with respect to the	
		firm international development:	
		- The opportunity development capability that drives	
		the firm development process which includes the	
		capability to identify opportunities and mobilize	
		relevant resources internally and externally.	
		- The internationalization capability includes	
		capabilities to approach and develop different markets	
		under various circumstances.	
		- The networking capability includes the ability to	
		build, sustain and coordinate relationships in a	
		network.	

Commitment	Commitment	Encompass two dimensions: volume and degree of	
decisions	decisions –	restraint in re-allocating the resources committed.	
	reconfiguration	Which can be regarded as reconfiguration of resources	
	Change of	available and re-design of coordination systems and their	
	coordination	content and may concern both internal and external	
		configuration and coordination systems	
Current	Inter-	Inter-organizational interplay involving learning,	
activities	organizational	opportunity creation and trust building within	
	processes:	relationships	
	Learning,		
	creating, trust		
	building		
Market	Network	The power-dependence relation between the network	
commitment	position	partners defines the network position.	
		A good network position in terms of profitability and	
		potential for continued good position development is	
		defined by earlier commitments and learning, creating	
		and trust building which in turn represent another starting	
		point for future commitment decisions within the network	

Table 1 - Uppsala model improvements (Vahlne and Johanson 2013)

2.1.1.1.2. Network theory

It has been clear that the first Uppsala model, did not recognize the importance of the network perspective, which was pointed out later by the network theory. However, in recent papers, the authors included and put a stronger emphasis in this critical element on their revised versions of the U-model inspired by the network theory, (*See Revised Uppsala model above*).

A better apprehension of the Internationalization process is achieved, when the analysis tries not to only grasp the individual firm' actions but rather consider the firm's role and position within its network of relationships. According to this network view, the market selection and the entry decisions are based on the opportunities found within the network, which can be business related or informal and thus goes beyond the solely managers' considerations. In the network theory, markets are viewed as a system of relationships among different players, such as customers, suppliers, agencies...etc. Thus, the nature of those relationships influences future strategic decisions, (Coviello and Munro 1995).

Within the Industrial network, actors manage their interdependences bilaterally rather than under a hierarchical behavior, which make the business organized based on the willingness of each actor to engage in exchange relationships with the others in the network. Consequently, the shape of the network can change easily and one actor in the network can engage in new relationships or dismantle old ones, changing completely the structure of the whole network, (Hollendsen 2011).

A relationship creates a bilateral influence, implying that each firm gain control over a part of its environment while giving away some of its internal control, moving from the notion of a firm that interact with its perceived environment to a wider dissolved boundary notion between firms, (Anderson, Hakansson, and Johanson 1994).

According to Snehota and Hakansson (1995), those relationships can be seen as a resource provider; all firms activities are based on a combination of resource use, it might be technical, financial or else, but a firm cannot always marshal all the resources it needs internally, however, it can uses its relationships to do so. For instance, valuable information and ideas that a client might provide to the firm, can allow innovation and substantial enhancement.

Those networks are linked together into an invisible pattern, that cannot be easily observed by actors outside that network, for instance, a potential entrant. Those links can be various, and of different natures such as technical, social, legal, economic or others. Only an immersion inside the network can provide a clear understanding of it, especially if the cultural distance is important, (Johanson and Vahlne 1990).

Furthermore, the awareness of foreign market opportunities, which is critical to market entry, is usually acquired through existing social ties, in other words relationships. This knowledge comes from the specific information that an individual's social network provides. Decision makers have to make investment decisions based on incomplete information, combined with the high cost for the search of international partners which also involves a great amount of uncertainty and complexity, therefore, relying on the social network can be an important mean to reduce risks capitalizing on the existing connections whether with the potential seller, the direct buyer or another third party, (Ellis 2000).

For a firm to get into a network, it needs an access card from an insider, which means that only an inside actor willing to engage in interaction with the firm would grant access to the rest of the network, this operation is known to be resource demanding. The firm's domestic network can often be used as a bridge to access other networks in other countries, in addition, it can be expected that personal influence has a stronger importance in the early stage of the relationship and give place to routines later within the relationship, (Hollendsen 2011; Johanson and Vahlne 1990).

Under the lights of entrepreneurial high-technology firms, which correspond to the firm studied in this thesis, it was reported that those firms tend to develop multiple relationships for internationalization and to put them in use to achieve faster expansion across other markets. In addition, this network capital allows the firms to escape the traditional stepwise approach in IMS, usually followed by its manufacturing peers, that we will address thoroughly later in this chapter, (Coviello and Munro 1995).

2.1.1.2. Economic Theory: Eclectic framework

The Eclectic paradigm, also called OLI framework (Ownership-Location-Internalization), is one of the economic theories that aim to predict foreign direct investment undertaken by MNEs and explain the pattern of their international production. The paradigm draws its explanation based on several economic theories and asserts it through three distinct sets of advantages, that are interrelated one to another, (Dunning 2003; Hollendsen 2011) :

Ownership advantage (O): The firm's possession of specific assets and skills, which implies a transaction advantage that can help the firm to enjoy lower transaction costs (e.g. superior technology or know-how). Assets imply the firm's size and experience, skills imply the firm's ability to achieve product differentiation. Therefore, Ownership advantage should be both unique and sustainable, (Andersen 1997; Dunning 1988).

Locational advantage (L): Reflects the attractiveness of a specific country through its investment climate and its market potential, which allow the firm to locate its value-adding activities across national borders, using the endowment factor of the foreign market, (Dunning 2003; Hollendsen 2011; Root 1994).

Internalization advantage (I): A firm that faces a high transaction cost using the external market might find it less costly to internalize that transaction, choosing a hierarchical mode of operations instead of an external mode, (Dunning 1988; Johanson and Vahlne 1990).

According to Dunning (2003), the eclectic paradigm is not supposed to give a full explanation of all kind of international production but rather give a generic set of variables necessary to enough explain specific types of value-added activities. Although many critics were addressed

with respect to its static nature, redundancy and the use of too many explanantia, the framework still represents an important multi-theoretical approach in analyzing entry modes, (Andersen 1997; Dunning 2003).

Back to the Uppsala model, it appears that it shares some similarities with the eclectic paradigm, with respect to the firm's knowledge aspect, and the similar role of dynamic capabilities to ownership advantage. Even though both theories are quite different when it comes to the entry mode perspective: the establishment chain is built on a time-dependent process in defining the entry mode, it is sequential and based on prior states, while the eclectic framework is based on the current values of the factor set in defining the firm's entry mode, (Andersen 1997; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

Furthermore, one of the forces of the paradigm, namely the locational advantage is directly linked to the international market selection since the mode of entry is linked to the choice of the country to enter. Later in this chapter, the IMS will be addressed in more details, (Douglas, Samuel, and Keegan 1982).

2.1.2. Framework explaining the relevance of internationalization theories

We discussed above different theoretical perspectives of the internationalization behavior of firms, more specifically, the internationalization process (stages theory), eclectic paradigm (influenced by the Transaction cost economics - TCE) and the network theory. Those theories have different concerns with respect to the IMS and the consequent entry modes, however, it is very important to point out that each theory might have more relevance to explain the internationalization behavior depending on specific firm's circumstances.

Solberg and Askeland (2006) advanced a framework, that explains the underlying circumstances of each theory. The framework is constructed around two important dimensions: Preparedness for internationalization and industry globality.

Preparedness for internationalization: To what extent the firm is internationalized at time *t*; the degree of internationalization can be assessed with different degrees of measurability, from an operational and a strategic perspective. Operational indicators range from percentage of sales abroad, proportion of foreign employees to number of countries where the firm is established. Combined with strategic factors such as decentralization decisions, resource commitments, and organizational structure and market share, gives a deep understanding of the level of firm internationalization.

Industry globality: Encompasses the transition that occurs from a multi-local industry to a global industry, in other words: the degree of homogeneity across markets, usually heterogenous in multi-local industries, and the degree of interconnectedness of the competition, which means that the firm's competitive position in a country influences its position in another one. Many indicators are included to evaluate the level of industry globality such as the number of alliances, the concentration of international industry structure, and the international price sensitivity.

> High Cell 4 Cell 2 Transaction Global internationalization cost economics management Preparedness for Cell 1 Cell 3 Incremental Network Internationalization perspective Low Multi-local Global Industry globality

Based on those two dimensions, the following framework have been developed:

Figure 3 - Framework for classifying internationalization theories (Solberg and Askeland 2006: 10)

Accordingly, each cell describes a specific theory and the circumstances where one theory is more relevant than the other, (Solberg and Askeland 2006):

Cell 1: Incremental internationalization, based on different incremental theories among them the U-model, that emphasizes a cyclical stepwise process. This cell is considered as a point of departure for internationalization. Where a firm has no international experience and operates on a multi-local industry, in this situation the stepwise internationalization process is expected to be followed to strengthen internal capabilities.

However, there is exceptions that make a firm able to skip some stages: Either because it cumulated larger resources, the market conditions are stable, and managers have earned international experience, or because the market was globalized way before that the firm get



ready. In that former case it can move to the second cell, and in the latter, it will move to the third cell.

Cell 2: The firm here has gained substantial preparedness and can cope better with higher complexity in choosing where and how to enter foreign markets. The firm is able to obtain and evaluate market information and make the right moves, in that situation it is suggested that TCE approach is more relevant. Among those theories, the eclectic paradigm that included the internalization advantages of TCE in addition to the L and O advantages. The relevance of TCE, can be explained by the fact that internalization needs a high level of preparedness, which is demanding in term of information and resource commitment, in other words human and financial capital, whether for the pre-entry, entry or post-entry phase. In addition, the TCE approach only allows each entry decision to be considered in isolation, instead of a long-term process of international expansion, which make it **more appropriate for a multi-local industry** and too narrow to cope with the complexity of a global competition.

Cell 3: This apply **for firms that operate already in a global industry** but one of the dimensions of preparedness is not reached yet, such as market knowledge, or experienced managers. This is the typical situation for **latecomers or the born global**. In that case the main challenge for those firms, is the incapacity to compete against larger MNEs, for a lack of financial strength and key capabilities. Pushing the firms to find combination of internal capabilities and external resources, which is especially valid in an environment of global competition. Making relationships a mean to counter this handicap and capitalize on reliable firm's connections to overcome high uncertainty and complexity and reach resources outside the firm's boundaries. Hence, the network theory has the most to say in these specific circumstances.

Cell 4: The last quadrant, is where **firms operate in a global industry characterized by oligopolistic competition, and greater transparency with respect to the firm's capabilities**. In those circumstances, a firm action impact the whole industry structure, it achieved a global organization, key international position, and a strong financial base, making stages and TCE theories unable to cope with the complexity of both their internal and external factors within the global competition.

2.1.3. Theories Summary

Following these theories, it can be argued that a firm's internationalization depends on how the firm assesses its advantages within a network building position, by adapting its capabilities and external resources to seek market development opportunities. However, it is of utmost importance to keep in mind the consideration of each firm's level of preparedness to internationalize and the industry's level of globalization in defining the most relevant explanatory theory. Moreover, a number of important postulates on each of those theories has a direct contribution on the international market selection approaches.

	Uppsala Model	Eclectic framework	Network theory
	Resource-based theory,	Transaction cost	Network-based
	in addition to the	theory, international	theory
Basic Theory	acknowledgement of the	trade theory,	
	network theory in the recent	Resource-based theory	
	updates		
Unit of	Firm	Firm	Firm's network
analysis	(recently the MBE)		
Explanatory	Dynamic capabilities	Ownership, locational	Formal and
variables	Learning and trust	and internalization	informal
	Network position advantages		relationships
Decision	Volume and degree of	Trade-offs between	Network
criteria	restraint of committed	risk, return, control	opportunities
	resources.	and resources	
	Follows an establishment	Independent,	Collaborative
	chain: range from export entry	cooperative and	modes
Mode of	modes, contractual entry	integrated mode	
entry	mode, to the investment entry		
	modes		
International	Psychic distance	Locational advantages	Relationships as
market	and degree of resource		a mean to access
selection	commitment		resources
Influence			outside the

The table below, gives a summary of the theoretical perspective:

	firms'
	boundaries

Table 2 - Theories Summary, (Andersen 1997; Root 1994; Vahlne and Johanson 2013).

2.1.4. The international market selection (IMS)

First, and before addressing the different aspect of the international market selection, a highlight of where actually this concept is situated in the overall International market entry strategy is necessary, in order to signal its very importance. Second, a linkage to previous chosen theories is fundamental to achieve an understanding of their influences on the IMS concept.

As for the international market entry strategy, Root (1994: 2), defines the entry strategy for international markets as "A comprehensive plan, that sets forth the objectives, goals, resources, and policies that will guide the company's international business operations over a future period long enough to achieve sustainable growth in world markets", this planning helps the firm to wisely allocate its resources, achieve precious ventures and sets its value-adding operations in major cross border markets, while staying responsive to any foreign competitive moves, (Cavusgil, Knight, and Riesenberger 2012).

With that in mind, many approaches to international market entry strategies were discussed through the literature, and shared certain similarities, among others: Cavusgil et al., (2012); Kotler & Keller, (2012); Root, (1994).

Root (1994) suggests an approach that requires decisions to be made on five elements: (1) **the choice of a target product/market**, (2) the objectives and goals in the country, (3) the choice of an entry mode to penetrate the target country, (4) the marketing plan to penetrate the target market, (5) the control system to monitor performance in the target market.

Kotler and Keller (2012), suggest also a five-stage approach: (1) Deciding whether to go abroad, (2) **Deciding which market to enter**, (3) Deciding how to enter the market, (4) Deciding on the marketing program, (5) Deciding on the marketing organization.

Cavusgil et al. (2012) identify an approach consisting of six decisions: (1) Analyze organizational readiness to internationalize, (2) Assess the suitability of the firm's products and services for foreign markets, (3) **Screen countries to identify attractive target markets**, (4) Assess the industry market potential, or the market demand, for the product(s) or

service(s) in selected target markets, (5) Choose qualified business partners, such as distributors or suppliers, (6) Estimate company sales for each target markets. It is important to underline that those approaches are iterative with loop possibilities, which makes the international entry strategy " a *continuing open-minded process*" (Root 1994: 3)

Again, what is the interest in pointing the international market entry strategy

approaches? It is to give a reminder of the importance of each of those decisions to be made in order to achieve successful global expansion. More specifically, and for the purpose of this paper study, the importance of the IMS. It is clear that the IMS is present on each approach listed above, hence, it has a critical and deterministic role, that should be taken into keen consideration by managers and decision makers.

2.1.5. Overview of the International market selection literature

As already mentioned, one important phase in the international market entry strategy is to choose the right market to enter, in other word the IMS. That choice will determine the success and thus the performance of the firm.

The IMS is the process that a firm follows in order to start its expansion internationally, it comes before the final in-depth assessment of a specific market and should not be confused with the idea of "going international", (Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

Significant research from the 1960s up to date addressed different sides of the IMS, a number of methods and approaches to IMS have been proposed, some researchers reported relevant business practices, others compared key methods for systematic IMS, and few attempts have been made to gather a detailed synthesis of the literature with respect to the available models, their methodologies and their practical applicability such as the taxonomy assessment work made by Papadopoulos and Denis (1988).

Furthermore, the development of an IMS model that combines generalizability to various industries and relevant predictive power for decision makers is still one great challenge, either the proposed models have not been sufficiently tested or are too complex to apply in practice, (Papadopoulos et al. 2002).

However, the literature provides substantial insights on IMS, that are useful and can inspire decisions makers according to their specific experience and firm context.

This part of the thesis will address different aspect of the IMS and will be the foundation of this research and the base to build a conceptual model of IMS, which will be used to address the company case international market selection issue.

2.1.5.1. IMS approaches

The IMS literature distinguishes between two normative approaches while addressing foreign market selection: The qualitative approach and the quantitative approach.

The former involves a thorough analysis of qualitative information of a potential set of country markets; the latter involves a quantitative analysis of secondary data about larger number of foreign markets or even all of them, (Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

The qualitative approach aims to generate a short list of country markets to consider based on established objectives and constraints.

The Quantitative approach, that represent the clear majority of normative models proposed in the literature (*See figure 4*), can be divided into two categories: Market grouping methods, which is a clustering based on similar macro or micro indicators, and market estimation methods, which discriminate markets according to their potential based on several criteria and rank by preferences, (Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).



Figure 4- Inventory and taxonomy of statistical approaches to IMS, (Papadopoulos and Denis 1988)

Despite, the existence of different qualitative and quantitative techniques of IMS, little evidence has been found on the use of such methods by firms on a systematic basis. It has been argued that firms are not entirely rational when it comes to IMS which makes it a very unpredictable and unconventional process and less likely to occur in a systematic fashion, (Brewer 2001; Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

2.1.5.2. Systematic and non-systematic perspective

The systematic perspective implies that decisions made within the IMS process are structured and formalized and follows a certain rational order, which means that the analysis is carried out in a way that uses specific ordered rules and procedures. According to previous investigations, those rational stages are as follow, (Andersen and Buvik 2002; Hisrich 2012; Papadopoulos and Martín Martín 2011):

- 1- Problem definition: Structure, define and isolate the IMS problem from other topics
- 2- Identification of the choice criteria: Identify the relevant criteria or objectives, that might be indicators at the macro and industry level, which will represent the market attractiveness
- 3- Weighting of the criteria: Define the weight of each indicator according to their importance to the firm's strategic objectives
- 4- Generation of the alternatives: Identify the attractive country markets and generate a list of alternatives
- 5- Alternative rating: Rates each country market according to the criteria
- 6- Optimal decision: Make a choice based on a trade-off between criteria or consider only a specified level of one of the important dimensions (referred to as compensatory and non-compensatory models)

Conversely, **the non-systematic perspective** follows informal methods and rules of thumbs that can be used at any step of the process, it seems to be more as a descriptive approach of how firms behave when selecting their markets. The most commonly known hypothesis is the psychic distance, that is used as an incremental disjointed decision making model while addressing the IMS, (Andersen and Buvik 2002; Papadopoulos and Martín Martín 2011).

Approach	Systematic	Non-systematic
Decision problem	Selection of country	Selection of country
Level of analysis Purpose Decision-making model Marketing paradigm Time horizon Connections to other decisions problems	The selling firm Normative Rational Discrete transaction Not specified IMS treated as an isolated decision	The selling firm Descriptive Disjointed incrematalism Discrete transaction Not specified IMS as a function of the firm's
Information search Type of information Sources of information	Extensive Country-/market- indicators Secondary data	internationalization Little/none Perceived psychic distance (subjective) Experiential knowledge

The table below gives the main differences between both perspectives:

Table 3 - Differences between systematic and non-systematic approach of the IMS process,

(Andersen and Buvik 2002)

2.1.5.3. Proposed IMS models

The Models proposed as process to evaluate potential foreign markets in the literature are rather consistent between each other, and represent a sequential and gradual selection process, they can be confined in three main stages, (Cavusgil 1985; Kumar et al. 1994):

1- Screening stage (or preliminary screening): Answers the question of which foreign market is worth investigating, usually macro-level indicators such as political stability, socio-cultural factors, and geographic distance, etc. are used in this stage. The point is to eliminate the countries that does not meet the firm's objectives in a macro level. In addition, firm's managers use the list established on their own mind, which basically consists of all countries less those countries that they recognize as being unfeasible because of practical considerations applying to the firm, (Brewer 2001; Kumar et al. 1994).

This preliminary stage, should minimize two risks: Ignoring countries that offer good prospects, by including all countries in the screening, and investigating countries that are poor prospects, by making use of secondary available data since it is quick and economical, (Root 1994).

2- Identification stage (in-depth screening): Assess the industry market potential, which includes market size and market growth rate, and identify the aggregates in each market, this stage aims to assess the industry attractiveness for the countries previously short listed. The objective is to identify markets that offer minimum or better level of potential

returns based on industry specific information such as level of competition, market potential, entry barriers, those are considered to be one of the most valued indicators of attractiveness. Then identify which country market to consider for deeper analysis. Usually, this stage involves a trade-off between size and growth, (Brewer 2001; Cavusgil 1985; Kumar et al. 1994; Root 1994). However, and this is often the case, industries will have few available key indicators to determine industry strength and demand within foreign markets, (Rahman 2003).

3- Selection stage: Analyses how attractive are the selected market with respect to the firm's objectives, constraints and expansion strategy. A deeper analysis is required at this stage, and information such as profitability, product adaptation, can be used to select the optimal market and make resource allocation decisions, and unlike the two previous stages, this stage relies more on primary data than secondary data, because of the need on firm-specific information, (Brewer 2001; Cavusgil 1985; Kumar et al. 1994; Rahman 2003).

In Sum "*No action is taken in countries that are not sufficiently attractive or in which the firm is not competitive (i.e. countries not assessed as sufficiently profitable)*", (Brewer 2001).

2.1.5.4. Complexity and limitations of the IMS

IMS is clearly seen by the literature as a complex topic, this complexity lies within many factors that involves, among others, the features of the process, the information and knowledge required, the decisions and the level of analysis used and the characteristics of the decision makers. As for the latter, their rationality is constrained by their cognitive limitations, the amount of time for taking the decision and the information they have in hand, in addition to the imperfection of available models. There is always an inherent risk within the stepwise process, either the risk to exclude at an early stage, opportunities that should have been retained, or include considerations that should have been excluded, this add to the complexity of the process and makes it extremely delicate, (Papadopoulos and Martín Martín 2011).

As for the approaches usually followed within the IMS, either grouping or estimation models, a key issue is the choice of indicators to include with respect to each of the three stages. There is no consensus in which indicators should be chosen nor their weights to represent their importance. "The *literature presents a number of theoretical and applied suggestions, but none display the characteristics of being industry specific, generalizable, relatively simple to*

use, strategic and able to reflect the total demand available to the firm and empirically validated", (Papadopoulos et al. 2002)

More specifically, qualitative approaches are open to potentially biased opinions of those who provide information such as consultants, and of the actual decision-makers judgement, which can result in high risk of inaccuracy of the assessment. As for the quantitative approaches, the weaknesses come from the quality of the secondary data they are based on, those method might suffer from the lack of comparability between countries, unreliability of data in some countries, insufficiency and scarcity of specific data, and the change of value of some indicators over time, (Papadopoulos and Denis 1988; Papadopoulos and Martín Martín 2011).

In addition, the cost of gathering knowledge on multiple markets on a deeper level of analysis can be very costly, for the vast majority of firms. Furthermore, it requires a certain level of competencies from decision makers to be able to increase the effectiveness of their decision with respect to carrying a systematic market selection process, which is often not the case, (Papadopoulos and Martín Martín 2011).

It can be argued that the size of the firm also conditions the choice of IMS approach, there is evidence that the majority of the SMEs in their early stage of internationalization do not follow a systematic approach of IMS, furthermore, the decision makers within small business are usually short on human and financial resources to carry out and interpret complex statistical analyses, and are more tempted to follow a more intuitive approach, or at best analyses a small number of markets based mostly on qualitative information. As for the MNEs, the issue is different, either the decision makers do not see an extensive pre-screening as cost effective or often they are already present in many markets and aim to choose which of those markets they might prioritize to introduce their product(s), this also provide those firms with a better source of primary data compared to SMEs, (Farrell and Wood 1994; Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

2.1.5.5. Model building and the choice of criteria

The development of a model should satisfy certain aspects: (1) the model should be able to screen many markets at the industry level in order to identify those worthy of investigation, (2) it should be testable to confirm its external validity and generalizability, (3) Multiple

variable approach should be used for meaningful result, (4) Use of a reasonable number of variable to keep it simple and at a low cost, (5) it should cover general environmental conditions both with specific product level, (6) it should include strategic dimensions of the firm with respect to its objectives, expansion strategy and constraints, (Papadopoulos et al. 2002: 169; Papadopoulos and Denis 1988).

There is no agreement to which criteria should be chosen. The choice is usually based on the author's perception of which criteria might be useful for the screening. However, this choice should be able to convoy a certain rationality, which includes relevance, frequency of use in past research, evidence that it has been satisfactory in different settings, data availability, reliability, comparability and ability to express qualitative factors where necessary. The criteria should be defined before starting the screening process, and the strategic orientation of the firm can be used to guide the weighting of the constructs and their measures.

Furthermore, and as mentioned before, the same non-agreement issue is brought up with respect to the weights of indicators assigned to these criteria, there is a large array of choice, and again it depends on the author's perception, (Papadopoulos et al. 2002; Russow and Okoroafo 1996).

Russow and Okoroafo (1996), through their review of the international business theory and the market screening and assessment literature, gave a summary of the most supported criteria and their sub-sequent indicators proposed by several authors for a country screening purpose (might be involved in both screening and identification stages), the following table displays those criteria:

Criteria	Indicators	Marketing literature	International business theory
Market size and growth	 (1) Domestic production (thousands). (2) Imports (US\$, thousands). (3) Exports (US\$, thousands). (4) Shift-share of domestic production (per cent). (5) Shift-share of imports (per cent). (6) Shift-share of exports (per cent). 	Kramer (1964) Deschampsneufs (1967) Litvak and Banting (1973) Robinson (1978) Walvoord (1980) Market Douglas and Craig (1983) Cundiff and Hilger (1984) Green and Allaway (1985) Connolly (1987) Ball and McCulloch (1993) Root (1994)	Hirsch (1967)
Factors of production	(Capital) (7) Gross fixed capital formation (percentage of GDP) or net fixed capital formation (percentage of NMP). (8) Money supply (US\$, millions). (9) Total international reserves (US\$, millions) (Labour) (10) Population (both sexes, thousands). (11) Percentage unemployed (per cent). (Land) (12) Average hourly wages in manufacturing (US\$). (13) Surface area (square km). (14) Density (per square km).	Root (1994)	Smith (1775) Ricardo (1800) Heckscher and Ohlin (1933) Vernon (1966) Hirsch (1968) Wells (1968) Krugman (1990) Porter (1990)
Economic development	 (15) Gross domestic or net material product (US\$ millions). (16) Gross domestic or net material product per capita (US\$). (Sectoral activity) (17) Agriculture (percentage of GDP). (18) Manufacturing industries (percentage of GDP). (19) Construction (percentage of GDP). (20) Wholesale and retail trade (percentage of GDP). (21) Transportation and communication (percentage of GDP). (21) Transportation and communication (percentage of GDP). 	Kramer (1964) Deschampsneufs (1967) Litvak and Banting (1973) Robinson (1978) Walvoord (1980) Douglas and Craig (1983) Cundiff and Hilger (1984) Connolly (1987) Ball and McCulloch (1993) Root (1994)	Clark (1940) Linder (1961) Maizels (1963) Vernon (1966) Sherbini (1967) Wells (1968

Table 4 - Proposed screening criteria by different authors (Russow and Okoroafo 1996: 50)

According to Root (1994) the market size above is separated into two components: (1) Product-specific (direct market size), and (2) General macro-economic measure (Indirect size)

Those criteria listed are most likely to remove some of the risk involved in selecting new country markets, for a sub-sequent in-depth assessment. Of course, it should be noted, that the spectrum of the criteria and the indicators they involve can be larger, It is also influenced by the firm's expansion strategy, existing knowledge and manpower expertise, (Gorecka, Dorota; Szalucka 2013; Kumar et al. 1994; Russow and Okoroafo 1996).

2.1.5.6. IMS for service firms and its determinants

It is important to underscore that most of the IMS literature have been dominated by analyzing manufacturing firms rather than service firms, the service nature of the firm add different factor of complexity to the IMS, and the influence of some factors is more relevant for manufacturing firms than for the service firms and vice versa, for instance, it can be argued that factors as client-supplier interaction will have influence on the IMS of a service firm, which is unlikely to be relevant for a manufacturing firm, (Farrell and Wood 1994).
First of all, a service firm displays some specific characteristics, that should be considered while trying to conduct an IMS: "(1) The distinction between trade and investment is less clear than the manufacturing firm, (2) It requires usually a greater level of customization for the client, (3) and both the customization and the simultaneous production-consumption nature of many services require an office in the host market via FDI or partnership, which apply for most service firms", (Farrell and Wood 1994).

The service firms share some determinants factors of IMS with the manufacturing firms, however other aspects have been developed by Farrell and Wood (1994) regarded as elements that can encourage or discourage the market selection, and clearly the influence might change depending on the firm. The authors cover nine factors commonly present in the IMS literature:

- 1- Market Size
- 2- Geographic proximity and cultural distance: Involving the psychic distance construct
- 3- Country risk: Usually political risks, ownership controls risks, operations risks and transfer risks.
- 4- Intensity of competition
- 5- Market similarity: Appears to be more important for service firms, due to the frequent need of interaction between supplier and client while creating the service, hence, the psychic distance might need a more careful consideration
- 6- Size of the firm: SMEs and MNEs address the selection approach differently
- 7- Firm's international experience
- 8- Servicing home country clients: The distinction between proactive, and reactive strategies
- 9- Oligopolistic reaction: The oligopolistic nature of the industry, motivate the need to protect the firm's international market position and may lead to follow the leader to foreign markets

Farrell and Wood (1994) added two new factors that are typical to the service firms: **Nature of service supplier-client interaction**: The nature of this interaction affects the market selection choice, defining the interaction is therefore necessary to decide to enter or not enter a specific country market. For that purpose, a number of dimensions is to be considered in order to specify the level of interaction, " (1) the complexity of the information supplied by the client, (2) whether he/she contributes directly to the ideas and problem solution or becomes part of the production function as an integral member of the team creating the service, (3) the depth of client interaction at different stages of service creation; (4) the intensity of the client monitoring of engaged activities".

Those dimensions involve that the more complex the information is, the higher the level of interaction is, the more involvement in the product creation is, and the higher the need to monitor the work of the supplier is, the more the cultural and language similarity will have an important weight in deciding of the market to consider/enter. In addition, the relationships, the mode and type of interaction are also considered as proxies of the supplier-client interaction and consequently the degree of cultural and linguistic similarity needed and therefore the choice of the market, (Farrell and Wood 1994; O'Farrell and Moffat 1991: 208).

Change in the firm's organizational form: A firm should consider the potential change of entering a new market that can be reflected into its organizational form, this can be illustrated in the need of a partnership to supply the necessary resource needed for a potential foreign market entry, such co-operative organizational behavior is most likely to be required for service firms than for manufacturing firms, consequently, the power position of a firm within a collaborative network will influence its foreign market selection, the choice of partners and collaborative network should be carefully evaluated, with keen attention to the collaborative agreements it might have to comply to before considering entering a market, (Farrell and Wood 1994).

2.1.5.7. Chance factor and knowledge sources within the IMS

Chance circumstances are enabler of leads and opportunities in foreign markets, whether in a reactive or proactive way, it involves situations such as the client following phenomenon, which is when a client open operation in a foreign market, and the firm uses its already existing relationship with that client to serve him abroad and win additional sales. There is also what is described as a reactive process, which is an answer to an enquiry from a foreign client looking for a new supplier or product. Other chance aspects may trigger the market selection choice, such as the government/institution encouragement for firms to start business in a specific market or referrals from business connections. Those are not a powerful basis to explain the IMS, but more likely to be additional aspects that might have indirect influence on the choice process, (Brewer 2001).

In addition, Brewer (2001) advances some specific information sources, that are most commonly used as a channel of knowledge to support the judgments of the criteria used for

their foreign market selection and their importance. Eventually, the ones that should be considered with more energy from the firm are the following: (1) Knowledge provided by representatives overseas, involving formal and informal representatives, it's either a presence as official agents or other pre-existing network that can provide information on opportunities, (2) enquiries from potential buyers, (3) visits to markets, to assess in-situ the attractiveness and the competitiveness, (4) following existing customer, (5) knowledge provided by allies, which are resources associated with business units, business associations, government agencies and other entities with shared interests.

2.1.5.8. The psychic distance

First, the concept of distance has multiple dimensions (geographic, cultural and institutional, economic), which can be approached and measured adopting an objective perspective (how distant is country A from country B in terms of kilometers, institutions, markets, etc.) or through the subjective point of view of decision makers (psychic distance). The different dimensions can be approached from three different perspectives, (1) objective measures, (2) individual decision maker perceptions, (3) strategic objectives of the firm; they all remain complementary, each perspective would provide different apprehension of distance. For the purpose of this paper, the focus will be shed on the perceptual facet of distance, namely the psychic distance, (Magnani, Zucchella, and Floriani 2018: 2).

The psychic distance was previously addressed when the U-model was discussed, as an important construct on the internationalization stages, it is also a construct of importance with the international market selection, it is seen as an intuitive non-systematic approach of market selection, based on the manager's perception of environmental factors such culture, language, and others that are believed to influence his/her decisions, it encompasses managerial cognition and perception of country-specific diversities, (Andersen and Buvik 2002; Johanson and Vahlne 1977; Magnani et al. 2018).

"While on one hand, country-specific (objective) characteristics and managers' (subjective) perceptions of them are relevant to the decision to enter a country, on the other hand, it is also true that the firm's volition, driven by strategic objectives, plays an important role in foreign market selection. Firms can expect higher returns from venturing into more distant countries, especially if the latter are 'strategically important'", (Magnani et al. 2018: 3).

In other words, managers should give more importance to the relative strategic importance of the markets, which means the firm's current and future market entry decisions to distant markets can be explained by the fact those market might actually be hubs that will connect the firm to other markets afterward. Therefore, looking beyond the distance might be a better option, although the country market may display great differences from the country of origin, in terms of culture, institutions, geography, and so forth, that same market may represent a crucial hub for prospective internationalization plans, (Magnani et al. 2018).

The literature recognizes the influence of the psychic distance on the business success on a multinational scale although the decision makers do not consciously recognize it. However, the literature is still confused when it needs to define and measure exactly this construct. It is often equated with cultural distance, although both constructs are different, (Alexander, Rhodes, and Myers 2007).

It is also important to highlight two underlying elements in the psychic distance, relativity and asymmetry. Cultural, economic and geographic distance can be perceived differently by different individuals from the same country (relativity), while decision makers in two different countries will perceive distance differently from their perspective (asymmetry). Those elements, add complexity to the measurement issue, (Magnani et al. 2018).

The concept of psychic distance is assumed to be means by which to operationalize cultural differences and measure foreignness, hence, the main issue that is brought usually to light, is how could the firm measure that concept? A number of ways have been investigated, such as Hofstede's pre-established criteria of cultural differences, or the cognitive mapping based on managers' individual perceptions of distance, but none satisfy accurately the measure of the concept, (Alexander et al. 2007).

In addition, it is believed that firms which decide to enter markets based on which one is the closer psychically, perform better simply because of less psychological and cultural barriers to overcome, and this is not completely true, since firms can go to other markets that are of lower distance, but achieve a better or similar performance, because they possess better skills than the one available in the entered markets, or a better use of their cumulated experience internationally, which make the positive or negative relationship of psychic distance to the organizational performance not conclusive yet within the literature, (Alexander et al. 2007).

2.2. Conceptual framework

"A conceptual framework is logically developed, described, and elaborated network of associations among concepts that have been identified through the theoretical and empirical research. The relationships between the independent concepts, the dependent concepts, and if applicable, the moderating or intervening concepts are elaborated. It's not a theory since it does not have the prerequisites of theoretical constructions", (Andersen 1997:30).

The literature does not suggest any general agreement regarding the conceptual framework and concepts to be used to explain the IMS process. The following framework will be based on the most important contributions of the internationalization theories (Anderson, Dunning, Vahlne and Johanson, et al.) and IMS literature (Alexander, Anderson, Brewer, Cavusgil, Papadopoulos and Denis, Snehota and Hakansson, et al.)

In this section, the conceptual framework (*see figure 5*) and the concepts it involves is articulated on the three stages model proposed by most literature in order to provide a limited set of attractive countries with meaningful market similarities.

A set of selected variables commonly used within the literature is included, covering both objective dimensions (quantitative) and perceptual dimensions (psychic distance and perception of strategic objectives), (Marchi et al. 2014).

Once the process is completed, the compatibility of management objectives and the approach's result must be evaluated, in case of inconsistence, a reassessment might be needed. For that purpose, the process is iterative and allows a feedback loop, to perhaps incorporate other relevant criteria and indicators. Finally, an in-depth analysis is necessary to achieve a more accurate selection of the targeted foreign market(s), (Douglas et al. 1982).



Figure 5 - Conceptual framework of the international market selection process

Accordingly, the following hypotheses try to link the conceptual model to the research questions formulated previously:

H1: The Model allows the management to reduce decision making risks and confirm the relevance of the chosen variables for the IMS process to the company case.

H2: The target country identified comply to the management rational.

Chapter 3: Methodology

This chapter explains in detail, the research design of the thesis and the methodology followed to test the model. Involving the nature of data used, the definition of the variables, the different data collection methods, and the analyses approaches.

3.1. Research Design

"The function of a research design is to ensure that the evidence obtained enables us to answer the initial questions as unambiguously as possible, in other words, when designing research we need to ask: given this research question (or theory), what type of evidence is needed to answer the question (or test the theory) in a convincing way?" (De Vaus 2005:9)

This thesis work followed a deductive approach, as previously displayed, the conceptual framework was an attempt to synthetize the existing knowledge on the matter, and its ability to answer the research questions, by testing the collected and operationalized constructs on a real case company, under empirical scrutiny, (Bryman and Bell 2015).

The objective of this thesis is to explore what are the determinants of IMS and why does the firm have to prioritize one country market over another and put the light on the systematic process to be followed.

Accordingly, it follows three stages, mentioned previously on the conceptual framework: **The first stage**, the preliminary screening, usually involves the definition of a threshold requirement to eliminate countries not worth investigating, however, in this case, the company usually expresses those no-go requirements depending on each specific situation, since more complex parameters are involved, with respect to the overall costs, the volume of the contract and the protection of the source code, *those elements cannot be verified at a pre-screening phase.* In the other hand, the screening aimed for, does not include all countries, for a matter of data availability and time resources, hence a predefined list was set up based on (*See Table 5*):

- The interest expressed by the management
- The countries with potential existing network, such as other business units' offices, existing partners and suppliers.
- In addition to other countries geographically or culturally perceived close or similar (such as the Nordic countries)

Predefined country markets					
Netherlands	New Zealand				
France	United Arab Emirates				
Belgium	USA				
Luxembourg	Norway				
Monaco	Iceland				
Switzerland	Ireland				
UK	Canada				
Morocco	Austria				
Algeria	Qatar				
Tunisia	Malaysia				
Egypt	Sweden				
Australia	Czech Republic				
Finland	Poland				
Germany	Croatia				
Romania	Latvia				
Singapore					

Table 5 - Predefined country targets

For **the second stage**, the country attractiveness was assessed, under both an **objective and subjective** (perceptual) perspective, using variables based on the literature and the manager's (key informants) experiential knowledge and strategic orientation.

The objective perspective includes quantitative variables that are measured using secondary data from statistical sources. As for **the subjective** (**perceptual**) **perspective**, it uses insights from the interviews, to build and scale the managers' perceptions according to their experience and business knowledge.

As for **the third stage**, the different variables were integrated into a multi-criteria approach algorithm, called a fuzzy expert system, that processes the variables, regardless of their quantitative or qualitative nature, and considers their different weights and interconnections. The system used was established based on the insights from the interviews and the secondary data collection, the weights and rules applied by the system were defined using the managers' common sense and experience and the experience of the designer.

The final results were accordingly cross-checked with the management assumptions in order to confirm the compliance with their rational.

3.1.1. Model variables description

The following tables display the variables identified through the literature, adapted to this specific company case, and their respective measures. Both objective and subjective variables were included into the multi-variable approach, namely, the Fuzzy expert system and were assigned a specific weight in order to shape the accuracy of the output, based on the management's experiential knowledge.

Dimension	Tedlester	Térrer	Manager	Calculation
Dimension	Indicators	Item 1: On a scale from 1 to 10, how suitable do you think your	areasures	Carculation
		product is for the need of the market demand in each of those	1 = Unsuitable , 10 = Very suitable	
		potential market?		
Product alignment		Item 2: On a scale from 1 to 10, how sensitive do you believe is		
		the demand for Cicero LMS with respect to the price? For each	1 = Insensitive, 10 = Very sensitive	
	Perception of the product on the market	Item 3: On a scale from 1 to 10 how sensitive do you believe is		Average of the four items
		the demand for Cicero LMS with respect to the Quality? For each	1 = Insensitive , 10 = Very sensitive	
		potential market	· · · · · ·	
		Item 4: On a scale from 1 to 10, how sensitive do you believe is		
		the demand for Cicero LMS with respect to the Product	1 = Insensitive , 10 = Very sensitive	
		Standards? For each potential market		
		Denmark to the countries on the list, from both a cultural and an		
		economic perspective? in other words, what is the overall	1 = Very different, 10= Very similar	
		similarity that you perceive between each country and Denmark		
		Item 6: On a scale from 1 to 10, give your perceived similarity		
		between the danish market and the countries on the list, with	1 = Very different, 10= Very similar	
Psychic distance	Perception of the psychic distance	Item 7: On a scale from 1 to 10 give your nerceived similarity		Average of the four items
		between the danish market and the countries on the list, with	1 = Very different, 10= Very similar	
		respect to the English language profiscency only		
		Item 8: On a scale from 1 to 10, give your perceived similarity		
		between the danish market and the countries on the list, with	1 = Very different, 10= Very similar	
		respect to the development of the level of IC1 (Information and	S	
		Item 9: On a scale from 1 to 10, how do you/would you judge the		
	Barnantion related to the availability of	access to information from secondary sources in relation to each	1 = easy access, 10 = Very hard access	
	secondary information related to the market	potential market ?		
		Item 10: On a scale from 1 to 10, how do you/would you judge		
		the accuracy of information from secondary sources with respect to each patantial market 2	1 = inaccurate, 10 = Very accurate	
	Degree of experiential knowledge related to the market	Item 11: On a scale from 1 to 10, what is your degree of market		
		knowledge based on your previous experiences, for each of those	1 = Poor, 10 = Very good knowledge	
		potential markets?		
		Item 12: On a scale from 1 to 10, what is your degree of		
Market knowledge		knowledge about the competition for each of those potential	1 = Poor, 10 = Very good knowledge	Average of the seven items
8		Item 13: On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe your local		
		network can contribute to access knowledge about each of those	1 = Low contribution , 10 = Very high	
		foreign markets	contribution	
	Importance of belonging to a network open	Item 14: On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe your	1 = Low contribution , 10 = Very high	
	to relations with the market	International network can contribute to access knowledge about each of those foreign markets?	contribution	
		Item 15: On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe that shared		
		knowledge from other business units can contribute to access	1 = Low contribution , 10 = Very high	
		knowledge about each of those foreign markets ?	contribution	
		Item 16: On a scale from 1 to 10, do you perceive any risk that the Gigaro LMS product will be imitated by the computition in	1 - Low sick 10 - High sick	
(10) - 12, 1000 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 1		each of those market?	1 – Low lisk , 10 – High lisk	
Intellectual property	Perception of imitation risk	Item 17: On a scale from 1 to 10, do you perceive any risk that		Average of the two items
		the Cicero LMS source code will not have sufficient protection	1 = Low risk , 10 = High risk	
		(Intellectual protection) in each of those market?		
		Item 18: On a scale from 1 to 10, considering all the staff		
		what extent the available managerial skills are adequate to	1 = Inadequate , 10 = Perfectly adequate	
Managerial competencies	Adequacy of managerial skills	penetrate each of those foreign market ?		Average of the two items
		Item 19: On a scale from 1 to 10, to what extent the available		August 1997 27 Charles and a charles of the Charles
		competencies master the library business' rules of the game on	1 = Poor, 10 = Very good	
		each of mose markets? Item 20: On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe your Cicaro		
		LMS is perceived would be perceived as superior to the existing	1 = Inferior, 10 = Very superior	
		products of the competition in each of those markets?		
	Perception of the superiority of the Cicero	Item 21:On a scale 1 to 10, what level do you think the brand		
Product superiority	LMS product	recognition of the Cicero LMS reached in each of those countries?	1 = Low, 10 = Very High	Average of the three items
		Item 22: On a scale 1 to 10, to what extent do you believe that		
		the country of origin (Denmark) of the Cicero LMS will have an	1 = Low , 10 = Very High	
		impact on the attractiveness of the product on those markets?		

3.1.1.1. Subjective variables description

Table 6 - Perceptual variables and their Operationalization, (Alexander et al. 2007; Farrell and Wood1994; Magnani et al. 2018; Marchi et al. 2014)

Each of the six chosen subjective (perpetual) variables represent a dimension, that was inspired by the literature (Alexander et al. 2007; Farrell and Wood 1994; Magnani et al. 2018; Marchi et al. 2014). In order to retrieve answers for each of those dimensions, qualitative

interviews were done with the key informants, by the mean of an interview guide, (*See Interview guide appendix 2*).

After the interviews were done and transcribed, the insights were used to confirm the variables related by the literature and helped to fragment those dimensions into indicators and then items (22 items) in order to facilitate the extraction of the information. After the interviews, a special follow-up form was addressed to the key informants, that contained all the items on the table 6, in order to translate the perceptions to a scalable level. The form measured each item from 1 to 10 with respect to each country, and the average score of the items represented the score of the dimension, (*See Form and calculation Appendices 3 and 4*).

This integration of subjective variables into the model was also a way to compensate the potential lack of data from secondary sources (Marchi et al. 2014)

3.1.1.2. Objective variables description

As for the objective variables, it is also described by dimensions, each dimension is explained by indicators then a sub-indicator. All the corresponding data was collected from secondary data sources (most of them indexes), and some indicator were estimated following specific calculations.

Dimension	Factor	Indicator	Measure/Unit	Description
Country risk	Political freedom	-	Political freedom Index, Scale from 1 to 100	Freedom aggregate score, derived from the global report on political rights and civil liberties, which is composed of numerical ratings and descriptive texts for each country. derived in large measure from the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, adopted by the UN General Assembly
Country risk	Ease of doing business	-	Ease of doing business Index, Scale from 1 to 100	Doing Business captures several important dimensions of the regulatory environment as it applies to local firms.
	Economic freedom		Economic freedom Index, Scale 1 to 100	The Index covers 12 freedoms from property rights to financial freedom
	Level of corruption	-	Corruption Index, Scale from 1 to 100	According to transparency international
	Market Size	Level of urbanization	% from Total population	Proportiion of people living in urban areas
		Population	Total Inhabitants	Total country population
	Market growth rate	Real GDP growth Projected Real GDP growth	Annual growth Rate %	Gross domestic product is the most commonly used single measure of a country's overall economic activity. It represents the total value at constant prices of final goods and services produced within a country during a specified time period, such as one year.
Market potential		GDP per capita	US\$	GDP per capita data are measured in US dollars at current prices and PPPs.
	Market intensity	HDI	Scale from 1 to 100, (human dev index)	The Human Development Index (HDI) is a summary measure of average achievement in key dimensions of human development
		Trade in services to GDP ratio	%of GDP	Trade in services is the sum of service exports and imports divided by the value of GDP, all in current U.S. dollars.
		Danish share in the target country total in	% of total import	Import origins based on SITC (Standard International Trade Classification) or HS (Harmonized System)
	Level of competition	-	Number of major competitors	-
Market access	Entry barriers	Taxes level, duties, non tariff barriers	STRI Index , Scale from 1 to 100	Inte services i rade Resentenveness modex provides mitorination on regulatory changes affecting services trade, introduced through new or amended laws and regulations, whether trade liberalising or trade tightening. Narrowed to computer programming, consultancy and related activities.
Cultural distance	Cultural differences	-	Cultural distance Index, scale from 1 to 100	Based on six cultural dimensions (power distance, individualism/collectivism, masculinity/femininity, uncertainty avoidance; long-term/short-term orientation). Index calculated with respect to Denmark in accordance with the formula used by Morosini et al. (1998)
and geographic proximity	Language	English proficiency	EFP index	The EF English Proficiency Index is increasingly cited as an authoritative source by journalists, educators, officials, and business leaders. EF is pleased to contribute to the ongoing global conversation about English language education.
	Time Zone	-	Hours difference	-1
	Geographic distance	-	Km distance between Denmark and target market	-
	Communication infrastructure	Quality Index	ITU index 1 to 100	As the UN specialized agency for ICTs, ITU is the official source for global ICT statistics.
		Secure servers	Servers per million people	Secure servers are servers using encryption technology in Internet
Education and infrastructure development	Internet Infrastructure	The web index	Index scale from 1 to 100	transactions. The Web Index, by the World Wide Web Foundation, tracks the Web's contribution to social, economic and political progress across 86 countries. It ranks these nations across four pillars: Universal Access, Freedom and Onenness. Empowerment and Relevant Content.
	Literacy rate		Rate in %	Person over 15 that can read and write, according to the CIA factbook
	Education Level		% 25-64 y.o that completed the tertiary education	Tertiary education is the educational level following the completion of a school providing a secondary education.
	Inflation rate	-	Rate in %	Annual percent change in consumer prices compared with the previous year's consumer prices.
	Government expenditure in edu	% of GDP	In %	Expenditure in education to the GDP
Economic	Exchange rate	% of 1 otal Government expenditure	In % 2006-2013 Percent change in official exchange rate vs previous v	Expenditure in education to the total government expenditures This indicator is measured in terms of national currency per US dollar.
осусторшент	FDI net inflows		%GDP	The inward FDI stock is the value of foreign investors' equity in and net loans to enterprises resident in the reporting economy. FDI stocks are measured in USD and as a share of GDP
Dublis libus	Number of libraries	-	Number	Statistics provided by OCLC
rubic indrafy	Spending on public libraries	i	In \$	Statistics provided by OCLC
potential	Registered users	-	Number in millions	Statistics provided by OCLC

Table 7 - Objective variables, (Cavusgil 1985; Cavusgil et al. 2004, 2012; Douglas et al. 1982; Gorecka, Dorota; Szalucka 2013; Kumar et al. 1994; Marchi et al. 2014; Papadopoulos et al. 2002; Papadopoulos and Denis 1988; Rahman 2003; Russow and Okoroafo 1996)

3.1.2. Fuzzy expert system, definition, links and weights

A fuzzy expert system is a system that is based on imprecise, vague or uncertain concepts under investigation, that are situated at some degree of truth, which means they are not completely false neither completely true and will therefore belong somewhere between 0 and 1. (Marchi et al. 2014) Those concepts can be described on a linguistic format, such as High and Low or Cold and Hot, this description is what is commonly known as *Membership*. (Marchi et al. 2014)

The fact of choosing the fuzzy expert system, in this specific case company, makes good sense, because the concepts used, and the data collected to select target markets, are quite uncertain and can be described linguistically.

Our fuzzy expert system integrated 37 parameters in total (indicators, variables and intermediary variables). The indicators were aggregated into variables, and variables into intermediary variables, and so on, creating five level of aggregation.

Below, Table 8 displays each parameter, its composition and the different level of aggregation, in addition to details on the measures. As for the Figure 6 it shows how inputs are connected to each other's and converge into the final output that is the country markets by score, that is represented by a tree shape.

Output	Dimension (Level 5)	Dimension (level 4)	Dimension (level 3)	Factor (level 2)	Indicator (level 1)	Measure/Unit
		Country risk (int 8)		Political freedom (Var 9) Ease of doing business (Var 10) Economic freedom (Var 11)	• • •	Index Scale from 1 to 100 Index from 1 to 100 Index Scale 1 to 100
			Market potential	Level of corruption (Var 13) Market Size (Var 14)	- % of urbanization (Ind 1) Total population (Ind 2)	Index Scale from 1 to 100 % from Total population Inhabitants
		Market		Market growth rate (Var 15)	Average growth rate of GNP (Ind 3) Projected GNP growth (Ind 4) CDP pre capita (Ind 5)	Annual growth Rate % Annual growth Rate % Lise
		Attractiveness (Int 9)	(int by	Market intensity <mark>(Var 16)</mark>	HDI (human dev index) (Ind 6) Trade in services to GDP ratio (Ind 7)	Scale from 1 to 100 %of GDP
	Country		Market access	Level of competition (Var 17)	Janish share in the target country total import (ind 8)	Number of major competitors
	Attractiveness (Int 12)	Cultural distance and geographic	(111.4)	Cultural differences (Var 19) Language (Var 20)	Linguistic fragmentation	Hofsdete score From 1 to 100 (average score)\CD formula EFP index
		proximity (Int 10)		Time Zone (Var 21) Geographic distance (Var 22)	· · ·	Hours difference Km distance between Denmark and target market
			Education and infrastructure	Communication infrastructure (Var 23) Web Infrastructure (Var 24)	Quality Index Secure servers (Ind 9) Web index (Ind 10)	ITU index 1 to 100 Servers per million people Index scale from 1 to 100
		Economic, social and infrastructure	development (Int 5)	Literacy rate (Var 25) Education Level (Var 26)	•	Rate in % % 25-64 y.o, tertiary education
		devlopement (Int 11)	Economic development (Int 6)	Inflation rate (Var 27) Government expenditure in education (Var 28)	- % of GDP (Ind 11) % of Total Government expenditure (Ind 12)	Rate in % In % In % 2005-2013
				Exchange rate (Var 29) FDI net inflows (Var 30)	- -	Percent change in official exchange rate vs previous year %GDP
Country	Public Library sector attractiveness (Int 13)		-	Number of libraries (Var 31) Spending on public libraries (Var 32)	-	Number
selection (Output)				Registered users (Var 33)		Number in millions
	(111) 4.57	Product perception (Int 16)	Product Alignement (Var 1)	Perception of the product on the market		Scale from 1 to 10
			Product superiority (Var 8)	Perception of the superiority of the Cicero LMS product		Scale from 1 to 10
		ent knowledge and	Market Knoweledge (Var 3) wiedge and	Perception related to the availability of secondary information related to the market		Scale from 1 to 10
	Management			Degree of experiential knowledge related to the market	-	Scale from 1 to 10
	(Int 18)	(Int 17)		Importance of belonging to a local network open to relations with the market	+	Scale from 1 to 10
	(Intellectual property (Var 6)			Scale from 1 to 10
			Managerial competencies (Var 7)			Scale from 1 to 10
		Psychic distance (Var 2)	Perception of the psychic distance			Scale from 1 to 10

Table 8 - The Inputs composition



Figure 6 - Fuzzy expert system' tree for the IMS

The final output is the overall evaluation of each country market according to the combination of all parameters and their respective weights. A modular system is so designed in the form of a Fuzzy expert System (FES), that reduces the model complexity, (Marchi et al. 2014). (See appendix 5)

3.1.2.1. The System's Memberships

As mentioned previously, the FES treats the variables by transforming the data entered, into a linguistic format, such as "Low, Medium, High and Very High", those variations are called memberships. Most of the memberships used in this model have three to four range variations. The variations were designed according to the distribution of the data, when some parameter's continuum has a substantial range that is described as high value, a fourth membership was added to allow a better discrimination ("Very High"), which means that instead of "Low, Medium, High", it was adjusted to a more significant separation, "Low, Medium, High and Very High".

Furthermore, in each respective parameter, the Mean and Median, in addition to the Minimum and Maximum values were used as proxies to define the curve's shape, in other words the position of each level on the continuum (Ranging from 0 to 1).

The Figure 7 illustrates an example of a parameter's membership and range variation which all has been defined for each of the 37 parameters in the system. Each indicator has its own membership structure and leads consequently to the expression of the membership of the aggregated variable it contributes in.

For instance, HDI score, a composite of market intensity among three other indicators (GDP per capita, trade in services to GDP ratio and Danish share in the target country total import) has a range from 0 to 1, and according to its data distribution, four memberships were assigned and the following range separation (Low to Very high) was defined:

- Low: [-0.36 -0.04 0.5044 0.73]
- **Medium**: [0.6822 0.816 0.916]
- **High**: [0.7635 0.8809 0.9549]
- Very High: [0.89 0.975 1.11 1.43]



Figure 7- HDI Membership and range variation

As mentioned before the choice of the memberships for each variable depends on its distribution and the nature of the variable, in this specific parameter (HDI), the index is known to be High if its score is above 0.8, and since there is many high scores to discriminate, a fourth membership was added to express a very high level for countries beyond 0.9.

The distribution of its values shows a Mean of 0.73 and a Median of 0.82, which might be used as proxies to place the Medium level on the membership, and consequently beneath this level the index starts to weaken and could be described as Low.

3.1.2.2. The System's Rule bases

As for the relationships between the inputs, it is the description of how might, for instance, the interaction of a number of indicators impact the aggregated variable they represent (*See Figure 8*), when those indicators are either high, low or medium.

Those relationships were built according to the perceived importance of each parameter with respect to the company case (*See rules' arguments Appendix 6*), which remains a subjective judgment based on the knowledge and expertise of the persons collaborating in building the system, those relationships are called *Rule base* and represent an important piece of knowledge that shapes the entire logic behind the system.

GDP, or, opta		mi nod (mamda	• n)	Market, ntensity
FIS Name: mi_node			FIS Type:	mamdani
And method	min	×	Current Variable	
Or method	max	~	Name	GDP_per_capita
Implication	min	~	Туре	input
Aggregation	max	~	Range	[0 1]
Defuzzification	centroid	~	Help	Close
System "mi_node": 4 inputs, 1 output, and 108 rules				

Figure 8 - Market intensity composition

As to illustrate the rule base definition, The variable market intensity, composed of four indicators (GDP per capita, HDI score, trade in services to GDP ratio and Danish share in the target country total import) is used again as an example: When each of the four indicators vary (from low to very high), the market intensity changes accordingly (*See Figure 9 below*). Moreover, the more the number of parameters increases under an aggregated variable the more rule base needed, which is basically the number of combination possible, however all combination possible do not have to be covered in order for the system to work, although the lack of rules will influence the quality of the output. Because, when a certain combination occurs and there are no rules previously set up to describe its outcome, the system automatically assigns a middle value as the one to integrate which is a neutral value, that is supposed not to influence the system but mainly use to avoid that it blocks the processing.

In this example, 108 rules were established:



Figure 9- Market intensity rule base

The rule base, are defined according to the expertise and arguments of the persons contributing to the elaboration and building of the system, in this example, where Market intensity is composed of GDP per capita, HDI score, trade in services to GDP ratio and Danish share in the target country's total import, we assumed the following to explain the interaction of each of the four variables and the logic behind the rules generated, in different level of memberships:

The indicator HDI, is known to have been built using the GDP per capita as one of its constructs which means that it is more important since it describe a country in different aspects including GDP per capita, however, the fact that this index is not highly updated, the idea of adding the isolated GDP per capita was judged to compensate this lack, in the meantime the HDI was judged be of upmost importance in describing the market intensity, followed by the importance of the imports and then the share of Danish imports. Which means that in general if the HDI is High it leads the rule up and so on.

The same reasoning was applied to all the other variables in order to generate the adequate rule bases.

3.1.2.3. The System's Weight

In addition, different weights were collected from the managers and integrated into the system, by assigning a weight from 1 to 10, to each variable, where 1 is believed to be not important and of less influence and 10 of upmost importance and of a high degree of impact

on the subsequent outputs. The reason behind assigning weight is to maintain the relevance of the parameters and achieve a more realistic balance reflecting the business reality, and therefore increasing the accuracy of the system and thus its relevance to the company case.

	fortant do you perceive each of the	ose parameters on a range from 1 to 10, 1 markets ?	n evaluat	ing the att	ractive	eness of potential
Dimensions	Importance (weight)	Parameters	Hans	Flemming	Dina	Average individual Weight
Subjective (Perceptual) Variables (A)	from 1 to 10	Managerial perception of product alignment Managerial perception of Market knowledge Managerial perception of Intellectual property Managerial perception of Managerial competencies Managerial perception of the psychic distance Managerial perception of the psychic distance	8	3,3	4	5,10
Objective variables (B)	from 1 to 10	Country risk Market potential Market Access Cultural distance and geographic proximity Economic, social and infrastructure development Public library potential	8	6,0	6	6,67
	Parameters	Importance (weight)	Hans	Flemming	Dina	Average individual Weight
Objective variables (B)	Country risk (1) Market potential (2) Market Access (3) Cultural distance and geographic proximity (4) Economic, social and infrastructure development Public library potential (6)	From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10	8 9 7 7 6 9	6 7 6 4 5 7	4 10 3 5 5 5	6,00 8,67 5,33 4,67 5,33 7
	Parameters	Importance (weight)	Hans	Flemming	Dina	Average individual Weight
Subjective (Perceptual) Variables (A)	Managerial perception of product alignment Managerial perception of Market knowledge Managerial perception of Intellectual property Managerial perception of Managerial competencies Managerial perception of the psychic distance Managerial perception of Product superiority	From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10	8 4 2 2 3 4	1 5 7 1 1	8 5 8 5 2 7	5,67 4,67 5,00 4,67 2,00 4,00
	Parameter	Importance (weight)	Hans	Flemming	Dina	Average individual Weight
Country risk (1)	Political freedom Ease of doing business Economic freedom Level of corruption	From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10	2 8 7 3	176	2 5 7	1,67 6,67 6,67 6,00
				10	5	-/
	Parameter	Importance (weight)	Hans	Flemming	Dina	Average individual Weight
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3)	Parameter Market Size Market growth rate Market intensity Level of competition Eatry barriers	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10	Hans 9 8 8 8 8 8	Flemming 7 2 5 7 7	Dina 5 3 6 5 8	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 5,33 6,00 7,67
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3)	Parameter Market Size Market growth rate Market intensity Level of competition Entry barriers Parameter	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10 From 1 to 10 Importance (weight)	Hans 9 8 8 8 8 8	Flemming 7 5 2 5 7 Flemming	Dina 5 3 6 5 8 Dina	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 6,00 7,67 Average individual Weight
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3) Cultural distance and geographic proximity (4)	Parameter Market growth rate Market growth rate Market intensity Level of competition Entry barriers Parameter Cultural differences Language Time Zone Geographic distance	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10	Hans 9 8 8 8 8 8 4 9 4 9 8 8 9 9 8 9 9 9 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 1 1 1	Flemming 7 5 2 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 5 5 5 6 6	Dina 5 3 6 5 8 Dina 4 8 2 2	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 6,00 7,67 Average individual Weight 5,33 7,33 3,33 3,33
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3) Cultural distance and geographic proximity (4)	Parameter Market Size Market growth rate Market intensity Level of competition Entry barriers Parameter Cultural differences Language Time Zone Geographic distance Parameter	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10 From 1 to 1	Hans 9 8 8 8 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 1 9 1 1	Flemming 7 2 2 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 7	Dina 5 3 6 5 8 Dina 4 8 2 2 Dina	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 6,00 7,87 Average individual Weight 5,33 7,33 3,33 3,00 Average individual Weight
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3) Cultural distance and geographic proximity (4) Economic, social and infrastructure development (5)	Parameter Market growth rate Market intensity Level of composition Entry barriers Parameter Cultural differences Language Time Zone Geographic distance Parameter Communication infrastructure Interact Infrastructure Literacy rate Education Level Indiation rate Government expenditure in education Exchange rate FDI net inflows	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10	Hans 9 8 8 8 8 9 8 8 9 9 8 8 9 9 9 9 8 8 9 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Flemming 7 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Dina 5 3 6 5 8 Dina 4 8 2 2 Dina 3 4 8 4 8 4 8 4 5	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 5,33 6,00 7,67 Average individual Weight 5,33 7,33 3,33 3,33 3,30 Average individual Weight 4,33 5,67 5,00 5,33 2,67 5,67 5,67 2,200
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3) Cultural distance and geographic proximity (4) Economic, social and infrastructure development (5)	Parameter Market growth rate Market intensity Level of competition Entry barriers Parameter Cultural differences Language Time Zone Geographic distance Detention Literacy rate Education Level Inflation rate Government expenditure in education Exchange rate FDI net inflows	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10 From 1 to 1	Hans 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Flemming 7 5 7 7 Flemming 7 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Dina 5 3 6 5 8 9 9 Dina 4 4 8 2 2 2 9 9 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 </td <td>Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 5,33 6,00 7,67 Average individual Weight 5,33 3,33 3,33 3,30 Average individual Weight 5,67 5,67 5,00 5,33 2,67 3,00 Average individual Weight 4,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00</td>	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 5,33 6,00 7,67 Average individual Weight 5,33 3,33 3,33 3,30 Average individual Weight 5,67 5,67 5,00 5,33 2,67 3,00 Average individual Weight 4,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00 5,00
Market potential (2) Market Accesss (3) Cultural distance and geographic proximity (4) Economic, social and infrastructure development (5) Public library potential	Parameter Market sized Market intensity Level of competition Entry barriers Parameter Cultural differences Language Time Zone Geographic distance Determent expenditure in Infrastructure Literacy rate Education Level Indiation rate Government expenditure in education Exchange rate Fold net inflows Parameter Number of libraries Spending on public libraries Resistered users	Importance (weight) From 1 to 10	Hans 9 8 8 8 8 9 8 8 9 9 9 8 8 9 9 9 31 2 4 3 1 2 Hans 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	Flemming 7 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	J Dina 5 3 6 5 8 Dina 3 4 4 8 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 7 7	Average individual Weight 7,00 5,33 5,33 6,00 7,67 Average individual Weight 5,33 3,33 3,33 3,33 4,33 3,00 Average individual Weight 4,33 5,67 5,00 5,57 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,67 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,77 5,7

The weights formulated by the management are described below:

Table 9 - Parameters' weighting

During the building of the system, those weights were again adjusted, in order to maintain the consistency of the normalized data, since applying a weight to a variable implies to change it range from [0-1] to [0-1] * W. But also, in order to maintain the importance expressed by these weights, especially when variables are combined to give an aggregated one, the question that remains is which weight the aggregated variable will have? and how it is going to reflect

the original weights? This adjustment cannot be a simple extension of the range, because it affects consistently the original expressed importance. Therefore, and in order to keep its relevance, the following formula was included into the code (*See Code appendix 7*):

$$X * (1 + Wi)$$
$$Wi = Wi / \sum_{i=1}^{n} Wy$$

This formula allows to maintain the importance assigned to the weights even when aggregated. (Saleh and Kim 2009)

3.2. Data collection and validation

3.2.1. Triangulation approach

A triangulation approach has been used during the data collection, in other words, both a qualitative and quantitative research methods have been applied, with the use of an interview guide and a form addressed to the firm's key informants. However, the form was not addressed as a pure quantitative approach (Survey) but more as a way to quantify the perceptual insights identified through the qualitative approach and to gather the variable weights that will help build the accuracy and relevance of the fuzzy expert system later and was obviously addressed to the same interviewees.

"Quantitative and qualitative research methods often complement each other. Combined use of quantitative and qualitative research methods in the study of the same phenomenon is termed triangulation. Market researchers can improve the accuracy and validity of their judgements by collecting both quantitative and qualitative data. Sometimes qualitative research methods explain or reinforce quantitative findings and even reveal new information. Sometimes it is relevant to use qualitative data collected by, for example, in-depth interview of a few key informants as, exploratory input to the construction of the best possible questionnaire for the collection of quantitative data. In this way triangulation can enrich our understanding of a research question before a structured and formalized questionnaire is designed.", (Hollendsen 2011:228).

3.2.1.1. Key informants

The company key informants have previously acquired an important international expertise within the industry and their respective positions and have been of good help in determining and evaluating a number of variables needed throughout this work in addition to the validation of the model, and the evaluation of the results.

Name	Key informants' position
Flemming Bent Thomsen	VP Sales Group Senior Vice President, Business
	Development, Public & Private & INS
Hans Martin Mærsk-Møller	Product Manager
Dina Myrup Raabjerg	Senior Manager Business Development

Three Key informants were interviewed, see below their position in the firm:

3.2.1.2. Qualitative research

The qualitative research followed had both an exploratory and explanatory aspect, in other words it aimed to situate the company's market selection process and their market positioning and evaluate the importance of certain perceptual aspects within the process, it was an important step into defining the variables and their weights.

The guide was split into different sections, each of them covering a specific dimension and underly several objectives: The first section, covered the history of internationalization of the firm, in order to apprehend how the company approached new markets, the decision makers expertise, the main drivers, the challenges and issues faced, in addition to the future expectations, a second section tried to draw the perceptions that the decision makers have regarding the Cicero LMS product and its market, with respect to competitiveness, market positioning and level of market knowledge. A third section identified the strategic objectives set by the company that motivate an IMS and evaluated the company's readiness and flexibility to commit resources, and the capabilities that it might exploit to create opportunities, in addition to the management's motivations to enter new markets. A last section displayed the list of countries suggested for the research and evaluated the management feel with respect to potential entries, (*See Table 10*).

Interview duration	n 90-120 min				
Introduction	Thank you for accepting to have this interview w My name is soufiane, I'm currently collaborating Your organization's management today, is keen knowledge on the current situation inside the cor	ith me, and for your precious time Mr/Madam with Systematic to address one of its strategic issues. In further expand its main Learning and Ibrary product (Cicero LMS) to other viable markets, this interview will help us to get more appany, and your actual perceptions and expectations with respect to that, and of course will allow me to address more accurately the issue			
0.00	P. LOU.				
Section	Kesearch Objectives Understand how the company approached	Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the commany 2			
Position and background	environment for the company approaches evaluate the decision makers (Key informants) expertise identify the main drivers for internationalization identify the challenges and issues faced during the internationalization process • Draw The future expectations	• Your business position (title)? How hong have you been working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular? • What education do you have (technical, economical, legal, managerial,)? • Have you grown up / lived abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you studied abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have you worked with a foreign company before?			
Internationalization history		 • What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? • Why di Systematic go internationally? • Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? Who was involved? • What market did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Sweden/Greenland) • Can you tell me in more details how this entry started (Sweden/Greenland)? • What market did you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? • How would you describe your role in each market entry? Contribution? • What was mole them in challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general? through this market entry? <i>Probe on: Costs, company culture, personal efforts</i> • How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why? <i>Probe on: Costs, company culture, personal efforts</i> • How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why? <i>Probe on: Competition Market hare, Business network, Plan to expand</i> • In general, how does it exactly work when you win a tender (with respect to the project implementation)? • Probe on: Costrue allocation, Taem condination? Recruitment, Pattnership (Home/Host country), Outsourcing • Do you expect a change in the way the company approach new markets? Why is that? • Systematic operates in an industry ruled by tenders, do you believe it to be the only way to enter new markets? If not, what other ways do you think of? • Now, do you believe and feel confident that you will be able to gather whatever necessary resources? • Noy, do you heleve so rune chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms? What make you say that? • Do you heleve on have its sort to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) • Do you heleve on th			
Market and product status	 Understand the perceptions that the decision makers have regarding their product, the Cicero LMS and its demand: The satisfaction level, the competition, the market positioning, and the level of market knowledge 	 Product: How many years have you been marketing Cicero LMS in the Danish market? Other market? What is the main direct competition for the Cicero product? Do you believe your solution has something that the competition lack of? Does it have to be updated often? How sensitive do you believe is the demand for Cicero with respect to price, quality and trends? What about your main competition, do they have the same sensitivity? Do you think your product is suitable for the actual needs in the market? Why? Is it essential (not just desirable) for the Cicero use by the key customer to have any specific technology, attributes or surrounding industries? <i>Proba on: Electricity, public utilities, telecommunications, a specific industry</i> Will the information supplied by the client be of a complex nature? Will this lead to an intense interaction during the production of the service? Does the Cicero LMS require that the client take part as a member of the team producing the service and thus will contribute directly to the work? Does It require a close monitoring from the client? What type of interaction does the Cicero LMS require with the client? (Person to person, group interaction, joint workingetc.) Vantet: What type of marker: No bus bay our baleve the Cicero LMS product would be easy to initiate by potential competitors in new markets? No pour baleve the Cicero LMS product would be easy to initiate by potential competitors with the product? what is the reason for that, what missing? Do you think that the market flammad, that wight affect the Cicero sales, in the near/Mid future? What syour approximate market share on both market? Do you think that the market flammad, triegenal considers your offering superior to that of the competition? Why? Do you think that the market flammad, the wight affect the Cicero sales, in the nearket fore t			
Objectives of the international market selection	 Identify the strategic objective(s) set by the company that motivate its IMS Evaluate the company readiness and flexibility to commit resources, and the capabilities that it might exploit to create opportunities 	 Selecting and entering a new foreign market, implies that there is a pursuit of benefit by you and by your company. Each market will most likely provide a different benefit. According to you what are those goals? Probe on: Obtain Sales, Ongoing sales growth, increase the market share, Increase the international corporate image, acquiring new learning, disposing of a product no longer attractive in other markets, increase product profitability, Channel the excess of capacity, Minimizing efforts (Quantity and quality of resources). Does Sectionation have same complicities the differentiate in the markets increase product profitability. Channel the excess of capacity, Minimizing efforts (Quantity and quality of resources). 			
Company SCA		- Loves systematic new source capationness that universitation in 1000 other competitors or give advantage in a sustainable way (SCA)? Probe on: Innovation, brand recognition, Product quality, Financial strength, Human resourcesetc.			

Management motivation and commitment	 Identify the management motivations and competencies to enter new markets and potential barriers 	 Do you believe that the stuff involved in looking for markets for the Cicero LMS have enough knowledge on the library business and perfectly understand the librarians? What kind of competencies do you believe night add more value to the task of looking for new market within your team? Do you believe all the involved stuff have enough international experience to cope with different market settings? Are the persons involved in finding new market have this task as their primary focus or it is not a priority on their overall duties? I mean for instance giving a person the task to focus on a specific market and dig specifically into that one? would that make any difference in your approach to new markets? What would you define as a risk factor in entering new markets for Systematic? Are you Keen a new market? How about the rest of the stuff? Do you benefit from the other business units knowledge? Why not? Would that be of use?
International market screening competencies		 Did you proceed to any market research (besides satisfaction) with respect to the librarians' perception of the market offers (especially your product), their motivation and needs, in other words, an exploratory research to be closer on what the key decision makers are exactly thinking of? either in the respective market, you are already present in or in other potential markets you were considering? If not, why? Have you conducted any international market research with respect to the Cicero product? Before proceeding to an in-depth market screening, where it comes to market research and primary data analysis, a broader screening is done in order to shorter the list of candidate market worth the in-depth analysis, do you conduct international market screening (as distinct from in-depth) research? Do you collect and use only secondary data on markets (as distinct from using primary data)? What specific parameters do you use? variables? Yes / No What scaling method do you follow to assign weights?
Country selection view	Evaluate the management feel with respect to potential entries	 Is there any internal constraint with respect to systematic that might be considered as a No-go condition? Try and name any foreign markets which you have seriously explored the possibility of beginning to enter during the last two years What would be the next suitable country to expand for the Cicero product? Why do you believe that? Name the five top one.

Table 10 - Interview guide

The qualitative research involved an individual in-depth interview with each of the key informants, the interviews has been held via a skype session that lasted between 90 and 120 minutes and has been tape-recorded for later interpretation. Some follow-up questions were sent by email to two of the key informants, since they had a time constraint and could not afford to dedicate more time to the interview, (*See appendix 8*).

3.2.1.3. Scaling form: Complementary quantitative form to the qualitative research

It only involved a form that was addressed to the same three key informants interviewed:

Domain expertise	Name
VP Sales Group Senior Vice President, Business	Flemming Bent Thomsen
Development, Public & Private & INS	
Product Manager	Hans Martin Mærsk-Møller
Senior Manager Business Development	Dina Myrup Raabjerg

Table 11 - Key informants

The form aimed to scale the management perceptions in order to be able to integrate them into the fuzzy expert system: All questions were addressed with respect to each country market present on the list.

The form was developed using Google Forms, a user-friendly online survey tool that allows an easy design and an easy collection of the answers and provides the necessary options to build a valid form. The form was designed according to the perceptual questions, that was based partially from the literature and the insights of the three interviews, (Marchi et al. 2014).

It included 22 questions, each of those questions was displayed as a grid ranging from 1 to 10 for each respective country, 1 being the lowest scale and 10 the highest.

An additional form was developed using Microsoft Excel and addressed to the three interviewees in order to get their own expertise on the weights that should be assigned to the parameters of the system, acknowledging the fact that there are no compromises on the definition of the IMS parameters' weights within the literature, the assignment is clearly case specific and needed the knowledge of the filed experts. This allowed to increase the accuracy and relevance of the system built, as previously mentioned on the weighting section (*See 3.1.2.3 System' weight*).

3.2.1. Secondary data

The objective parameters of the model were based on secondary data gathered from different statistical sources.

Secondary data is mainly data that have been collected by other researchers and organizations and might have been done for other research topics than the one investigated.

This thesis based its sources on the most reliable one, that belong to highly recognized organizations and statistical sources such as: OECD, ONU, UNESCO, CIA Factbook, IFM, European commission, World bank, etc. (*See Appendices 9 and 10 for sources and dataset*). As for the data collected, not all information regarding the countries listed were available, and in order to be possible to integrate all data in the model without biases of the result, the missing data was assigned a medium variation under the respective membership, to have less or no impact on the system output.

In addition, the following parameters were qualified before being added to the dataset (*See appendices 11, 12,13 and 14*):

- Level of competition: The assessment of the countries where each competitor is present in, consequently identifying for each country the number of competitors operating in it. However, the variables level of competition was solely based on the global overview and not the local one, with help of the brand manager of systematic and Breed marshal's guidelines, which does not give a quite accurate assessment of the situation but is unfortunately the only way to assess the competition, considering the resource in hand.

- **Cultural differences**: The Use of the following formula of to calculate the distance based on the six cultural dimensions of Hofstede, (Morosini, Shane, and Singh 1998)
- **Number of public libraries**: Due to difference on the methods used to assess number of libraries, three reliable sources were used and only the most recent data was used for each country.
- **The subjective variables (Perceptual)**: Each of the six parameters used, have been computed as an average score of the items it contains.

3.2.2. Validity and reliability of the data

3.2.2.1. The Interviews and the constructs operationalization The individual in-depth interviews represented a crucial part on the building of the system and the thesis as a whole, the insights extracted were used as a base to generate the questions that operationalized the constructs needed. Since those constructs such as product alignment or psychic distance could not be measured or observed directly (*See Table 6 above*). A form that addressed those constructs enabled to have an approximation of which value will correspond to the actual perceptions if those were expressed on a metric scale (continuous rating) from 1 to 10. This Data was essential since it represented the subjective variables of the model.

As for the qualitative research interviews, it has a number of issues that can be related to the objectivity, confirmability, reliability, validity, credibility, and the list goes on. The idea is whether the final findings are actually good or not, the fact that the method and tactics used were good enough is not a guarantee of having good findings, (Miles and Huberman 1994). In this research, the main concerns are reliability and validity of the findings draw from the interviews:

- Reliability: Data was collected from three different executives in the company, which occupy different positions. The same topics and constructs were covered with all three interviewees.
- Validity: The descriptions were meaningful with respect to the context of the study, the answers seemed convincing and plausible among the three interviewees, and no contradictions were noticed although some uncertain points, (Miles and Huberman 1994).

As for the measurements used, it also has a reliability and a validity issue, usually different approach can be followed in order to verify the reliability of the measurement used, such as

using two different scaling method for the topic under investigation and see whether they agree or not, (Schmidt and Hollensen 2006). In this research, this could not be done as the respondent have limited time and could not proceed to fill the form twice, in addition, the form was relatively long and demanding. Concerning the validity, to judge if the measures are actually measuring the right construct, and minimize the risk of measuring the wrong construct, for each construct it incorporated questions related to different sub-constructs.

3.2.2.2. Secondary data tradeoff choice

The collection of secondary data faces a tradeoff between its advantages and disadvantages (*See Table 12 below*), shedding the lights on the validity and reliability of the secondary data.

Advantages	Disadvantages
Quick way of obtaining data	Collected for some other purposes
Low cost	No control over data collection
Less effort expended	May not be accurate
Less time taken	May not be reported in the required form
Sometimes more accurate than primary data	May be outdated
Some information can be obtained only	May not meet data requirements
	A number of assumptions have to be made

Table 12 - Advantages and disadvantages of secondary data, (Schmidt and Hollensen 2006 : 16)

"To determine the reliability the researcher must answer the following questions:

- What was the purpose of the study?
- Who collected the information?
- What information was collected?
- How was the information collected?
- *How consistent is the information with other sources?* ", (Schmidt and Hollensen 2006: 17-19).

Most of the secondary data used for this research was collected from reliable organizations that which employed consistent teams of professional experts within their respective fields (*See sources on appendices 10*).

The data needed was mostly of macro-economic and geographic nature that matched the purpose of the study. Each organization displayed the method of collection and the number of limitations, in addition, most data was verified through multiple sources and displayed more or less similar values, with slight differences, that are usually due to the methodology used, but it did not show any big gap or high proportion of outliers.

However, some limitations were faced that we will address later, on the chapter 5.

3.2.2.1. Data Normalization

Through the collection of the secondary data, an important challenge was faced, which is the difference of data values and ranges from variable to variable. This was important with respect to the ability to integrate these differences into the system configuration, and thus, difficult to process without a high risk of errors. Another difficulty was to define the memberships of an aggregated variable, that is composed of different indicators that are express in whole different measures. Therefore, the solution was to Normalize the data in order to have a common range, that frame the value between 0 and 1, following the common normalization formula:

Normalized Value = (Original Value - Minimum value in the distribution) / (Maximum value in the distribution - Minimum value in the distribution)

3.2.2.2. Data triangulation and data approximation

Data triangulation was used as a mean to extract information from different sources, that has either a date issue or absence of data, for instance for the variable number of libraries, three sources of data were crossed in order to extract the most significant values.

When faced with absence of values for some countries, and their absence on all sources used, a value was assigned based on the Mean of the related distribution (This was done to avoid the influence of the missing data on the system, a mean value is addressed as a neutral one and has weak impact on the outcome), with consideration of similarities to other countries to keep a realistic value estimation.

Chapter 4: Data analysis and discussion

4.1. Data analysis and main findings

After running the Fuzzy expert system on the 31 preselected countries, the following score ranking was achieved, displaying total and partial scores, which rank each country based on all the defined parameters of the system that were exhaustively detailed on chapter 3, giving us an overview of which countries to focus on, which countries to consider and whish countries to avoid for the time being or at least to put in the bottom of the priorities, the scores have a value within a range of [0 - 1]:

Ranking	Country 💌	Management Perception Score 💌	Public Library Potential Score 💌	Market Attractiveness Score 💌	Country attractiveness Score 💌	Country Selection Score 🚚
1	Australia	0,8523	0,8443	0,6468	0,6367	0,7611
2	UK	0,7123	0,8693	0,4636	0,1322	0,5930
3	Latvia	0,5000	0,5240	0,7672	0,7606	0,4729
4	Czech Republic	0,1445	0,5244	0,4638	0,4728	0,4729
5	Malaysia	0,5000	0,5197	0,3774	0,4712	0,4728
6	Romania	0,5000	0,5194	0,4646	0,4694	0,4728
7	Netherlands	0,5000	0,8450	0,5035	0,1340	0,4727
8	Germany	0,5000	0,8428	0,5151	0,4724	0,4727
9	Canada	0,1679	0,8536	0,4651	0,4725	0,4726
10	France	0,1731	0,8513	0,5068	0,4725	0,4725
11	Iceland	0,5000	0,5000	0,6353	0,4407	0,4724
12	Finland	0,5000	0,8263	0,1332	0,1524	0,4723
13	Ireland	0,5000	0,1829	0,6568	0,6718	0,4706
14	Switzerland	0,5000	0,6678	0,4648	0,2743	0,2153
15	Luxembourg	0,7123	0,1763	0,4650	0,2720	0,1670
16	Sweden	0,5000	0,6046	0,1357	0,1321	0,1432
17	Morocco	0,5000	0,5248	0,4648	0,2092	0,1426
18	Croatia	0,1731	0,1802	0,4648	0,4723	0,1350
19	Poland	0,5000	0,5225	0,2144	0,1643	0,1340
20	Qatar	0,5000	0,1762	0,2144	0,1642	0,1340
21	Tunisia	0,5000	0,1765	0,1510	0,1599	0,1332
22	Austria	0,5000	0,5246	0,1258	0,1573	0,1328
23	USA	0,1583	0,5000	0,4651	0,1322	0,1324
24	Algeria	0,5000	0,5000	0,4646	0,1526	0,1320
25	Belgium	0,5000	0,5314	0,1352	0,1322	0,1315
26	Egypt	0,5000	0,5222	0,2144	0,1473	0,1311
27	United Arab Emirates	0,5000	0,1768	0,2144	0,1473	0,1311
28	Norway	0,5000	0,5252	0,5581	0,1455	0,1308
29	Singapore	0,5000	0,1465	0,5035	0,4725	0,1304
30	Monaco	0,5000	0,1761	0,5275	0,1388	0,1297
31	New Zealand	0,8837	0,1825	0,4647	0,1348	0,1293

Table 13 - IMS Countries' ranking scores

Following this ranking we can differentiate between four level of interest that discriminate between countries of high potential and countries of low potential, according to their respective scores, this was an arbitrary judgement based on the distribution of the resulted scores, this separation can be refined according to the results achieved later when applied to a new set of countries or a new refinement of the settings.

In addition, the partial scores (management perception, public library potential, market attractiveness, and country attractiveness scores), could be used to isolate a candidate country and decide accordingly if it is worth investigating although it might have a low total score.

All result considered, and with respect to this specific case company, the countries worth investigating as a priority were: **Australia and UK**. Those two countries should be a target of more in depth analysis and primary market research.

Followed by countries with a quite good potential: Latvia, Czech Republic, Malaysia, Romania, Netherlands, Germany, Canada, France, Iceland, Finland and Ireland.

Then comes countries with lesser priority: Switzerland and Luxembourg.

The rest of the country list is to be avoided for the time being, as countries with a very low attractiveness: Sweden, Morocco, Croatia, Poland, Qatar, Tunisia, Austria, USA, Algeria, Belgium, Egypt, United Arab Emirates, Norway, Singapore, Monaco, New Zealand.

Through these findings we can notice that the 13 first countries with high scores, are not only those that are supposed to be rich countries or neighboring ones. Running through the Data (*See appendix 9*), All those countries represent in addition to good macroeconomic indicators and political stability, a good combination of specific indicators related to public library market, namely, the Number of libraries, the number of users and the spending on public libraries. This finding partially gets in line with the management assumptions expressed during the interviews, regarding the countries that they perceived as to be of first choices: **Netherlands, United Kingdom and Finland**.

These three countries were expressed to be of high interest to the company as future target markets, although the other top score markets have shown high potentials. These relatively reassure the expressed choice of the company and give them a well-founded base, therefore implying less risk into processing those countries further (**H1 and H2**). On top of that, the company should also consider other candidates from the top score list and accordingly make a tradeoff to whom the priority will be given.

However, two other countries mentioned by the management as a good potential target markets, achieved a really low scores, respectively, New Zealand and Norway. This could be explained by the following assumption based on some of the indicators:

Country 🔽	Entry barriers computer services 🔽	Number of public	level of competition 💌
Norway	0,2700	740	8
Newzealand	0,1800	314	2

Table 14 - Norway and New Zealand indicators

Accordingly, Norway shows a high entry barrier in term of IT services, and a low Number of public libraries compared to the other countries, in addition, to a strong presence of the competitors. Same goes for New Zealand with respect to the entry barriers and the number of public libraries in the country.

Moreover, some countries could be perceived of high potential at first sight, as they are rich countries or represent a high proximity and cultural similarity with Denmark (The company case' country of origin), Such us for instance Sweden. Nevertheless, through the interviews, the company stated that it has business in Sweden, although not as the whole presented software solution but more as an upgrade service. Furthermore, the company stated that according to their estimations, the market was not worth a full entry or an expansion, in addition, the other types of libraries besides the public ones would be very costly and not worth the total investment and risks.

As for the other countries in the same section (4th level of interest) that have been flagged to be avoided, although they seem convenient, they all achieved low scores in many important indicators, and this should be taken into consideration while making the final decision.

All that said, these insights should be interpreted carefully as their relevance can be very much influenced by the quality of the data and the different rule base interactions. However, this interpretation could make a good argument, if we consider the fact, that the company case had an unsuccessful tender regarding the Norwegian public library market, and a costly to exploit Swedish market in one hand, in the other hand is having ongoing tenders with respect to Netherland and a prospective approach with respect to the UK.

Therefore, we can assume that the Fuzzy expert system, showed a good ability to reflect the management assumptions, based on a more founded logic, approaching the issue differently but keeping aligned with the strategic thinking.

4.2. Discussion and managerial implications

The FES will be a good tool for International market selection, and an additional support to define the most suitable market to enter for Systematic. Giving a base of the pre-requisites and the key-criteria's that define a right target (*See chapter 3*) in a handy way, which means that these criteria are a solid base that can be shaped and given specific weight according to the experiential knowledge and to the strategic importance to the firm. In addition, the

flexibility of the system gives room for a better fine tuning, with the ability to add more criteria or to redefine the initial ones. Ultimately, it allows to build a continuous analysis, by feeding new data and new parameters to the system.

The FES displayed a network of interactions between a number of parameters, linked to each other's. It implies that the strength of the model lies in the definition of those links. The system is a tool, that if used properly may be of good help in term of decision making and risk aversion.

This is important as it maintain a consistent logic for the managers and allow to follow a more formal analysis than one based on solely intuition, risking missing relevant influential parameters. In addition, it allows to avoid any cognitive distortions that are usually present among the decision-making process. While allowing to take into account the firms objectives, constraints and priorities

One of the perks of this system, is also the possibility to target specific scores and dig for more answers according to specific partial results, it is also easy to read which of the parameters had important influence accordingly. Moreover, the use of the knowledge cumulated from prior analysis will be an important way to reshape the Model tree and the initial settings into a more accurate and relevant tool.

The final results will be of help in shaping the next steps, in terms of deep market research and strategy development, avoiding the money spill and focusing the effort into the worthy targets. Thus, helping to build the appropriate market entry strategy and giving the management more valuable decisions and lower risks of missing the right opportunities.

The management will have in hand a tool that allow to involve quantitative and qualitative aspect into their decision-making process, meaning that they can capitalize on both the secondary data and their experiential knowledge, using a systematic approach to narrow down their set of choices. As well as it may provide a high degree of flexibility that encompasses the firm strategic orientation and constraints, allowing the managers to reshape the system in ways that servs better their new objectives.

The management as well could target exactly which secondary data to invest time and money on gathering, that would be of relevance, moreover, the management can be more cost effective in preparing the in-depth market research that follows using the countries selected and the insights achieved.

4.3. Research limitations

The thesis work has been done with all the possible resources in hand, however, it faced some challenges that influenced the overall quality of the results, although it does not weaken the core of the thesis which is the IMS process studied.

In other words, if those limitations could be fixed, the tool will bring to light better results and for sure more relevancy and consistency to the company. Those limitations are listed below:

External validity: The final ranking was supposed to be submitted to the firm's management, however for some internal reasons, the project wasn't meant to be completed. This would have been a good insight source to orient the robustness and the alignment of the FES with the ongoing decisions and the firm's strategic endeavor. If the final choice and entry strategy follows the model results, better conclusion on the model robustness could be achieved.

The Model: Shows a good robustness with respect to the changes occurring when the parameters' related Data changes. However, it reveals a high sensitivity when it comes to changes in the settings of the system composition, rules and relationships, which is a good sign but in the same time a risky game, because a slight unbalance on the settings or an underestimation of some parameters might shift the accuracy and relevance of the outcome. In the other hand, the model should be applied to different company cases and a larger number to determine its flexibility and adaptability to different contexts, and its relevance for the IMS and its decision process.

Managerial Trade-offs: The results might point top scorer countries, But the difficulty to evaluate the trade-offs remain in the hand of the managers, to identify the favorite option(s). **Data Issues**: Most probably one of the biggest challenges for the IMS, which is also very important for the FES, as in these thesis work, many data issues were faced, thus making the final results weaker and completely depending on the quality of the inputs. Although this work emphasizes more the tool developed itself than the content. some of those challenges faced were:

- The availability of the data, many countries lack of data for some indicators, or the data is not updated as it should be.
- Due to absence of the secondary data for some variables, a tradeoff was made to eliminate them, although their contribution might have been of upmost importance.
 For instance, a variable such as National investment priorities, is a parameter very

difficult to assess even though some country reports mention which sectors are of priority, the importance of the sector remain not detailed and clear with respect to which extent it invests or expect to invest on the public library sector. In addition, not all countries display this information and there is a lot literature and reports to read thoroughly, which is highly time consuming with low odds to assess accurately the priority level. A work that might be done with a larger resource from the company toward this research.

- When facing a hole in a data distribution: for instance all countries related data was extracted for a specific variable, but only a couple of countries remained missing. The missing information were estimated, because an empty cell would impact the processing into the FES. The estimation was mainly arbitrary based either on an average score of the distribution (to not affect the system) or adjusted to a close value that a similar market has, when two countries have a high degree of similarity in all other variables.
- Some variables have different ways of assessment, for each country, which means that there might be a gap between values due to the methodology of assessment, for instance variables such number of public libraries, according to Systematic manager's experience in the field, the number of libraries depend on the calculation method, most libraries have a structure, where there is a "head" library (as it is called by the Cicero LMS terminology), this structure is called agency. Under the control of the head library, there is usually a number of branches, the number of libraries will depend on if you count or not the branches as libraries. Furthermore, libraries might have small collections in prisons, in schools, at the dentist, at the kinder garden... if they are also counted as libraries then the assessment will obviously vary.

Definition of the weights: Only three managers assigned weights to the defined variables, a larger involvement would refine clearly the quality of the weighting. As to compound the weights, a simple average score was used, taking the responses of the three interviewees. Furthermore, if the system contains a larger set of variables the weighting would be more difficult for the managers or the experts, and this is an important limitation, to consider on the first stages of the variables definition.

The follow up form: the form used to scale the perceptual insights, is a heavy form that tries to capture on a scale of 1 to 10 the perceptions expressed, to be used as proxies later. However, the length of the form is a considerable influence on the quality and the judgement of the person filling the form. Since each question is directed with respect to each country in the list, longer the list longer the form, therefore less accurate are the answers. Furthermore, scaling a qualitative variable is a sensitive operation, the values extracted are for sure not as accurate as the quantitative ones. Especially that compounding the results, was a simple averaging of the items for the three gathered answers. With some challenges, that are either the absence of some answers or a steady repetition of values in some situation, that might reflect the person loss of interest on the form, due most likely to its length. For that reason, the averaged result didn't consider the non-answers as a zero value, which influenced again the quality of the overall result and would be better tuned if we achieved a higher response rate. As for the Google form, it has a limitation of the format of displaying the questions, making it heavy, since each question was with respect to 31 country, which could be better done with more sophisticated survey tools.

The FES settings: The system itself is very sensitive to how the settings are made, this is an important part, that should be taken seriously by the management in order to give a realistic base of processing the inputs, more the settings are close to the reality more the system is able to give relevant outcomes. Which gave many challenges with respect to the definition of:

- The ranges: Defining what is low and what is high, depend on the values of the distribution in each parameter, which means that with a larger set of countries there will be a different distribution, therefore, point of variation of the ranges might shift. And thus, should be adapted every time accordingly. The same goes, when the data is updated, since the distribution change.
- The rule bases: identifying the right interaction between variables is demanding and sensitive and should be a work that involve different managers, experts and consultants.

Interviewees number: The number of managers interviewed was limited to three persons, for collaboration constraints related to the company. Which should be mentioned, as the quality of the feedbacks (qualitative interviews, Perceptual scaling and weight assignment) would increase substantially with more managers and experts involved.

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Implications

5.1. Conclusion

The International market selection is obviously a very delicate and complex aspect of international business. Its critical role in defining the entry strategy, make the approach used for the selection, a very important step if not a crucial one.

Widely studied by the literature, the approaches and methods were always lacking some practical translation into the real business contexts. This thesis work is another attempt to approach a more formal solution that goes a little bit beyond the normative and conceptual studies and try to capture a practical process in a specific business context.

Underneath this work, is the basic idea of testing a reshaped model of international market selection, a model that have been investigated by researchers such us Marchi et al. 2014. The findings answer properly the research question submitted for this work and confirm consequently the hypothesis formulated. Thus, provide an appropriate and more formal way to assess the markets attractiveness and a tool to prevent costly decisions. In addition, to giving room for more research in the field, and putting lights on both the quality of the data to be gathered and the processes used to analyze it.

This work also includes the limitations encountered in the achievement of the final findings and the managerial implications that might be of importance for practical applications. Moreover, suggestions for further future research were also developed in order to keep this topic under investigation and open other aspect that could be of added value to the literature and the managerial business applications.

To Sum up, I agree with what some of the authors mentioned in their article: "The process is the core of the model. The content follows" (Marchi et al. 2014).

5.2. Implication for future research

Other type of analysis could be applied, and cross checked with the actual results and model. Two analysis might be of interest, clustering analysis, in order to develop cluster of countries with similar patterns which could be a good proxy to confirm the model results. Or multiple discriminate analysis that might give insights in how the final result of the model actually trace us back to the elements influencing the construction of the patterns that leaded to such a grouping.

The same process of IMS could be also applied to different other industries, firms' sizes and different strategic orientations. In order to increase the validity of the process and create adjustable models for practical use.

The building of the model also implies a tight collaboration between the designer of the model and the management, which is a challenge in knowledge sharing, which means that investigating the process of collaboration and the resources involved might be of use in developing effective future models.

References

- Alexander, Nicholas, Mark Rhodes, and Hayley Myers. 2007. "International Market Selection: Measuring Actions Instead of Intentions" edited by R. G. Java. *Journal of Services Marketing* 21(6):424–34.
- Andersen, O. and A. Buvik. 2002. "Firms' Internationalization and Alternative Approaches to the International Customer/Market Selection." *International Business Review* 11(3):347– 63.
- Andersen, Otto. 1997. "Internationalization and Market Entry Mode: A Review of Theories and Conceptual Frameworks." *Management International Review* 37(2):27–42.
- Anderson, James C., Hakan Hakansson, and Jan Johanson. 1994. "Dyadic Business Relationships within a Business Network Context." *Journal of Marketing* 58(4):1.
- Brewer, Paul. 2001. "International Market Selection: Developing a Model from Australian Case Studies." *International Business Review* 10(2):155–74.
- Brøchner-Mortensen, Martin. n.d. "Access to a World of Content with the Joint National Library Solution for Public Libraries and School Libraries in Denmark."
- Bryman, A. and E. Bell. 2015. Business Research Methods.
- Calof, Jonathan L. and Paul W. Beamish. 1995. "Adapting to Foreign Markets: Explaining Internationalization." *International Business Review* 4(2):115–31.
- Cantwell, John and Rajneesh Narula. 2003. International Business and the Eclectic Paradigm: Developing the OLI Framework.
- Cavusgil, S. Tame. 1985. "Guidelines for Export Market Research." *Business Horizons* 28(6):27–33.
- Cavusgil, S. Tamer, Tunga Kiyak, and Sengun Yeniyurt. 2004. "Complementary Approaches to Preliminary Foreign Market Opportunity Assessment: Country Clustering and Country Ranking." *Industrial Marketing Management* 33(7):607–17.
- Cavusgil, Tamer S., Gary A. Knight, and John R. Riesenberger. 2012. *International Business: The New Realities*. 2nd ed., I. edited by G. Knight and J. R. Riesenberger. Boston: Pearson.

Coviello, Nicole E. and Hugh J. Munro. 1995. "Growing the Entrepreneurial Firm." European
Journal of Marketing 29(7):49–61.

- Douglas, S. P., C. C. Samuel, and W. J. Keegan. 1982. "Approaches to Assessing Interna-Tional Marketing Opportunities for Small and Medium Sized Companies." *Columbia Journal of World Business* 17(3):26–32.
- Dunning, John H. n.d. "Location and the Multinational Enterprise: John Dunning's Thoughts on Receiving the "Journal of International Business Studies" 2008 Decade Award." *Journal of International Business Studies* 40:20–34.
- Dunning, John H. 2003. "The Eclectic (OLI) Paradigm of International Production: Past, Present and Future." International Business and the Eclectic Paradigm: Developing the OLI Framework 8(2):21–39.
- Dunning, John H. 1988. "The Eclectic Paradigm of International Production: A Restatement and Some Possible Extensions." *Journal of International Business Studies* 19(1):1–31.
- Ellis, Paul. 2000. "Social Ties and Foreign Market Entry." *Journal of International Business Studies* 31(3):443–69.
- Farrell, Patrick N. O. and Peter A. Wood. 1994. "International Market Selection by Business Service Firms : Key Conceptual and Methodological Issues." *Elsevier* 3(3):243–61.
- Gorecka, Dorota; Szalucka, Malporzata. 2013. "Country Market Selection in International Expansion Using Multicriteria." *Multiple Criteria Decision Making* 8.
- Hill, Charles W. L., Peter Hwang, and W. Chan Kim. 1990. "An Eclectic Theory of the Choice of International Entry Mode." *Strategic Management Journal* 11(2):117–28.
- Hisrich, R. D. 2012. International Entrepreneurship: Starting, Developing, and Managing a Global Venture: Starting, Developing, and Managing a Global Venture.
- Hollendsen, Svend. 2011. Global Marketing. 5th editio. Pearson.
- Johanson, Jan and Jan-Erik Vahlne. 1977. "The Internationalization Process of the Firm—A Model of Knowledge Development and Increasing Foreign Market Commitments." *Journal of International Business Studies* 8(1):23–32.
- Johanson, Jan and Jan-Erik Vahlne. 1990. "The Mechanism of Internationalisation." International Marketing Review 7(4):02651339010137414.

Johanson, Jan and Jan Erik Vahlne. 2009. "The Uppsala Internationalization Process Model

Revisited: From Liability of Foreignness to Liability of Outsidership." *Journal of International Business Studies* 40(9):1411–31.

Knight, Gary A. and Peter W. Liesch. 2016. "Internationalization: From Incremental to Born Global." *Journal of World Business* 51(1):93–102.

Kotler, Philip and Kevin Lane Keller. 2012. Marketing Management, 14th Edition.

- Kumar, V., Antonie Stam, and Erich a Joachimsthaler. 1994. "An Interactive Multicriteria Approach to Identifying Potential Foreign Markets." *Journal of International Marketing* 2(1):29–52.
- Magnani, Giovanna, Antonella Zucchella, and Dinorá Eliete Floriani. 2018. "The Logic behind Foreign Market Selection: Objective Distance Dimensions vs. Strategic Objectives and Psychic Distance." *International Business Review* 27(1):1–20.
- Marchi, Gianluca, Marina Vignola, Gisella Facchinetti, and Giovanni Mastroleo. 2014.
 "International Market Selection for Small Firms: A Fuzzy-Based Decision Process." *European Journal of Marketing* 48(11/12):2198–2212.
- Miles, Matthew B. and A. M. Huberman. 1994. *Qualitative Data Analysis : An Expanded Sourcebook*. Sage Publications.
- Morosini, Piero, Scott Shane, and Harbir Singh. 1998. "National Cultural Distance and Cross-Border Acquisition Performance." *Journal of International Business Studies* 29(1):137– 58.
- O'Farrell, P. N. and L. A. R. Moffat. 1991. "An Interaction Model of Business Service Production and Consumption." *British Journal of Management* 2(4):205–21.
- Papadopoulos, N., Hongbin Chen, and D. R. Thomas. 2002. "Toward a Tradeoff Model for International Market Selection." *International Business Review* 11(2):165–92.
- Papadopoulos, Nicolas and Jean-Emile Denis. 1988. "International Marketing Review Inventory, Taxonomy and Assessment of Methods for International Market Selection." *International Marketing Review International Marketing Review* 5(2):208–38.
- Papadopoulos, Nicolas and Oscar Martín Martín. 2011. "International Market Selection and Segmentation: Perspectives and Challenges." *International Marketing Review* 28(2):132–49.

- Rahman, Syed H. 2003. "Modelling of International Market Selection Process: A Qualitative Study of Successful Australian International Businesses." *Qualitative Market Research: An International Journal* 6(2):119–32.
- Root, Franklin R. 1994. *Entry Strategies for International Markets*. Lexington books Lexington, MA.
- Russow, Lloyd C. and Sam C. Okoroafo. 1996. "On the Way towards Developing a Global Screening Model." *International Marketing Review* 13(1):46–64.
- Saleh, Ibrahim and Seong in Kim. 2009. "A Fuzzy System for Evaluating Students' Learning Achievement." *Expert Systems with Applications* 36(3 PART 2):6236–43.
- Schmidt, MJ and S. Hollensen. 2006. Marketing Research: An International Approach.
- Snehota, I. and H. Hakansson. 1995. Developing Relationships in Business Networks.
- Solberg, Carl Arthur and Vidar Askeland. 2006. "The Relevance of Internationalization Theories: A Contingency Framework." Pp. 9–32 in *Managerial Issues in International Business*. London: Palgrave Macmillan UK.
- Vahlne, Jan-Erik and Jan Johanson. 2013. "The Uppsala Model on Evolution of the Multinational Business Enterprise – from Internalization to Coordination of Networks." *International Marketing Review* 30(3):189–210.
- De Vaus, David A. 2005. "Research Design in Social Research." Research. Apc. Org 9.
- Welch, Lawrence S. and Reijo Luostarinen. 1988. "Internationalization: Evolution of a Concept." *Journal of General Management* 14(2):34–55.

Appendices All the appendices can be found online in the link below: https://1drv.ms/f/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxiSRPjmAPfSn3Ii

Appendix 1: Cicero LMS Product (Company Brochure) External Link: <u>https://ldrv.ms/b/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyyDMALBRKx4ZOfeC</u>



Approximately 1,500 Danish public libraries and educational learning centres are set to become users of the Joint Library System, which will cover more than 50 million annual loans

THE DANISH JOINT LIBRARY SYSTEM

CICERO LIBRARY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Joint Library System in Denmark is one of the largest of such library systems in the world and the result of dose cooperation between the Danish municipalities. The system covers almost all the Danish municipalities and was developed on the basis of ender requirements defined and developed by a working group consisting of KOMBIT (the joint IT company for Danish municipalities) and regressentatives from the municipal public libraries, educational learning centres, and educational centres in Denmark. Approximately 1:500 Danish public libraries and educational learning centres are set to become users of the Joint Library System, which will cover more than 50 million annual loans.



The Joint Library System is one of the largest projects worldwide within the library sector

TECHNOLOGICAL MODERNISATION CREATES VALUE

This is the first time ever that a single library system is able to cover most of Denmark. This in turn opens up a range of opportunities for the library sector — including big savings:

Joint operations and administration
 Effective support for workflows
 Intuitive, user-friendly solution for patrons as well as staff
 Lower library operating costs for municipalities

4 CICERO LIBRARY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM



The system was built on the basis of requirements stipulated by the Danish municipalities participating in the project

CICERO LIBRARY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Cicero Library Management System is the core of the Joint Library System and is a new tool designed to support workflows in libraries. The system can be integrated with all types of existing solutions for library users.

This scalable system can deal with all the administrative processes associated with library materials throughout their service life. It was designed on the basis of a desire for a unified, transparent, national structure in libraries in Denmark. The system was built on the basis of requirements stipulated by the Danish municipalities participating in the project, but is equally suitable for the administration of all types of libraries and collections of library/teaching materials.





BENEFITS

The Cicero Library Management System was developed with a focus on lower operating costs (savings of up to 30%) and easier administration. The system is based on open standards for use by libraries of all types.

The Cicero Library Management System provides effective support for:

Search for throughout library records
 Search for throughout library materials
 Maintenance of library materials
 Inter-library materials
 Inter-library notes
 Shoking
 Handling library materials
 Administration of loans and fines
 Intagration with accounting systems
 Cataloging
 Generation of statistics
 System administrator tools

The system also provides fundamental improvements and streamlining of staff work procedures.





Appendix 2: Interview Guide – 13 slides External Link: <u>https://ldrv.ms/p/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyyEgIjf_UsE-v6Ji</u>



<pre>Interestionalization listing (2:9): • When show Contained, would give use, yee earent distanced that have the disk is to disk local. • When show Contained, would give use, yee earent distanced that have the earent's (instanced and as it is to ear it is to earent's (instanced and are it is to ear it is to</pre>		
 Whet such a character during the market market market is the showed in some is a submark of development. Whet such a character market market is a submark of development. Whet such a submark is a submark of the market market is a submark of development. Whet such a submark is a submark of development. Whet such a submark is a submark of development. Problem is a submark of development is a submark of development. Problem is a submark of development is a submark of dev	Inte	rnationalization history (2/3):
 a. may suff an innov starting how for smaller and y calculation of the company of the max match of the company of the of the co		What about Grassland would wan sav van antared this market thades to the Swedich and?
 Place exabled exactly due to any "(Braness surveys, Unacked eads of all company field of the company		Vana stoon Creennaa, wotat yoo say, yoo tareed uus maaket umaks of ne Swettan one. Can you tell me in more details how this market entry started (Greenland)?
 Phow nut mobels of the early hands and catled the company? Phow nut mobels of the early hands and catled the company? Phow number of the early hands and catled the company? Phow numbers and hear company position with this marks that \$7(?) Phow numbers and hear company position with this marks that \$7(?) Phow numbers and hear company position with this marks that \$7(?) Phow numbers and hear company position with this marks that \$7(?) Phow numbers and hear company position with this marks that \$7(?) Phow and \$2(*) and \$2(What enabled exactly this entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order,)
 Above reproducting sequences and advances of the new reproduction of the nenewrite of the new		o Who was involved in the entry Inside and outside the company?
 in the criterio needed. <l< td=""><td></td><td> How were potential partners identified/ evaluated? </td></l<>		 How were potential partners identified/ evaluated?
 • Plant surface many hardware your period of factor during the analyse of any off the base starts of any (Fachotecal, Fasae stal., J. • Plant and you describe the company found with the same base analyse of a starts of any (Fachotecal, Fasae stal., J. • Plant and your and the same base were starts of the fasae starts of any (Fachotecal, Fasae stal., J.) • Plant and Company found with the same base and the same starts of the project inplementation)? • Plant and the same starts of an analyse of any (Fachotecal, Fasae stal., J.) • Plant and the same starts of the same starts of the project inplementation)? 		o what criteria were used? o How would you describe some role in this usee worket antro?
 How would you describe the company position within this market douby 'Way'' In general, how does it exactly work when you win a teader (with respect to the project implementation)? Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Protocol or: Protocol or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: Probe or: <		 What was the main challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced through this market entry? (Technical, Financial)
 Probe ar: Competition/Market share, Odd of anccess to tender removal, Croated Bastance server(spec(s)) Is general, here does a cascity work when you win a tender (with respect to the project implementation)? Provementation of the servementation of the company of the content is a content of the project implementation)? Prove represents a minimum for the content is a content in the company approach mere mere starket? Why is that ? Prove represents a minimum for the content is a content in the company approach mere mere starket? Why is that ? Prove represents a minimum for the content is a content in the company is a content in the content is a content in the content is a content in the company approach mere mere starket? Why is that ? Prove represents a minimum for the surger of your them management to make summal montal fifter and be down tend from them montal dutts? Prove represents a minimum for the surger of your start is brank to brank or them and the set of the content is a content if from them mere and the set of the content is a content if from them company and the set of the content is a content if from them company is a content in the company? Prove the content is a content if and your actual proling in the company? Prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove prove the content is a content in the company? Prove prove prove the content is a content in the company? 		How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why?
 Is meaned, how close is exactly work when you wan as hadker (with mespect to the project implementation)? Problem : Pro		o Probe on : Competition/Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify)
 Probe or: Problem or: Product of the second particular deventment Product of the second particular devent deventment Product of the second particular deventment Product of the second particular devent deventment Product of the second particular deventment Product of the second particular devent deventment Product of the second particular deventment <l< td=""><td></td><td>In general, how does it exactly work when you win a tender (with respect to the project implementation)?</td></l<>		In general, how does it exactly work when you win a tender (with respect to the project implementation)?
 A reason contraction discriminant A reason reason disc		o Probe on :
 e. Now contrained in terms of the second process of the second proces of the second proces of the second process of the sec		• Resource allocation
 • Outcomprise • Outcomprise		Icam coordination/ Recruitment Partnershin (Rome Allert country)
 9. Dysequents elemants in the way the company approach new markets? Why is that ?: 9. Dysequents experient in the propertient of the theore, in too be the oally way to eater new markets? If not What oalter ways do you think of? 9. Of the market of the theorem of theorem of the theorem of theorem of the theorem of theorem of theorem of the theorem of th		o Outsoweing
 by spectralic operates in an unbustly nucled by teaders, do you bettere it to be the only way to eater new marked? It not What other ways do you that of? What financial, physical, per sound, and intragible resioners will probably be needed to supply the next foreign maket entry. What financial, physical, per sound, and intragible resioners will probably be needed to supply the next foreign maket entry. O and the source of the the several years will will be able to: O calibre wheneve mecsaary resources? Source of the several years that a break even profitability will require? Key Informants: Position and background / International Exposure • Any no king years and a break even profitability will require? • Bow homes position ways that years that a break even profitability will require? • Bow homes position and background / International Exposure • Calibre wheneve mecsaary venues of the several years that a break even profitability will require? • Bow homes position and background / International Exposure • Any way those been working with Systematic? In this Bastess Unit in particular? • How you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • How you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • Haw you worked aboad? Jyes, where and how long? • What counties are Systematic? International Exposure • What counties are Systematic? International Systematic aboad? • What maket did you are first (yink respect to his BU?) (Novekow Groendami) • What man		Do you expect a change in the way the company approach new markets ? Why is that ?
I when the product of the rever by boundary of the inservative company of the method for snapply the method program where method is a snapply the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method is a snapply of the method program where method		Systematic operates in an infinistry ruled by fenders, do you believe it to be the only way to enter new markets? If not what other ways do you think of? Deadly accurdent (The Juryal of neural entertial accounter a commitment)
 . They a uncertainty imputer from the management or made unusual mental effort and be diverted from their normal dutters . Outer whatever necessary resource? . Outer whatever necessary resource? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Outer whatever necessary resource? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require the several profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? . Statian them for the several years the several profitability will require the several years the several several years the several break dure dure the		The provided of the level of potential resource communitients:
 Now, do you believe sail feel confider in the you will be able 0: : O due whethere measure presentes? Statian them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? Key informants: Position and background / International Exposure Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ? Nor humans partition have ifeed international (Program Company ?) How international activity of the several years that a break-even profitability will require? Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ? How induction of the your with Systematic? In this Bustness Unit in particular? How induction of you grown app / Inved abread? If yes, where and how long? How you grown up / Inved abread? If yes, where and how long? How you work abread work of they your where and how long? How you work abread work of they you work abread work of they? How you work abread work of they you work abread work of they? How you work abread work of they you you have? How an outpress on a strategie / commercial level In other works, who do you balieve is fundamentally responsible of the constry choice? Way dif Systematic? Institute and endanced "they." Way and dify systematic? Institute and abread they? Way and dify systematic? Institute and abread they? Way and dify systematic? Institute and abread they? Way and dify systematic? Institute and they of the company? (Duter Met you work, who do you balieve is fundamentally responsible of the constry choice? How was involved in the entry bratist and carticle the company? (Duter BU, Decision makers, partners) How was involved in the entry bratist and carticle the company? (Duter BU, Decision makers, partners) How was involved in the entry bratis and toticle drive) What make decis		o How a successful market entry will require from the management to make unusual mental effort and be diverted from their normal duties
 Garder whateve meessary resource? Sustain them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? Sustain them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? Key Informants: Position and background / International Exposure Campor briefly present yourself and your scheal position in the company ? Whe industry particular with Systematic? In this Binstees Unit in particular? How you grown up / Inved drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you grown up / Inved drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you grown up / Inved drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How you worked drawnal? If yes, where and how long? How and yes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other works, who do you balieve is fundamentally responsible of the county choice? What and didy ou eff ref (with reagers to his 101/ Sourcedor Greendam) What countries are Systematic? Hearning and lithenty basieses unit in today? What match didy ou eff ref (With reagers that is 101/ Sourcedor Greendam) What match didy ou eff ref (With reagers that is 101/ Sourcedor Greendam) What and didy ou eff ref (With reagers that is 101/ Sourcedor Greendam) What was involved in the entry busiese of duatifies the company? (Other EU, Decision makers, partners) How would you describ do gou effect a source and the orday? NY? How would you describ do gou effect a source and the orday? NY? How would you describ do gou engage fies So		Now, do you believe and feel confident that you will be able to :
 Statut them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require? Key informants: Position and background / International Exposure Can you briefly present yearsaft and your actual position in the company ? Dem braness position (this)? Dem braness position (this) position? Dem brane brane brane? Demo position (this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. What countries are Systematics' learning and library brainess unit in today? What countries are Systematics' learning and entrate the company? (Deer BU, Decision makers, partners) Demo was position the outry brain? and evaluated evaluate? What market didy ou enter from the Model evaluate? Demo was position trains the difficult evaluate? Demostric demonstriptical evaluate? Demostriptical evaluate? <l< td=""><td></td><td>o Gather whatever necessary resources?</td></l<>		o Gather whatever necessary resources?
Key informants: Position and background / International Exposure • Can yow briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ? • The hongyout have feedback of the Systematic? In this Banismes Lott in particular? • What endstrop you have feedback of the Systematic? In this Banismes Lott in particular? • The your gravity is a systematic of your have feedback? If this Banismes Lott in particular? • The your systematic deback? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • The your worked aboard? If yes, where and how long? • What longuages do you speak? Inter your worked with of foregrave company before? • What countries are Systematic' learning and library business unit in today? • Was ded sciciaises an at strategic / counterciail level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • Was market did you enter first (with respect to this BUJ)? (SwedoeX) (CHBE RJ, Dectston mokers, partners) • Pode accollectual to samptic divers word. Unsollectual area? • Was trade dive word bo word work who w		 Sustain them for the several years that a break-even profitability will require?
Key informats: Position and background / International Exposure • Can you briefly present yourself and your acheal position in the company ? • The enhances position (this)? • They you stande aboval? Types, where and how long? • They you stande aboval? Types, where and how long? • They you stande aboval? Types, where and how long? • They you stande aboval? Types, where and how long? • They you stande aboval? Types, where and how long? • They you stande aboval? Types, where and how long? • They on unknest aboval? • They you worked with a foreign company byfor? • What constries are Systematic? • What constries are Systematic? • What genesition history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international process the decisions on a strategic (commercial level T) no ther works who do yon believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What method this survey stated (Sweeden? • What method this are instrated (Coverdent). • What method this are the Swedshi company? (Contr BU, Dectston makers, partners) • How would you de		
Key informants: Position and background / International Exposure • Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ? • Now harmses position thin?? • Bow harmses position thin?? • Bow harmses position thin?? • Bow harmses position thin?? • Harv you struct decation of boy whow the feedment, economical, legion, managerial,? • Harv you structed advoord? Types, where and how long? • Harv you structed advoord? Types, where and how long? • Harv you structed advoord? Types, where and how long? • Harv you worked value 1 fyres, where and how long? • Harv you worked value 1 fyres, where and how long? • Harv you worked value 1 fyres, where and how long? • Harv you worked value 1 fyres, where and how long? • Harv you worked value 1 fyres, where and how long? • Harv you worked value 1 fyres, where and how long? • What countries are Systematics' learning and library basiness unit in today? • Wat countries are Systematics' learning and library basiness unit in today? • Wat make this on entregic 1 formaterial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • Wat make this one antegic 1 formaterial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • Wat make this one antere details how this early hystarcel (detaid		
Key Informants: Position and background / International Exposure • Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ? • Our home you have been working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular? • The interposition of the one working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular? • Our home you have been working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular? • Have you grown up / Irved abound? (Fyres, where and how long? • Our home you have been working with Systematic? • Have you studied about? (Fyres, where and how long? • Our home your how how feed about? • Have you worked about? (Fyres, where and how long? • Our home your how how the diverse? • Have you worked about? (Fyres, where and how long? • Our home your how how the diverse? • Have you worked about? (Fyres, where and how long? • Our home your how how the diverse? • Have you worked about? (Fyres, where and how long? • What foundation history (J/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematic? I about? • What countries are Systematic? I about you work. Unsolite test of diverse of the country choice? • What market diverse out the work? I out the work? • What market diverse out the work? None test of diverse out the second work? • What market diverse out th		
 Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ? Nor harms position (Hind)? How long you have been working with Systematic? In this Buttimus Unit in particular? How long your have been working with Systematic? In this Buttimus Unit in particular? How long your have been working with Systematic? In this Buttimus Unit? How long your have been working with Systematic? In this Buttimus Unit? How long your have been working with Systematic? In this Buttimus Unit? How you studied aboud? If yes, where and how long? How you worked durad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked with a foreign company before? How long you worked with a foreign company before? How and worked with a foreign company before? How and the systematic? I learning and library business unit in today? What countries are Systematic? I canning and library business unit in today? Why did Systematic go internationally? Who makes decisions on a strategic / counnercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What method that near thirt (with respect to this BU)? (Weedwor One and and Part 2000 (Part 2000 (Part	Key	informants: Position and background / International Exposure
 Nor humans position (this)? How long you have been working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular? What oblication do you have (technical, economical, legal, managerial, _,)? How you goven m/ in deal downad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked aboxad? If yes, where and how long? How you worked with a foreign company before? How you worked you age with a governer of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? Why did Systematic go internationally? What make decision on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is findamentally responsible of the country choice? What make tid you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Swedaw?coreanda) Or What countries are Systematic and outside the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) How was the decision on a strategic / company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How was the company position within this market entry? (Dury dudy out decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you describe your role in this market entry? (Mor Why? Or boe on: Cost, company culture, personal [facts		Can you briefly present yourself and your actual position in the company ?
 How long you have been working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular? What education do you have (feedubacad? If yes, where and how long? Have you grown up (Ired abraad? If yes, where and how long? Have you studeed abraad? If yes, where and how long? Have you studeed abraad? If yes, where and how long? Have you studeed abraad? If yes, where and how long? Have you studeed abraad? If yes, where and how long? Have you studeed abraad? If yes, where and how long? Have you worked a third foreign company bdfore? What languages do you speak? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is findamentally responsible of the country choice? • Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is findamentally responsible of the country choice? • Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is findamentally responsible of the country choice? • Who that child you eter first (with responsible first down about the down about the entry busines motwork. Unnote (Newdeon)? • Who was involved in the entry busine and outside the company? (Other BU, Docusion makers, partners) • How work you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? • How work you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? • How work you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? • Bow work you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influen		o Your business position (title)?
 • What contaction do you have (technical, economical, legal, managerial,)? • Have sour synum to //ivad baroad? If yes, where and how long? • Have your studied advorad? If yes, where and how long? • What professional background do you have? • Othere your worked attra foreign company before? • What languages do you speak? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? • What countries are Systematics' commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What marks decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What marks decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What marks decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What marks defined in the ontry business network. Unsolicited order) • What restarting on the entry has strated (Wavedon?)? • What cuterativere used? • What cuterativere used? • What cuterativere used? • What cuterativere used? • What other the strate is doutified countard? • What would you decretche your role in this marks today? Why? • Probe on: Canyon culture, personal forced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? • Probe on: Company culture, personal efforts • How would you describe the company pointion within this market today? Why? • Probe on: Canyon culture, personal efforts • How would you describe the company pointon within thits market today? Why? •		 How long you have been working with Systematic? In this Business Unit in particular?
 O Have you grown hy 'n wead abroad'r yyse, wreet and how long? Hav you worked vished by you, wreet Hav you worked vished flyes, where and how long? Hav you worked vishe a faving flyes, where and how long? Hav you worked vish a faving company before? What languages do you speek? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What languages do you speek? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What market did you entry? • Mare enabled this entry? (Bustness network, Unsolented ardm:) • What enabled the entry function of the divisite the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) • How wend you decide to acquire the Swedish company? (No influenced the choice of this acquisition? • How would you decide to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? • Probe on: Connection under released of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) • Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (which for general or theory in the respective of its abord abord of the foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) • Doyou believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets flam other larger firms? What make you say that ? • Doyou believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets flam other larger firms? What make you say that? <td></td> <td>o What education do you have (technical, economical, legal, managerial,)?</td>		o What education do you have (technical, economical, legal, managerial,)?
 What professional background do you have? What professional background do you have? Have you worked what he forerign company before? What languages do you speak? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematics' learning and library basiness unit in today? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • What need to an strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What make did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Swedaw(Greenland) • Who make did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Swedaw(Greenland) • Who make did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Swedaw(Greenland) • Who was involved in the entry? Bustness network Unsoluted order) • Who make did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Swedaw(Greenland) • Who was involved in the entry? Inside and outside the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) • How ware potential partners identified! evaluated? • Who and certifies your role in this market entry? Contribution? • How ware unclealing bow this market entry? Contribution? • Probe on: Costs, company culture, personal efforts • How would you describe your role in this market oddy? Why? • Probe on: Comparition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Bustness network (specify) Internationalization history (J/S): Internationalization history (J/S): Internationalization history (J/S): Internationaliz		 Have you grown up / news automat / y ves, where and now long; Have you grown dwardd Ware, where and have long?
 Allow you worked abroad? if yes, where and how long? How you worked with a foreign company before? What languages do you speet? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. What countries are Systematice' learning and library business unit in today? Why did Systematice or internationally? Why did Systematice or internationally? Why did Systematice or internationally? Who makes decisions on a strategi? (commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What market did you enter first (with respect to this BUP? (Sweden?) What enable attribute entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order) Who was involved in the entry instide and outside the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) How were potential partners it devided to acquite the Swedish company? Pho influenced the choice of this acquisition? What retura were used? Who did you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? What with the mark challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Cost, company culture, personal efforts How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) What kind of control do you sepect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to eater new markets than other large firms? What make you say that ? Do you van any business subvork from throws through forealized brand divide forealized brand divide/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the SwedishGreenlandi		o What professional background do you have?
 o. Hine you worked with a foreign company before? o. What languages do you speek? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What have advected in the entry full kinet pose to this BU/? (Sweden/Greenland) • Char enabled this entry full kinet pose to the BU/? (Sweden/Greenland) • What enabled the entry full kinet entry strated (Sweden)? • What enabled the entry? (Bustness network, Unsolcted or dorm,) • What enabled the entry? (Bustness network, Unsolcted or dorm,) • What enabled the entry? (Bustness network, Unsolcted or dorm,) • What evident the entry? (Bustness network, Unsolcted or dorm,) • What evident about the start identified / evaluated? • What evident do user the swedish company? Who utfluenced the choice of this acquisition? • How would you describe your rollink personally faced and the ene the company faced in general ? through this market entry? • Probe on: Cost, compony culture, personal efforts • How would you describe your on outline approximate offers in the market coday? Why? • Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) • What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) • Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets fhan other large firms? What make you say that ? • Do you were any submise starked orbored if you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, commun		 Have you worked abroad? If yes, where and how long?
 What languages do you speak? Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? Why did Systematic go internationally? Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What market did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Sweden)? Can you tell me in more details how this entry strated (Sweden)? What market did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Sweden)? What entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order,) What entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order,) What entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order,) How ware potential partners identified / evaluated? What criterianware used? What criterianware used? What was the main challinges you personally/faced, and the net company forced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Competition / Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from laring studied abroad / Living abroad / previous wert abroad which foreign access in tender renewal, Created Business Network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (and earlie you may for have no its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from laring studied abroad / Living abroad / previous work abroad work with foreign company? How would you describe you rate eahnee when it comes		• Have you worked with a foreign company before?
Internationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international markets. • What countries are Systematic's learning and library basiness unit in today? • Why did Systematic go internationally? • Why makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? • What market did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Sweden@Greenland) • Can you tell me in more details how this entry strated (Sweden)? • What market did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Sweden@Greenland) • What entell me in more details how this entry strated (Sweden)? • What entell me in more details how this entry strate and austed the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) • How were potential partners identified / evaluated? • What criterian were used? • What criterian were used? • What criterian were used? • What was the main challinges you personal //gefaced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? • Probe on: Cost, company culture, personal efforts. • How would you describe your role in this market today? Why? • Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (J/S): • How would you accribe the scongers to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) • Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ?What make you say that ? • Do you have any business network from laring and idea deroad / Living abroad / previous work with foreign company? • Haw would you describe your role have so to enter new markets than other large firms ?What make you say that ? • Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ?What make you say that ? • Do you relationships with respect to respective clicines / partners', agaeciese' ser		0 What languages do you speak?
 What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today? Why did Systematic go internationally? Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What maket did you enter first (with respect to fuits BU)? (Sweden)? Can you tell me in more details how this entry strated (Sweden)? What maket did you enter first (with respect to fuits BU)? (Sweden)? What entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order) What entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order,) What entry? (Business network?, Unsolicited order,) What eriterianware used? What criterianware used? What was the more used on a strategic / Contribution? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? How would you describe your role in this market today? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from laring studied abroad / Living abroad / previous work avid work with foreign company? How would you describe the compary position within this market today? Why? Orabe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (a): Internationalization do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from laring studied abroad / Living abroad / previous work abroad work with foreign company? How would you describe you relationships with r	Inter	rnationalization history (1/3): The point of this question is to re-live the process the company went through in selecting its international
 What countries are Systematic's learning and library business unit in today? Why did Systematic go internationally? Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What makes dictions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What makes dictions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? What enternaves used? What criteriaves used? What criteriaves used? What was the makes the drong of the company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? Who are company culture, parsonal efforts . How would you describe your provide and the entry fundamental the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (3/3): What thind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any busines network from laring studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad' work with foreign company? How would you describe you rake to have on his foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any busines network from laring studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad' work	mark	ers.
 Why did Systematic go internationally? Who makes decisions on strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What maket did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (Sweden/Greenland) Can you tell me in more details how this entry sharted (Sweden?) What enabled this entry? (Bustness network, Unsolicited order) Who were potential partners identified / valuated? What enabled this entry? (Bustness network, Unsolicited order) Who were potential partners identified / valuated? What enabled this entry? (Bustness network, Unsolicited order) Who were potential partners identified / valuated? What entrara were used? What escribe your role in this market entry? Contribution? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? Probe on: Cost, company outline, personal efforts How would you describe the company spisino within this market today? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (spec (fs)) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms? What make you say that ? Do you relationships with respect to species (specify) Internationalization history (do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network for the it comes to enter new markets than other large firms? What make you say that ? Do you neve any business network for the its foreign operations? (Price, providers in the foreign market? Intr		What countries are Systematics' learning and library business unit in today?
 Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice? What maked didyou enter first (with respect to this BUY) (Sweden/Greenland) Can you tell me in more details how this entry strated (Sweden)? What maked the entry? (Bustness network, Unsolicited order) Who was two/heed in the entry function of autistic the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) How were potential partners infortified / evaluated? Why didyou decided to acquire the Swedish company? (Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you decided to acquire the Swedish company? (No influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you decide to acquire the Swedish company? (Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? What was the main challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Orabe on: Cost, company culture, personal efforts How would you describe your rollar personal efforts How would you describe your name and the strate of success in tender renewal, Created Bustness network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from larving studied abroad / living shord / pervisons work abroad with foreign company? How are any business network from larving studied abroad / living shord / pervisons work abroad over informs? What make yon say that ? Do you		Why did Systematic go internationally?
 What market did you enter first (with respect to this BU)? (<i>Nucleave Given Circelland</i>) Can you Kill me in more details how this entrys (<i>Nuscleave entry States</i>) (<i>Susceeden</i>)? What enabled this entry? (<i>Business nervork, Unsolicited arder,</i>) What enabled this entry? (<i>Business nervork, Unsolicited arder,</i>) How ware potential partners identified / evaluated? What enabled this entry? Nutside and dustide the company? (<i>Other BU, Decision makers, partners</i>) How were potential partners identified / evaluated? What entranswere used? What entranswere used? What entranswere used? What was the market entry? contribution? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? How would you describe your possibility evaluated in the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Coste, company culture, parsonal efforts. How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Bo you have any business network from larving studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad' work with foreign company? Has this attevork in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market oportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clines / partners / partners / partners / Prices providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Probe: Purely professional, purely partners / partners / apacciesis services providers in the foreign market?		Who makes decisions on a strategic / commercial level? In other words, who do you believe is fundamentally responsible of the country choice?
 What enabled this entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order,) What enabled this entry? Business network, Unsolicited order,) Who was mohed in the entry Instde and outside the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) How were potential partners identified / evaluated? What entrarawere used? What was the main challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Cost, company culture, personal efforts How would you describe the company position within this market oday? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you balieve you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets fhan other large firms? What make you say that ? Do you relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / specierg/orders/ with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market oprotunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / apacies/ service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Or <i>Probe on: Purely professional, purely personal relationship?</i> O <i>Invhat circumationes this relationship_atarted</i> ?		What market the you effect mist (with respect to fines BU)? (Sweden/Greeniand) Can you tell up in more Astrile how this anter storted (Sweden/Greeniand)
 Who was involved in the entry Inside and outside the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners) How were potential partners identified? evaluated? Why didyou decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you decided to acquire the Swedish company? This influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Contribution? What was the main challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Cost, company culture, personal efforts How would you decide the company position within this market doay? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ? What make you say that ? Do you believe you nave less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other there are should work with foreign company? Has this attevork from having studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market? Introduced or enable any of your relationships the sector of persoders in this network ? <i>O Probe: Purely professional, purel you feasionship?</i> O In what circumstances this relationship started?		• What enabled this entry? (Business network, Unsolicited order)
 How were potential partners identified / evaluated? What criterious are used? What criterious are used? What criterious are used? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? What was the main challenges you personal proceed and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Cost, company culture, personal efforts. How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from larving studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this attevork in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market oportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / spaceics/ services providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationships to have to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships to respective clients / partners / spaceics/ services providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Pobe: Purely professional, purely parsonal relationship? In what critemations this relationship to started? 		 Who was involved in the entry inside and outside the company? (Other BU, Decision makers, partners.)
 What return verse used? What return verse used? What visits do not expect the Soudish company? "Who influenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? What visit he main challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Orbote on: Costs, compary culture, personal efforts How would you describe the company position within this market oday? Why? Orbote on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms? What make you say that ? Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms? What make you say that ? Do you have any business network from larving studied broad / triving should / you relationships: on respective clients / partners / specifies (portunity?) To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / apacies/ service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Or Probe on: Probe on: Partopy professional purely personal relationship?		How were potential partners identified / evaluated?
 Why didyou decided to acquire the Swedish company? "The tuffuenced the choice of this acquisition? How would you describe your role in this market ontry? Contribution? What was the main challenges you personally faced, and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? Probe on: Costs, company culture, personal efforts How would you describe your roles in this market dody? Why? Probe on: Costs, company culture, personal efforts How would you describe the company position within this market dody? Why? Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ? What make you say that ? Do you neve less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other farge firms ? What make you say that ? Do you neve less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other there we have dod / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network from harving studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Porrolaced or enable any of your relationships the respective clines / partners / apaciesis service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? O Probe: Purely profestional previous persons in this network ? O Probe: Purely profestional previous persons in this network ? O In what circumstances this relationship started?		o What criteria were used?
6 How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? what was the main challenges you personal /pcded and the one the company faced in general ? through this market entry? o Probe on: Costs, company culture, personal efforts How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why? o Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you have any business network from larving studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this atework in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market oportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships to the species (partner) spartner). How would you describe your relationship to each of this persons in this network ? O probe: Purely professional, purely genomic relationship? O in what circumstances this relationship tarteel?		 Why did you decided to acquire the Swedish company? Who influenced the choice of this acquisition?
 6 what was me main concerning sour personally locks, and the one me company faced in general "Incongenting market outry? 6 Probe on: Cost, comparison culture, personal efforts 7 Or be on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) 9 Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets finan other large firms? What make you say that ? 9 Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets finan other large firms? What make you say that ? 9 Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets finan other large firms? What make you say that ? 9 Do you have any business network from larving studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ with foreign company? 9 Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships in the specifies / partners / apacities/ service providers in the foreign market? 9 Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? 0 Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? 		 How would you describe your role in this market entry? Contribution? With the second sec
 How would you describe your relationship to some the persona region and the personal region and the person		 what was the main chaitenges you personany jaced, and the one the company jaced in general? Through this market only? O Probe not Costs, commany cultures personal officies.
 Probe on: Competition/Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify) Internationalization history (3/3): What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ? What make you say that ? Do you have any business network from having studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / apacities providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Pobe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? In what circumstances this relationship started? 		How would you describe the company position within this market today? Why?
Internationalization history (3/3): • What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) • Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ? What make you say that ? • Do you have any business network from having studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? • Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / agencies/ service providers in the foreign market? • How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? • <i>O Probe: Purely profestanal, purely personal relationship?</i> • In what circumstances this relationship started?		o Probe on: Competition /Market share, Odd of success in tender renewal, Created Business network (specify)
Internationalization history (3/3): • What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) • Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ? What make you say that ? • Do you have any business network from having studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? • Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / agencies/ service providers in the foreign market? • How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? • <i>O Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship?</i> • In what circumstances this relationship started?		
 What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other large firms ? What make you say that ? Do you have any business network from laving studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / apacites/ service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? O Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? In what circumstances this relationship started? 	Inte	rnationalization history (3/3):
 What kind of control to you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?) Do you believe you have less or more chance when it comes to eater new markets than other large firms? (Pwint make you say that ? Do you have any business network from having studied abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / agencies/ service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? O Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? In what clientances this relationship started? 		
 Do you beneve you nove less of more chance when it comes to enter new markets than other arge times ? what make you say that ? Do you have any business network from having statiled abroad / living abroad / previous work abroad/ work with foreign company? Has this network in any way helped to find the Swedish/Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Swedish/Greenlandic market ? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients? / partners / apacities / service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Or obse? Purely professional, purely personal relationship? 		What kind of control do you expect Systematic to have on its foreign operations? (Price, communication, recruitment?)
 Has this network in any way helped to find the Sweidsh'Greenlandic market opportunity? To enter the Sweidsh'Greenlandic market? Introduced or enable any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / agencies/ service providers in the foreign market? How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? Or Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? In what circumstances this relationship started? 		Do you beneve you nave ress on more chance when it comes to enter new markets final other large firms? What make you say that?
any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / agencies/ service providers in the foreign market? • How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? • Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? • In what circumstances this relationship started?		He year and any contrast a work in the number of the swedish Green landie in the another provide work with the activity of the swedish Green landie market opportunity? To enter the Swedish Green landie market ? Introduced or enable
How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ? o Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? In what circumstances this relationship started:		any of your relationships with respect to respective clients / partners / agencies/ service providers in the foreign market?
Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship? In what excumstances this relationship started?		How would you describe your relationship to each of those persons in this network ?
• In what circumstances this relationship started?		o Probe: Purely professional, purely personal relationship?
		 In what circumstances this relationship started?
		 How long have you known this person? How often, on average, did/do you have contact (daily, weekly, monthly)?

- What type of contact do you usually have (by e-mail, phone, mail, or face to face)?
 Do you believe this network would allow you to see upcoming opportunities ? Or maybe get in touch with other new parts of the network ?
 Do you believe your local network can contribute to access other markets or gain substantial knowledge?
 Have you participated to any local or international Fair with respect to the library automation industry ?

Market and Product status

- Product:
 How many years have you been marketing Cicero LMS in the Danish market? Other market?
 What is the main direct competition for the Cicero product? Do you believe your solution has something that the competition lack of?
 Does it have to be updated often?
 How sensitive do you believe is the demand for Cicero with respect to price, quality and trends? What about your main competition, do they have the same elasticity? How sensitive do you believe is the demand for Creero with respect to price, quanty and reduct your many competition, or usy nave me same classicity ?
 Do you think your product is suitable for the actual needs in both market demand? Why?
 Assuming fundamental causes and constraints on foreign customer needs will be similar to those known from your experience, please indicate what you believe are the customers needs that might affect the level of sales of Creero?
 Is it essential (not just desirable) for the Cicero use by the key customer to have any particular technology, attributes or surrounding industries ?

 Probe on: Electricity, public utilities, telecommunications, a specific industry.

 Will the information supplied by the client be of a complex nature? Will this lead to an intense interaction during the production of the service?
 Does the Cicero LMS require that the client? an ember of the team producing the service and thus will contribute directly to the work?
 Does the Cicero LMS require a close monitoring from the client?
 What type of interaction does the Cicero LMS require with the client? (Person to person, group interaction, joint working...etc.)
 Usually what mode of interaction will be involved? (face to face, computer, telephone...etc.)

- Market:
 What is your approximate market share on both markets? What is the share of humover achieved on both markets (current and previous)?
 Compared with previous expectations, are you satisfied with the results when it comes to:

 Market share in this market
 Sales growth in this market
 Profitability in this market
 Profitability in this market

 Bow do you usually make estimation of the market current and future demand level? (Local numbers?)
 Do you think that the market demand, In Sweden/Greenland considers your offering superior to that of the competition? Why ?
 Do you believe it will be the case in new markets? Why (nd) ?
 Do you feel that it has been a successful entry? Do you feel that you have folly exploited the market potential in both markets? Why is that ?
 Would you uses? Hermatic's as effective in doing business in foreign markets ? Why?
 Does Systematic believes international market research to be valuable?
 Do you believe in the bilieves international market research to be valuable?
 Do you believe the international market research to be valuable?
 Do you believe us companies in the library monation industry find international market research valuable?
 In general, what do you regard as the strength / weakness of Systematic? And with respect to its learning and library BU?

Objectives of this International market selection:

Selecting and entering a new foreign market, implies that there is a pursuit of some kind of benefit by you and by your company. Each market will most likely
provide a different benefit. According to you what are those goals ?
 o Probe on: Obtain Sales, Ongoing sales growth, Increase market share, Increase the international corporate image, Acquiring new tearning, Disposing of a
product no longer attractive in other markets, Increase product profitability, Channel the excess of capacity, Minimizing efforts (Quantity and quality of

o Can you rank them from most important to less important?

Risk preferences:

There is often a downside risk in entering a new market, it might no be successful and the effort invested might be lost (Funds, reputation, staksholder supports...). Now think briefly about the human and financial capital you will probably invest over let's say two years in the new market, regardless of which one. Compare what you perceive as the rational level of effort invested with the size of your actual business, it might represent a small or large proportion of the total business. Satisfue from that point, how damaging would it be for Systematic if it fails at market entry and lose most of that two year investment?
 Octatarophic
 Very considerable
 Moderate
 Negligible

Why do you think so ?
 Would you describe yourself as a person who is ready to take risks when it comes to make a business decision?
 • Yes / no

In general do you find risk-taking to be : Very eujoyable Enjoyable Neither enjoyable nor unenjoyable Very unenjoyable Very unenjoyable

- · What would you define as a risk factor ?

Management Motivation and commitment :

How Keen are you to enter a new market?What do you think of the following statements?

Statements	Probe questions
Systematic does not presently have the ability to penetrate an additional international market (1)	Why do you think so?
There are insurmountable external obstacles for Systematic to sell internationally (2)	Can you mention some of those obstacles ?
Allocating scarce organizational resources (people, funds, etc.) to locating and penetrating an additional foreign market would be cost-effective for Systematic (3)	Why do you believe so ?
I think that Systematic will benefit if we add an additional international market (4)	In which way?
think that I will benefit if we add an additional international market (5)	In which way?
Systematic is not presently enthusiastic about locating and penetrating an additional international markets (6)	Why is that ?
I dislike doing international business (7)	For what reason?
I find it difficult to do business with foreign people (8)	Why?
Systematic tends to react to, rather than initiate, new foreign opportunities (9)	What make you think that ?

Management Motivation and commitment :

Please indicate which of the following statements reflects what Systematic <u>DOES</u> about international market sales (if none, please explain):

Do not seek to conduct international transactions	Why do you think so?
Fill unsolicited orders, but do not proactively seek foreign business	Why do you think so?
Proactively explore the feasibility of commencing more foreign market sales	Why do you think so?
Have moderate or high experience at selling in numerous international market (All BU combined)	Why do you think so ?

What do you believe Systematic <u>SHOULD DO</u> about international market sales ?

- How many person were assigned by Systematic to acquire new foreign business during the last two years ?
 How many person were assigned by Systematic to maintain existing foreign business during the last two years ?
 How many person were available for all foreign marketing work during the last two years ?

Systematics' capabilities (Sustainable Competitive Advantange):

- Like any company, Systematic have some capabilities that differentiate it from other competitors or give some kind of advantage, I will ask you about some specific areas and try to have your opinion on what do you believe to be Systematic advantage in each area.
 Why do you believe so?
 Do you think that Systematic have or might have any competitive advantage on a specific country level?

Innovation (1)	Creation of the product/service (2)	Access to capital (3)
 Technical product or service superiority 	Cost structure	From operations
 New product capability 	Flexible operations	 From net short-term assets
 Research and Development 	Equipment	 Ability to use debt and equity financing
Specific Technologies	Vertical integration	Owner's or parent's willingness to finance
Patents	Work-force attitude and motivation	 Ability to conduct transfer pricing
 Early Mover advantage (1st or 2nd in the market) 		 Ability to shift assets to different countries
Management and marketing (4)	Synergy entering an additional market	Diversity of assets
Product quality reputation	(5)	
Product characteristics / differentiation	 Enhance customer value 	
Brand name recognition / Country of	 Reduce operations costs 	
origin	 Reduce required investment 	
Trade marks		
Customer orientation		
Sales force		
 Customer service / product support 		
mpetencies: Have you conducted any international market research * Yes/No If Yes, during the last 2 years, what was the average m emperiored researcher?	with respect to the Cicero product? mber of formal weeks dedicated to Cicero internat	ional market research, undertaken by an
o	ch ? or any of the market entered?	

Do you produce a written annual international marketing plan (or a written, annual, business plan writ significant international marketing component)? o Yes:No When entering a new foreign market do you expect to adapt the product's sales literature, operating instructions, interface and so forth (to specify) to suit the locally understood language? o All of those o Most of these usually o Rarely o Never

International market screening competencies:

Before proceeding to an in depth market screening, where it comes to market research and primary data analysis, a broader screening is done in order to shorter the list of candidate market worth the in-depth analysis, the following questions are with respect to this preliminary screening:

- Do you conduct international markets screening (as distinct from in-depth) research?
 De you conduct international market screening (as distinct from in-depth) research?
 Je zNo
 If yes, during the last 3 years, how many times have you conducted international market screening research (not in-depth market research)?
 Do you collect and use only accordary data on markets (as distinct from using primary data)? *Yes / No*Are nearly all markets included (>180 countries)? Yes / No
 How many screening variables (e.g. population, GNP, etc.) are used?
 Do routing the last include:
 Product-specific variables? Yes / No
 Or range of the variables include?
 Are nearly the variables include?
 Are nearly the variables include?
 Product-specific variables? Yes / No
 Or range of the variables include?
 Was not screen markets, do you assume beforehand that you will use only one specific entry mode ? (Full ownership, joint venture...etc.)
 Your overall screening, over the last three years have been initiated for proactive or reactive reasons? Why ?

Which order of priority ? Ocnitry 1: Ocnitry 1: Ocnitry 2: Ocnitry 3: Ocnitry 3:	e seriously explored the possibility of beginning d for the Cicero product? Why do you believe t	g to enter during the last two years that?
 Our broad screening Idea, will take into considera ranking (by priority)? o Country listranking 	tion a specific list of potential country that we	think are worth investigating, could you give us your own
 In what basis did you make this ran 	king?	
o Netherlands	o Australia	o Norway
o France	o Finland	o iceland
o Belgium	o Germany	o Ireland
o Luxembourg	o Romania	o Canada
O Monaco	o Suigapore	o Austria
o Switzerland	 New Zealand, 	o Qatar
O UK	 Onited Arab Emirates, 	o Malaysia
The property of the second of the property of the second sec	0.1184	
Egypt) Doubtry Listing: Have more insights from the	e management feel with respect to the	actual country list
Other SYSTEMATIC business units are already p network (suppliers, agencies, clients, clients of a other country where you are not present yet?	e management feel with respect to the resent on some of those countries, and as you o lient). Do you believe you can identify any	actual country list actual country list potential presence of any of those network's actors in any mixing 2 Why part 2
Other SYSTEMATIC business units are already p network (suppliers, agencies, clients, clients of a c other country where you are not present yet? Which one ? Do you believe they c	e management feel with respect to the resent on some of those countries, and as you c lient). Do you believe you can identify any j an be useful sources of information or opportu	actual country list ertainly know that other BU have their own business potential presence of any of those network's actors in any nities ? Why not ?
Egypt) Egypt Egypt Other SYSTEMATIC business units are already p network (suppliers, agencies, clients, clients of a c other country where you are not present yet? Which one 7 Do you believe they c In our attempt to identify the right markets, we wi stage, involve the use of a defined minimum requ to the firm's resource constraints and coordination consider a country as a target market? Can you be	e management feel with respect to the resent on some of those countries, and as you c lient), Do you believe you can identify any ran be useful sources of information or opportu ill follow a three stage approach: (1) Screening irement / threshold to remove in an early stage, a bilities. According to your own experience, v e more specific?	actual country list actual country list betainly know that other BU have their own business potential presence of any of those network's actors in any nities ? Why not ? stage, (2) identification stage, (3) Selection stage. The first markets that do not meet fundamental criteria with respect which Requirement do you perceive as important in order to
 Other SYSTEMATIC business units are already p network (suppliers, agencies, clients of a other country where you are not present yet? Other SYSTEMATIC business units are already p network (suppliers, agencies, clients of a other country where you are not present yet? Which one ? Do you believe they are of a defined minimum requipt to identify the right markets, we wi stage, involve the use of a defined minimum requipt to the firm's resource constraints and coordination consider a country as a target market ? Can you be o Probe on: ROI, infrastructure, Land 	e management feel with respect to the resent on some of those countries, and as you o lient). Do you believe you can identify any j can be useful sources of information or opportu ill follow a three stage approach: (1) Screening rement / durshold to remove in an early stage, abilities. According to your own experience, v e more specific?	actual country list actual country list betrainly know that other BU have their own business potential presence of any of those network's actors in any nities ? Why not ? stage, (2) identification stage, (3) Selection stage. The first markets that do not meet fundamental criteria with respect which Requirement do you perceive as important in order to
 Other SYSTEMATIC business units are already p network (suppliers, agencies, clients, clients of a other country where you are not present yet? In our attempt to identify the right markets, we wi stage, involve the use of a defined minimum require to the firm's resource constraints and coordination consider a country as a target market ? Can you boot ? Probe on: ROI, infrastructure, Lan Some of your colleagues mentioned some No-go o Probe on: 	e management feel with respect to the resent on some of those countries, and as you c dient), Do you believe you can identify any an be useful sources of information or opportu ill follow a three stage approach: (1) Screening irement / threshold to remove in an early stage, abilities, According to your own experience, v more specific? guage,etc. requirements, what do you think about them?	actual country list actual country list potential presence of any of those network's actors in any nities ? Why not ? stage, (2) identification stage, (3) Selection stage. The first markets that do not meet fundamental criteria with respect which Requirement do you perceive as important in order to

Appendix 3: Subjective variables scaling Form External link to the form: <u>https://ldrv.ms/b/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxsMIYmMW25bmRiZ</u>

Cicero LMS: International market selection -Perceptions form

This form's objective is to scale your perceptions, in order to be able to integrate them into the fuzzy logic system (which is the system supposed to define which country is the most attractive) as data. Combined with other secondary data, it would constitute the base to define the attractiveness of the countries,

All questions are addressed with respect to each country market. Each section concerns a specific perception, that you might have with respect to a specific country.

I would like to point some important facts: - The more scores you assign the highest the accuracy of the system. - All answers are scaled from 1 to 10, make sure to use the horizontal bar if the whole scale is not displayed. - In case you don't have any idea of which answer to give with respect to a specific country, you can check the case "NA". - This form contain 22 questions, that needs at least 30 min of your time to be answered, this is mostly due to the large list of countries (31 country). - The email address is needed in order to share with you the answers you submitted. Again, I would like to thank you for the time you will give to fill this form and the effort that you put to contribute to this work. NB: This form is easier to fill on computers than phones. * Required 1. Email address *

Quick information

2. Your Name:

3. Your position within Systematic:

Product alignment Your Perception of the CICERO LMS

4. On a scale from 1 to 10, how suitable do you think the Cicero LMS is for the need of the market demand in each of those potential market? * 1 = Unsuitable , 10 = Very suitable Mark only one oval per row.

Netherlands <th></th> <th>NA</th> <th>1</th> <th>2</th> <th>3</th> <th>4</th> <th>5 6</th> <th>6 7</th> <th>7</th> <th>8</th> <th>9</th> <th>10</th>		NA	1	2	3	4	5 6	6 7	7	8	9	10
France Image: Constraint of the second o	Netherlands	\bigcirc	\square	\square	$\overline{)}$))	$\mathbf{)}$)))(
Belgium Image: Constraint of the second	France	\bigcirc			$\overline{)}$	C)C	X	C	C	\mathbf{x}	
Luxembourg Image: Constraint of the second of the seco	Belgium	\bigcirc				$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	50	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	
Monaco Image: Constraint of the second o	Luxembourg	\bigcirc			$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)C	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Switzerland Image: Switzerland </th <td>Monaco</td> <td>\bigcirc</td> <td>\Box</td> <td>\Box</td> <td></td> <td>$\supset C$</td> <td>C</td> <td>X</td> <td>C</td> <td>\mathcal{T}</td> <td>$\overline{)}$</td> <td></td>	Monaco	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		$\supset C$	C	X	C	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	
UK Image: Constraint of the second of the	Switzerland	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box)()(X	$\mathbf{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$		
Morocco Algeria	UK	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	
Algeria Image: Constraint of the second	Morocco	\bigcirc	\square	\Box	$\overline{)}$	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	
Tunisia Image: Constraint of the second	Algeria	\bigcirc	\square	\Box		\supset	\mathcal{D}		C	$\mathcal{O}($	\mathbf{x}	
Egypt Image: Constraint of the second of	Tunisia	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	C	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	
Australia Image: Constraint of the second secon	Egypt	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{D}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Finland Image: Constraint of the second	Australia	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset	
Germany Image: Constraint of the second	Finland	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	\supset	DC	DC	DC	$\supset \subset$		
Romania Image (Image (Imag	Germany	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset C$	DC	C	DC	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Singapore Image: Constraint of the second of the secon	Romania	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$		DC	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
New Zealand Image: Constraints Image: Constraints </th <td>Singapore</td> <td>\bigcirc</td> <td>\Box</td> <td>\square</td> <td>\supset</td> <td>\supset</td> <td>$\supset \subset$</td> <td>DC</td> <td>DC</td> <td>\supset</td> <td>\supset</td> <td></td>	Singapore	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	DC	DC	\supset	\supset	
United Arab Emirates Image: Constraint of the second sec	New Zealand	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$		$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset	
USA Image: Constraint of the second	United Arab Emirates	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset C$	DC	C	DC	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Norway Image: Constraint of the second	USA	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	C	DC	\supset		
Iceland	Norway	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{D}	\mathcal{D}	\supset	\supset	
Ireland	Iceland	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	DC		$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Canada Canada<	reland	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset		$\supset C$	DC	$\supset C$	$\supset C$		
Austria Image: Constraint of the second se	Canada	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	$\supset C$	$\supset \subset$		DC	$\supset C$	\supset	
Qatar Malaysia Sweden Czech Republic Poland Croatia Question	Austria	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{C}	\mathcal{D})(
Malaysia Image: Constraint of the second s	Qatar	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset		$\supset C$		\supset	$\supset C$		
Sweden Sweden Czech Republic Sweden Poland Sweden Croatia Sweden Latvia Sweden	Malaysia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset							
Czech Republic Image: Constraint of the second se	Sweden	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset						
Poland O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O <td>Czech Republic</td> <td>\bigcirc</td> <td>\supset</td> <td>\supset</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset								
Croatia O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O </th <td>Poland</td> <td>\bigcirc</td> <td>\supset</td> <td>\supset</td> <td>\supset</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>\mathcal{D}</td> <td></td>	Poland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset						\mathcal{D}	
	Croatia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset							
	Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		$\supset C$	\supset)(

5. On a scale from 1 to 10, how sensitive do you believe is the demand (Customers) for Cicero LMS with respect to the price? For each potential market * 1 = Insensitive , 10 = Very sensitive Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5	6	7 8	9	10
Norway	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$)	\mathbf{x}))	$) \bigcirc$
France	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{\hat{\boldsymbol{\nabla}}}$	X)C)C	$\overline{)}$
Australia						$\overline{)}$	X	50	50	(\Box)
Algeria					$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	Ń	$\overline{)}$	$\tilde{\mathbf{D}}$	()
Romania	\Box	$\overline{)}$			$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{X}	C	C	(\Box)
Qatar	\Box				$\overline{)}$)	X	$\mathbf{)}$)($\overline{)}$
United Arab Emirates	\Box		\Box		\Box	\supset	\mathbf{x}	$\supset \subset$	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Croatia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		\Box	\supset		DC	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Egypt	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		\Box	\supset	\mathcal{X}	$\supset \subset$	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	DC		$)\bigcirc$
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	DC	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Ireland	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	DC	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Germany	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset				DC	$) \bigcirc$
Morocco	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset			$) \bigcirc$
Sweden	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				$) \bigcirc$
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	$) \bigcirc$
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset				DC	$) \bigcirc$
Poland	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	\square	\supset	\mathcal{T}	DC	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset					$) \bigcirc$
Monaco	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Belgium	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
USA	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				$) \bigcirc$
Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		\mathcal{X}			$) \bigcirc$
UK	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				C	$) \bigcirc$
Canada	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset					$) \bigcirc$
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		C		$) \bigcirc$
Singapore	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{X}	$\supset \subset$	C	$) \bigcirc$
Austria	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	DC	C	$)\bigcirc$
celand	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		\mathcal{D}	C	$)\bigcirc$
Finland	\bigcirc)($\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$)()()()($) \bigcirc$

6. On a scale from 1 to 10, how sensitive do you believe is the demand (Customers) for Cicero LMS with respect to the Quality? For each potential market * 1 = Insensitive , 10 = Very sensitive Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5 6	5 7	1	3 9	10
USA	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	C	C	
Singapore	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box))()(\mathbf{X})(C	$) \bigcirc$
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	$\overline{)}$	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \bigcirc$
Morocco	\bigcirc	\Box		$\overline{)}$	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	$\mathbf{)}$
Norway	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	C	$) \bigcirc$
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	C	X	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	C	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Ireland	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	DC	C	$) \bigcirc$
UK	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	DC	C	DC	DC	
Belgium	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	C	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Germany	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset		\mathcal{D}	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Monaco	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	C	C	$) \bigcirc$
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
United Arab Emirates	(\bigcirc)	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	
Qatar	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	DC	C	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Australia	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Romania	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC		DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	
Croatia	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset		X	C	C	$) \bigcirc$
Sweden	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		\mathcal{X}	DC	C	$) \bigcirc$
Iceland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	$) \bigcirc$
Poland	\bigcirc	\square	\square							$) \bigcirc$
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	_)(X)($) \bigcirc$
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset							
Egypt	\bigcirc	\square	\supset							
Finland	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\mathcal{D}	\mathcal{D}	\mathcal{D}	X	C	C	$) \bigcirc$
France	\bigcirc	\square	\square			\mathcal{D}	X	C	C	$) \bigcirc$
Canada	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		\supset				C	$) \bigcirc$
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		C			$) \bigcirc$
Austria	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\square	$\supset C$	C	C	C	C	$) \bigcirc$

7. On a scale from 1 to 10, how sensitive do you believe is the demand (Customers) for Cicero LMS with respect to the Product's Standards? For each potential market * 1 = Insensitive , 10 = Very sensitive Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1 3	2 :	3 4	ļ.	56	6	7	8	9	10
Monaco	\bigcirc	\square))()	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset	\supset)	\supset
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\Box	$\mathbf{)}$	C)(X	$\mathbf{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathbf{x}	
Egypt	\bigcirc	\Box)	$\mathbf{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$)(\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$)($\overline{)}$	
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\square	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	\mathbf{x}	$\overline{)}$	\supset	$\overline{)}$	\supset
Finland	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\mathcal{D}($	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Romania	\bigcirc	\Box	$\mathbf{)}$	C)(X	$\mathbf{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	$\overline{)}$	
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\supset	\mathcal{T}		$\mathcal{D}($	\supset	\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Singapore	\bigcirc	\square)()()(\mathbf{x}	\supset)($\mathbf{)}$	\supset
USA	\bigcirc	\supset	\mathcal{D}	C	\mathcal{C}	$\supset \subset$)(\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
UK	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset)($\supset \subset$	\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	DC	C	$\mathcal{D}($	DC	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
United Arab Emirates	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset)($\supset \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	$\supset \subset$	DC	DC	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Australia	\bigcirc	\supset	DC	DC	$\mathcal{D}($	DC	\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Sweden	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset		$\mathcal{D}($		\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Germany	\bigcirc	\supset			C		\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		\supset
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset			$\mathcal{D}($		\mathcal{X}		\supset	\supset	\supset
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset			$\mathcal{D}($		\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Belgium	\bigcirc	\supset			$\mathcal{D}($)(\supset	\supset		\supset
France	\bigcirc	\supset			$\mathcal{D}($		\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset		\supset
Croatia	\bigcirc	\supset			$\mathcal{D}($		\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset		\supset
Poland	\bigcirc				$\mathcal{D}($			\supset	\supset		\supset
reland	\bigcirc	_)()()() ()		
New Zealand	\bigcirc)(X			_)(
Netherlands	\bigcirc				\mathcal{D})(\square	\square		
Austria	\bigcirc)(
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\square)()()(\square		
Norway	\bigcirc)(<u>)</u>				
Canada	\bigcirc				\mathcal{D})(\square	\square		
celand	\bigcirc				\mathcal{D})(\square		
Qatar	\bigcirc)(_)(_)(_)(_)(_)(

Psychic distance

This section aims to evaluate your perception of similarities between Denmark and each of the potential countries

- 8. On a scale from 1 to 10, How similar do you think is Denmark to the countries on the list, from both a cultural and an economic perspective? In other words, how similar is each country to Denmark *
 - 1 = Very different, 10= Very similar Mark only one oval per row.

4 5 6 7 2 3 8 9 10 NA 1 Iceland UK Мопасо Sweden Germany Ireland United Arab Emirated Romania Czech Republic Luxembourg Moroppo USA Egypt Poland Switzerfand Singapore Netherlands Canada Australia Croatia Finland Majaysia Belgium Algeria Tunisia New Zealand Qotar Norway Latvia France Austria

9. On a scale from 1 to 10, give your perceived similarity between the danish market and the countries on the list, with respect to the cultural aspect only *

1 = Very different, 10= Very similar Mark only one oval per row.



10. On a scale from 1 to 10, give your perceived similarity between the danish market and the countries on the list, with respect to the English language proficiency only * 1 = Very different, 10= Very similar Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	56	6 7	7 8	9	10
Singapore	\bigcirc	\square	\Box		\Box)(\mathbf{x})($) \bigcirc$
Canada	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$)C	X)C)C	$\overline{)}$
USA	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$ \rightarrow $	50	X	50	50	50
Switzerland	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	Ň)Č	50	$\overline{)}$
Belgium	\bigcirc			X	$\overline{)}$)(X)()(
Germany	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$)C	X)C)C	$\overline{)}$
Poland	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	50)(50
Norway	\bigcirc				$\overline{)}$)(X)C)($\overline{)}$
Egypt	\bigcirc				$\overline{)}$)C	X)C)C	$\overline{)}$
Malaysia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$)	X	C	$\mathbf{)}$	$\overline{)}$
Monaco	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		$\overline{)}$)	\mathbf{x}	\mathcal{T})	\sum
celand	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		\Box	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{D}	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \bigcirc$
Ireland	\bigcirc	\square	\Box		\Box	\mathcal{T}	X	C	C	\sum
Romania	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\Box	\Box)	\mathbf{x}		$) \subset$	$\supset \bigcirc$
Croatia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\Box	\square	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	$\supset \bigcirc$
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\square	\square	$\supset \subset$		DC	DC	\supset
United Arab Emirates	\odot	\square	\square		\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	\supset
Qatar	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	$\supset \bigcirc$
Sweden	\bigcirc	\square	\Box	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	C	$\supset \bigcirc$
Austria	\bigcirc	\Box	\square		\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	C	C	\supset
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	C	DC	DC	$\supset \bigcirc$
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	\supset
France	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$				\supset
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		\mathcal{X}		C	\supset
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset				DC	\supset
Australia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				DC	\supset
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset	DC	X	C	C	$\supset \bigcirc$
UK	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		C		C	\supset
Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		X	C	C	\supset
Finland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				DC	\supset
New Zea and	\bigcirc	\square	\square		\supset	DC	C	C	C	$\supset \bigcirc$

11. On a scale from 1 to 10, give your perceived similarity between the danish market and the countries on the list, with respect to the development of the level of ICT (Information and communication technology) only * 1 = Very different, 10= Very similar Mark only one oval per row.

	N	Δ	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
France	(5		-	$\overline{\gamma}$		5			$\overline{)}$	0	
Malavsia	7	50		÷	÷							\approx
Croatia	7	57							Ť			\ge
Germany	7	50		Ť	Ť	Ì	$ \rightarrow $	Ť	Ś	50		Ħ
Australia	7	Ń			Ŕ		$ \rightarrow $	Ŕ	50	50		$ \rightarrow $
Belgium		50	Ń	$\overline{)}$	Ť		\rightarrow	Ń	50	50	-	
Latvia	C)C	$\overline{)}$				$\overline{)}$	X)C	50)	
Poland	C	Ń	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	Ń	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Ireland	C	X		$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$)(
Austria	C	X	$\overline{)}$			$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)(
UK	C)($\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)(\Box
Singapore	C	C	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		\Box	\Box	Σ	$\supset C$	\supset	$\overline{)}$	\Box
Luxembourg	C	C	$\mathbf{)}$	\Box		\Box	\Box	\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset		\Box
Tunisia	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	$\overline{)}$		\Box	\supset	Σ	\supset	\supset)	\Box
Czech Republic	C	C	\supset	\Box	\sum	\Box	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\Box	\Box
Iceland	C	C	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset)	\Box
Algeria	C	C	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset
Norway	C	DC	\supset	\supset		\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\square	\Box
New Zealand	C	C	\supset	\supset	\supset	\Box	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset)	\Box
USA	C	DC	\supset	\supset	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset C$	\supset	\supset	\Box
United Arab Emirates	s(C	\supset	\supset		\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\Box
Egypt	C	DC	\supset			\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\square	\Box
Sweden	C	C	\supset	\supset		\square	\supset	\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\bigcirc
Qatar	C	C		\supset	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\bigcirc
Monaco	C	DC	\supset	\square		\square	\supset		\supset	\supset		\supset
Netherlands	C	DC	\supset	$ \supset $	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\square	\Box
Morocco	C)()	\square		\square	\square	Σ	\supset	\supset		\bigcirc
Finland	C	C		\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		\bigcirc
Canada	C						\square		\supset	\supset		\bigcirc
Switzerland	C	C		\square		\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset		\bigcirc
Romania	C	X)(X	X)()	\sim)()()(\frown

Market knowledge (1\3) Your perception with respect to the availability of secondary data related to each specific market

12. On a scale from 1 to 10, how do you\would you judge the access to information from secondary sources in relation to each potential market ? * 1 = Easy access , 10 = Very hard access Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5 1	6 .	7 8		10
Norway	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		-		$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	
Tunisia	$ \equiv $	$ \rightarrow $	Ť	Ŕ	Ť	50	Ň	50	5Č) T
Sweden	$ \cong $	=			57	37	57	57	57	57
Ireland	$ \longrightarrow $	Ì	Ť	Ť	ŚĊ	57	Ś	Ś	5	Ť
Morocco			Ì	Ň	- TC	50	Ń	50	ЗČ	
United Arab Emirates			Ť	Ń)Č)C	Ń)Č)Č) (
Latvia			Ť	Ť	50	50	Ň	50)Č) Č
Austria	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)()C)C	X)C)C	$\tilde{)}$
Monaco			$\overline{)}$)C)Č)C	X)C)C	$\hat{)}$
Croatia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	\mathbf{x}	\mathcal{T}	C	$\mathbf{\hat{D}}$
celand					50	50	50	50	50	$\overline{)}$
Malaysia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	$\tilde{)}$
Finland	\Box	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	Σ	C	\mathcal{T}	X	C	C	$\mathbf{)}$
Romania	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathbf{x})($\mathbf{)}$	\mathbf{x})	$) \bigcirc$
Algeria	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				50	50	50	50	50	$\overline{)}$
Netherlands	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\tilde{\mathbf{D}}$	$\tilde{)}$
Belgium	\Box	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	C	\mathcal{T}	X	C	C	$\mathbf{\hat{D}}$
Luxembourg	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathbf{x}	$\mathbf{)}$)	$) \bigcirc$
USA	\bigcirc		$\overline{)}$	\mathbf{x})()($\mathbf{)}$))($) \bigcirc$
Qatar	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)()C	$\tilde{)}$	$\tilde{)}$
New Zealand	\Box			X)C	C	X	C	C	$) \bigcirc$
Poland	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$))()(\mathbf{x})()(\mathcal{D}
Australia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T}	Σ	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{D}	\mathcal{D}
Germany	\Box	\Box	\Box		C	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	C	C	$) \subset$
Switzerland	\bigcirc)	\sum)()()())()($) \bigcirc$
Egypt	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$		\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$		DC	DC	\mathbf{D}
France	\bigcirc	\Box	\supset	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	$) \square$
Canada	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	DC	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	
Singapore	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\mathcal{D}	DĆ	DC	C	DC	DC	$) \subset$
UK	\bigcirc	\Box	\supset	\supset	DĆ	\mathcal{D}	\mathcal{D})C	DC	$) \square$

13. On a scale from 1 to 10, how do you\would you judge the accuracy of information from secondary sources with respect to each potential market ? * 1 = Inaccurate , 10 = Very accurate Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	56	5 7	7	8 9	э	10
Belgium	\square)	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$))	\mathbf{x}))($\mathbf{)}$	
Poland		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	-X)C)C	X)C)C	Ń	5
United Arab Emirates		$\overline{)}$	$ \rightarrow $		50	50	X	50	50	7	5
Croatia			Ť	Ť		50	Ň	50	50	Ń	5
UK				X	$\overline{)}$)C	X)C)C	Ń	5
New Zealand		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)C)C	X)C)C	Ń	5
Monaco					$\overline{)}$	50	X	50	50	Ń	5
Romania		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)C	X	$\overline{)}$)C	Ń	5
Netherlands				X	$\overline{)}$)C	X)C)C	X	5
Switzerland		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	X	5
Austria					$\overline{)}$	50	X	50	50	7	5
Czech Republic		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	5
Morocco	\Box			X	$\overline{)}$	C	X	C	C	X	5
Malaysia		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	\mathcal{T}	$\mathbf{)}$	X	5
celand	\Box	$\overline{)}$	\Box		\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$		\supset
Germany	\Box	\Box	\Box		\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	$\supset \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Sweden	\Box	\Box	\Box		\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Canada	\Box	\supset	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	Σ	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Australia	\bigcirc	\sum	\Box		\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{D}	\supset	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Egypt	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Finland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\square	\supset	DC	\mathcal{T}	DC	DC	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	C	DC	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{I}	\supset
reland	\Box	\Box	\Box	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$		$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset
Qatar	\bigcirc	\supset	\Box	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	\supset	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
France	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{D}	DC	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset
Norway	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	C	DC	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset
USA	\Box	\Box	\Box	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$		DC	\supset	\mathbb{C}	\supset
Singapore	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	DC	$\supset C$	\supset	\supset
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$		$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$)	\supset
Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$)	\supset
Tunisia	\square)()	$\overline{)}$)()(X)()()	$\overline{)}$

Market knowledge (2\3) Your degree of experiential knowledge related to each market

14. On a scale from 1 to 10, what is your degree of market knowledge based on your previous experiences, for each of those potential markets? * 1 = Poor, 10 = Very good knowledge Mark only one oval per row.



15. On a scale from 1 to 10, what is your degree of knowledge about the competition in each of those potential markets (international and local)? *

1 = Poor , 10 = Very good knowledge Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5	6	78	9	10
Poland	\bigcirc	\supset)	$\mathbf{)}$))))	$) \subset$	$\overline{)}$
Canada	\Box	$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}}$	X	$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	X)C)C	$\overline{\mathbf{O}}$
Czech Republic	\bigcirc)))	$\overline{)}$)())	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Latvia	\bigcirc	\Box	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset C$	\mathcal{T}	DC	$) \subset$	\Box
UK	\bigcirc	\supset)()()()($\mathbf{)}$)	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Finland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Sweden	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}		$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Croatia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC		\bigcirc
reland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				\bigcirc
Austria	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset				\bigcirc
USA	\bigcirc	\supset)(\supset	\supset	\supset			$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Romania	\bigcirc	\supset			\supset					\bigcirc
Monaco	\bigcirc									(\bigcirc)
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\square			\square				$) \subseteq$	$) \bigcirc$
Egypt	\bigcirc			<u>)</u> (<u>)</u>)	\sum
France	\bigcirc									\bigcirc
Luxembourg	\bigcirc								$) \subset$	(\bigcirc)
Qatar	\bigcirc			<u>)</u> (<u>)</u> ()	$) \bigcirc$
Morocco	\bigcirc		<u>)</u> (<u>)</u> (\mathcal{O}		<u>)</u>)	\sum
Norway	\bigcirc									\bigcirc
Germany	\Box						<u>)</u>			()
Algeria	\bigcirc			<u>)</u> ($\underline{)}$		<u>)</u>)	(\bigcirc)
Tunisia	\bigcirc)(<u>)</u>	20)(X)()	()
Switzerland	\bigcirc	_(<u>)</u> (<u>)</u>	_(X)	\sum
United Arab Emirates	s <u>()</u> (<u>)</u>			$ \ge $
Australia	\bigcirc		<u>)</u> (<u>)</u>		<u>)</u> (X)	\sum
Iceland	\bigcirc		20	<u> </u>	-29	20	X	\sum	\mathcal{L}	Q
Singapore	\bigcirc		<u>_</u>	<u>_</u>	20	\sim	<u> </u>	\sim	\sum	Ľ,
Belgium	\square		<u>)</u> (_(X		\sum	Ļ
New Zealand	()()(X	X)(X	X	X)(х)

Market knowledge (3\3) The Importance that you perceive in belonging to a network that might be open to relations with each market

16. On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe your local network can contribute to access knowledge about each of those foreign markets? *

 1 = Low contribution , 10 = Very high contribution
 Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	56	6 7	7	8 9	9	10
Poland	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset)(\supset)()()(
Luxembourg	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$)(X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	
UK	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$	50	50	50	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	5
Australia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$		\supset	\supset	\supset	
France	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box)()(\mathbf{X})()($\mathbf{)}$	
Latvia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		\supset	$\supset \subset$	Σ	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Monaco	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	DC	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset	DC	C	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	C	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Ireland	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$		$\supset C$	\supset	\supset	
Egypt	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	DC	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Germany	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	DC	C	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	
Sweden	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	C	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Belgium	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$		\supset	\supset	\supset	
Austria	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset				\supset		\supset	
celand	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset			$\supset \subset$		\supset	
Norway	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset			$\supset C$	\supset	\supset	
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset				\supset	\supset	\supset	
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset				\supset		\supset	
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset			$\supset C$		\supset	
Finland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			\supset	\supset	\supset	
Croatia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset				X	00)	\mathcal{O}	
Romania	\bigcirc	\square	\square								
Singapore	\bigcirc	\square	\square								
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			\mathcal{D}		\mathcal{D}	
Qatar	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset				\supset		\supset	
USA	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset C$	DC		\mathcal{D}		\mathcal{D}	
United Arab Emirates	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset			$\mathcal{D}($	\supset	$\mathcal{D}($	
Canada	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	$\supset C$	DC	C)($\mathcal{D}\mathcal{C}$)(

17. On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe your International network can contribute to access knowledge about each of those foreign markets? * 1 = Low contribution , 10 = Very high contribution Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5 6	6 7	8	9	10
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset			$) \subset$	$)\bigcirc$
USA	\bigcirc	\Box			$\mathbf{)}$		X)C)($\overline{\bigcirc}$
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\Box			$\overline{)}$)	\mathbf{x}	\mathcal{T})	$\overline{)}$
Germany	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\Box		\supset	\supset	Σ	\mathcal{D}	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\bigcirc		\Box	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	C	$) \subset$	$\overline{\mathbf{O}}$
Australia	\bigcirc	\bigcirc		\Box)()(X)($) \subset$	\bigcirc
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset	Σ	$\supset \subset$	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Poland	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset		DC	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
Romania	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset		$) \subset$	$) \subset$	\bigcirc
celand	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	C	DC	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Norway	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset		C		$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Singapore	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$		$) \subset$	$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Monaco	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset					$)\bigcirc$
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset						$) \bigcirc$
Egypt	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset					$) \bigcirc$
Canada	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset				$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Austria	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square							$) \bigcirc$
Belgium	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset							$) \bigcirc$
United Arab Emirate	s()	\bigcirc	\square				X		$) \subset$	$) \bigcirc$
Morocco	\bigcirc	\bigcirc					X)	$) \bigcirc$
France	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square						$) \subseteq$	$) \bigcirc$
Qatar	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset)	$) \bigcirc$
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\bigcirc					<u>)</u>)	$) \bigcirc$
Finland	\bigcirc	\bigcirc			\mathcal{O}		X)	$) \bigcirc$
Sweden	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset				X		$) \subseteq$	$) \bigcirc$
Latvia	\bigcirc	\bigcirc					<u>)</u>)	$) \bigcirc$
Croatia	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square)		X)	$) \bigcirc$
UK	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square		\sum	\mathcal{O}	X	C	$) \subset$	(\bigcirc)
Algeria	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\square	\square			X	C	$) \subset$	$)\bigcirc$
reland	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\supset						$) \subset$	$)\bigcirc$
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\square)(\sim)()(X)()($) \bigcirc$

18. On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe that shared knowledge from other Systematic's business units can contribute to access knowledge regarding each of those foreign markets ?

1 = Low contribution , 10 = Very high contribution Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5		6	7	8	9	10
Norway	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc)()()(\mathcal{T})	$\overline{)}$		
Morocco	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$)()C	X	X	$\overline{)}$			
Latvia	\bigcirc		\bigcirc)()()($\overline{)}$			
Netherlands	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$))C	$\mathbf{}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Egypt	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc		X	C)(X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
New Zealand	\bigcirc		$\overline{\bigcirc}$		X))(X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Singapore	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc		X)()		$\overline{)}$			
Croatia	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc		($) \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Australia	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc		X	C)(\mathcal{X}	$\overline{)}$			
Monaco	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$		X	$\mathbf{)}$	X	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Tunisia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$		X)()($\overline{)}$			
Sweden	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$		X)C)($\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
USA	\bigcirc		\bigcirc)()C	X	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
celand	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$)($\mathbf{)}$)($\overline{)}$			
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc)))($\overline{)}$			
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc		X	\mathcal{D}	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Germany	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc		X)()(X	$\mathbf{)}$			
Romania	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc)	$) \subset$)(\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$ \supset $	
Poland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\subset)($) \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$		\supset	$\overline{)}$		
France	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc		()C	$\mathbf{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc		X)C)(X	$\overline{)}$			
Austria	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc)()()(\mathbf{x}	$\mathbf{)}$)		
Belgium	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc		($) \subset$)($\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Algeria	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\subset)()C	\mathcal{T}	Σ	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Finland	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\subset)()()(X	\mathbf{x}			
Malaysia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$)($) \subset$)($\overline{)}$			
Canada	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc)()()($\overline{)}$			
Qatar	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\subset	X)C	C	$\overline{\mathbf{x}}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Ireland	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\subset	X	C)(\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	\Box		
United Arab Emirates	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$)	$\mathbf{)}$)($\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
UK	$\overline{\bigcirc}$			0	X)(30	X		$\overline{)}$		

Intellectual property Your perception of imitation risks

19. On a scale from 1 to 10, do you perceive any risk that the Cicero LMS product will be imitated by the competition in each of those market? * 1 = Low risk , 10 = High risk Mark only one oval per row.

Netherlands Image: Control of the second		1		2	3		4	5	6	7	8	9		10
Malaysia Image: Control of the second se	Netherlands	(X)(-	X	X)()())()(
United Arab Emirates Image: Control of the second seco	Malaysia	Ċ	X)(X	X)($\overline{)}$	X)(X	Ď
USA Image: Constraint of the second seco	United Arab Emirates		50	-)()($\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	5)(50	5
New Zealand Image: Constraint of the second se	USA	Ć	X)(X	X	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathcal{T}	X		X	X	
Monaco Iceland Iceland Algeria Iceland Iceland Algeria Iceland Iceland Germany Iceland Iceland Czech Republic Iceland Iceland Canada Iceland Iceland Croatia Iceland Iceland Finland Iceland Iceland Belgium Iceland Iceland Norway Iceland Iceland Sweden Iceland Iceland Sweden Iceland Iceland Austria Iceland Iceland Switzerland Iceland Iceland Inteland Iceland Iceland Juxembourg Iceland Iceland France Iceland Iceland Jutvia Iceland Iceland <tr< th=""><th>New Zealand</th><th>C</th><th>X</th><th>)(</th><th></th><th>X</th><th>\mathbf{X}</th><th>)(</th><th>$\mathbf{)}$</th><th></th><th></th><th>$) \subset$</th><th>)(</th><th></th></tr<>	New Zealand	C	X)(X	\mathbf{X})($\mathbf{)}$			$) \subset$)(
Iceland Iceland Algeria Iceland Germany Iceland Czech Republic Iceland Canada Iceland Croatia Iceland Croatia Iceland Belgium Iceland Belgium Iceland Norway Iceland Sweden Iceland Sweden Iceland Belgiuth Iceland Austria Iceland Switzerland Iceland Morocco Iceland France Iceland Luxerbourg Iceland Switzerland Iceland Justria Iceland Morocco Iceland Justria Iceland Justria <td< th=""><th>Monaco</th><th>C</th><th>X</th><th>)(</th><th></th><th>X</th><th>X</th><th>)(</th><th>\mathbf{x}</th><th>)</th><th>_</th><th>)(</th><th>)(</th><th>$\overline{)}$</th></td<>	Monaco	C	X)(X	X)(\mathbf{x})	_)()($\overline{)}$
Algeria Image: Constraint of the second	celand	\subset	\mathcal{T}	\supset		\mathbf{x}	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		$) \subset$	$\mathcal{D}($	\supset
Germany Image: Constraint of the second se	Algeria	C	х)(X)()()()()(\supset
Czech Republic Canada Color Color Croatia Color Color Color Finland Color Color Color Belgium Color Color Color Norway Color Color Color Norway Color Color Color Norway Color Color Color Sweden Color Color Color Sweden Color Color Color Egypt Color Color Color Poland Color Color Color Austria Color Color Color Romania Color Color Color Luxembourg Color Color Color Morocco Color Color Color Color Ireland Color Color Color Color Australia Color Color Color Color Jingapore Color Color Color Color Qatar <tdcolor< td=""></tdcolor<>	Germany	C	х)(Х	Х	-)()()()(\supset
Canada Conta Conta Croatia Conta Conta Finland Conta Conta Belgium Conta Conta Norway Conta Conta Tunisia Conta Conta Sweden Conta Conta Egypt Conta Conta Poland Conta Conta Austria Conta Conta Morocco Conta Conta Ineland Conta Conta Morocco Conta Conta Inteland Conta Conta Inteland Conta Conta UK Conta Conta Gingapore Conta Conta Qatar Conta Conta	Czech Republic	C	X	\square		C		\supset	\supset			C	C	\supset
Croatia Image: Constraint of the second	Canada	C	X	\supset)(\supset	\supset	\supset			C)(\supset
Finland Image: Constraint of the second se	Croatia	C	х)(Х)(-)(\sum)C)(
Belgium Image: Constraint of the second se	Finland	C	х)(X)(_)(\sim)()(\supset
Norway Image: Constraint of the system Image: Consystem Image	Belgium	C	X			C		\supset	\supset)(\supset
Tunisia Image: Constraint of the second se	Norway	C)(\supset)(\supset	\supset	\supset)C	$\mathcal{D}($	\supset
Sweden Image: Constraint of the system Image: Consystem Image	Tunisia	<u> </u>	х	_)(х	<u> </u>	_)(_)()()(
Egypt Image: Constraint of the second seco	Sweden	C	х			х		_)(\supset)()(\supset
Poland Image: Constraint of the second	Egypt	C)(\square		C		\square	\square)C)(
Austria Image: Constraint of the second se	Poland		X			X	<u> </u>	_)(_)()()(
Romania Image: Constraint of the second se	Austria	<u> </u>	х			X		_)()C_)(
Luxembourg Image: Constraint of the second	Romania	<u> </u>	X			X	<u> </u>)()()()(
Switzerland Image: Switzerland Morocco Image: Switzerland Ireland Image: Switzerland France Image: Switzerland Latvia Image: Switzerland Australia Image: Switzerland UK Image: Switzerland Singapore Image: Switzerland Qatar Image: Switzerland	Luxembourg)(_	X	_)(_)(
Morocco Image: Constraint of the second	Switzerland	Ċ	X	_)(_	X	<u> </u>	_)(_)(_)()(_)
Ireland Image: Constraint of the second	Morocco	<u> </u>	X)(_	X	X)()()	_)()($ \geq $
France Image: Constraint of the second	Ireland	<u> </u>	X)(_	X	<u>)</u>	_)(_)(_)	_	<u>)(</u>)($ \geq $
Latvia Image: Constraint of the second sec	France	<u> </u>	X	_)(_	X	<u> </u>	_)(_)(_	<u>)</u>	X	_)
Australia Image: Constraint of the second seco	Latvia	<u>(</u>	X	_)(_	X	_ <u>)(</u>)(_)(_)	_	<u>)(</u>)(
UK Image: Constraint of the second seco	Australia	<u> </u>	X)(_	X	X)()()	_)()($ \geq $
Singapore Image: Constraint of the second seco	UK	<u>(</u>	X	_)(_	X	<u>)</u>		_)(_)	_)()($ \geq $
Qatar ()()()()()()()()()()()	Singapore	<u>(</u>	X	<u>)(</u>	_	X	<u></u>	<u>)(</u>		<u>)</u>	_	<u>)</u>)(
	Qatar	(X)(_)()()()()	_)()(

20. On a scale from 1 to 10, do you perceive any risk that the Cicero LMS source code will not have sufficient protection (Intellectual protection) in each of those market? * 1 = Low risk , 10 = High risk Mark only one oval per row.



Manageria competencies

Your perception with respect to the adequacy of the available managerial skills

21. On a scale from 1 to 10, considering all the staff involved with the Cicero LMS, whether external or internal: To what extent the available managerial skills are adequate to penetrate each of those foreign market ? * 1 = Inadequate , 10 = Perfectly adequate Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	56	3 7	7	8 9	9	10
Ireland	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$))	$\mathbf{)}$)))	\supset
Czech Republic	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	X	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	\mathbf{x}	5
Monaco	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$	50	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$)(5
Malaysia	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	Σ	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	\supset
Algeria	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box		\supset		\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	\supset	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Romania	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	C	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	\supset
United Arab Emirates	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{T}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	$\mathbf{)}$	\supset
Germany	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset C$	$\supset \subset$	\mathcal{D}	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset
Qatar	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	C	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset
Poland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset			$\supset C$		\supset	\supset
celand	\bigcirc		\supset								\supset
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset				X)(\supset
Austria	\bigcirc		\supset								\supset
Belgium	\bigcirc										
New Zealand	\bigcirc						X				
Egypt	\bigcirc						X)(
Tunisia	\bigcirc			_)(X				
Croatia	\bigcirc			(<u> </u>			<u>)</u>	_)
Canada	\bigcirc	_)(_)(_)(<u> </u>			<u>)(</u>)
Australia	\bigcirc		\sum		\mathcal{O}	\mathcal{O}	X	\mathcal{O}	\mathcal{O}	X	$ \geq $
Luxembourg	\bigcirc						X			<u>)</u>	$ \ge $
Morocco	\bigcirc						X			_)($ \ge $
Switzerland	\bigcirc	_(_(X			<u>)</u> ($ \geq $
USA	\bigcirc	_)(_(<u> </u>)()(X	\mathcal{I})(X	$ \geq $
France	\bigcirc	_(X	<u>)</u> (Ş	$ \ge$
Singapore	Ş			_\			X	<u>)</u> (_($ \ge$
Latvia	\bigcirc					\sim	X	\sim	\sim	-X	_
Sweden	\subseteq	\rightarrow	_(_(20	<u>)</u> (X	20	20	Ş	2
Norway	$ \rightarrow $	_(Ļ	\rightarrow	÷	÷	<u>_</u>	~~	\$	$ \ge$
UK	\subseteq	_(_(_(_(_(_	×	<u>)</u> (<u>)</u> (Ş	_
Finland	с . УС	X	X	- X)(30	- 1(10	- 10	-)(-)

22. On a scale from 1 to 10, to what extent the available competencies master the library business' rules of the game on each of those markets? * 1 = Poor, 10 = Perfectly adequate Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5	6	5	7	8	9	10
Latvia	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\square	\subset	$) \subset$)($\mathbf{)}$)))(
UK	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{\bigcirc}$	$\overline{\bigcirc}$	Ċ	$) \subset$	C	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		_
celand	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	Σ	\supset	$\overline{)}$		
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	DC	\mathcal{T}	\supset	$\overline{)}$		
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	$\overline{)}$		
Romania	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	\mathbf{X}))(
Sweden	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	Σ	\supset	\supset		
Monaco	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	$\overline{)}$		
Finland	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C		\supset	\supset		
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	Σ	\supset)		
Qatar	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	Σ	\supset	$\overline{)}$		
Egypt	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	DC	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		
Norway	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	Σ	\supset	\supset		
Croatia	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		
Belgium	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\Box	\square
Ireland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	DC	\mathcal{D}	\supset	\supset		
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\supset	\supset	\supset		
Poland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		
France	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\mathcal{D}	\supset	\supset		
United Arab Emirates	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Germany	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	DC	\supset	\supset	\supset	\Box	
Austria	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset	\Box	
Singapore	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\supset	\supset	\supset		
Canada	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	C	$) \subset$	DC	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
USA	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset)C)(\mathcal{X})(\supset		
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset)C)(\mathcal{X})(\supset)	
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	$\supset C$	\supset	\supset		
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\subset	$) \subset$	C	$\supset C$	\supset	\supset		
Australia	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\bigcirc		$) \subset$	C	\mathcal{T}	\supset	$\overline{)}$		

Product superiority Perception of the superiority of the Cicero LMS product

23. On a scale from 1 to 10, do you believe your Cicero LMS is perceived\would be perceived as superior to the existing products of the competition in each of those markets? * 1 = Inferior , 10 = Very superior Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	56	5 7	8	9	10
Norway	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\square	\Box	\supset				\supset
celand	$\overline{\bigcirc}$				$\overline{)}$)C	X)C)C	$\tilde{)}$
Czech Republic	$\overline{\bigcirc}$						$\overline{)}$	50	50	$\overline{)}$
Croatia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box			$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{T})C)C	\sum
Australia	\bigcirc	\square	\Box		\Box	$\overline{)}$	Σ	C	C	$\supset \bigcirc$
Canada	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	C	DC	DC	\supset
Monaco	\bigcirc	\Box	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	Σ	C	C	$\supset \bigcirc$
Qatar	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\square	\Box	\supset		C	C	$\supset \bigcirc$
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\square	\square	$\supset \subset$	C	DC	C	\supset
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	C	DC	DC	\supset
Poland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset			C	C	\supset
United Arab Emirates		\square	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	$\supset \subset$		C	DC	$\supset \bigcirc$
Austria	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	\supset
Belgium	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square			C	DC	\supset
Singapore	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square			C	DC	\supset
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset			C	C	\supset
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset			DC	DC	\supset
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square			C	DC	\supset
UK	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square			C	C	\supset
reland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset		C	C	C	\supset
Romania	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset					\supset
France	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square					\supset
Sweden	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\square	\square					\supset
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc)(X	C)	\sum
Latvia	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc		\square					\supset
Finland	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square					\supset
Germany	\bigcirc	\square	\bigcirc	\square	\square		<u>)</u>)		$\underline{)}$
USA	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square		X	C	C	$\supset \bigcirc$
Egypt	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\supset	\square		X			\supset
Algeria	\bigcirc	\supset	\bigcirc	\square	\square		X	C	C	\supset
Malaysia	(\Box)		\square)()()()()()()

24. On a scale 1 to 10, what level do you think the brand recognition of the Cicero LMS reached in each of those countries? * 1 = Low , 10 = Very High Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Canada	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box)	\supset)	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$)		
Sweden	\Box	\Box	\Box)()()(X))(
Finland					$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Qatar (\bigcirc	\Box	\square	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathcal{T}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Germany	\Box	\Box		$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{X}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Ireland	\Box	\Box	\Box	$\mathbf{)}$)()(X))		
USA					$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{\mathbf{x}}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Latvia ($\overline{\bigcirc}$	\Box	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Romania	\Box	\Box	\Box	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	\mathcal{X}	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Poland	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	$\mathbf{)}$)()	X	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$		
Egypt (\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\mathbf{x}	\supset	$\mathbf{)}$	\mathcal{X}	\supset	$\overline{)}$		
Croatia	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\Box		\square
Monaco	\bigcirc	\Box	\Box	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{X}	\supset	\supset		
France	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	Σ	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Belgium (\bigcirc	\Box	\square	$\overline{)}$	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	$\overline{)}$	\supset	
Algeria (\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\Box	\supset	\square
UK (\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	Σ	\supset	\supset	\square	
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	Σ	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Netherlands	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	Σ	\supset	\sum		
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\Box	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\mathcal{T}	\supset	\supset		
United Arab Emirates	\bigcirc	\supset	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Australia	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\Box	\supset	
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Norway	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
celand	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset		\supset)	\supset	
Singapore	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	Σ	\supset	\supset		
Tunisia	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset		\supset	\Box	\supset	
Austria	\bigcirc	\square	\square	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\supset	\Box	\supset	

25. On a scale 1 to 10, to what extent do you believe that the country of origin (Denmark) of the Cicero LMS will have an impact on the attractiveness of the product on those markets? * 1 = Low impact, 10 = Very High impact Mark only one oval per row.

	NA	1	2	3	4	5	6	7 8	9	10)
Egypt	\bigcirc	\square)	$\mathbf{)}$))	\mathbf{x}))	\mathbf{x}	5
Sweden	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		Ń)C)Č)Č	X)C)Č)C	5
Tunisia	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{)}$	50	50)(X	50	5)(5
Finland	$\overline{\bigcirc}$		$\overline{)}$	- C	50	$\overline{)}$	Ň	50	50	$\mathbf{\tilde{c}}$	5
Romania	\bigcirc		$\overline{)}$)C	C)(X)C)C)C	5
Singapore	\bigcirc	$\overline{)}$	$\mathbf{)}$	X)()(X)()()(5
celand	\bigcirc	\square	$\overline{)}$		\supset	$\overline{)}$)			5
France	\bigcirc	\square	$\overline{)}$	$\overline{)}$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	Σ	\mathcal{D}	DC	\mathcal{D}	5
Canada	\bigcirc	\Box)		\mathcal{T}	$\mathbf{)}$		\mathcal{T}	C	C	5
Monaco	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\supset \subset$	\supset		\mathcal{D}	C	C	5
Latvia	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\supset C$	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	C	D
Austria	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$)
Switzerland	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	DC	5
reland	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\supset \subset$	\supset		$\supset \subset$	DC	DC)
Luxembourg	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	$\supset \subset$	$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset	$\supset \subset$	DC)
Belgium	\bigcirc	\square	\supset	$\supset C$	$\supset C$	\supset		$\supset \subset$	DC)
Croatia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset		$\supset C$	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	DC)
United Arab Emirates	(\bigcirc)	\supset	\supset		$\supset C$	\supset			DC	C)
Norway	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\supset C$	\supset	\supset		DC)
Malaysia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset		\supset	\supset			DC)
Morocco	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset		$\supset \subset$	\supset	\supset		DC	DC)
USA	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset		$\supset \subset$)
Poland	\bigcirc	\square	\supset		$\mathcal{O}($)()
UK	\bigcirc	\supset	\sum		\mathcal{D}	$\mathcal{O}($	X		C		2
Czech Republic	\bigcirc	\supset									2
Germany	\bigcirc	\square									2
Qatar	\bigcirc	\square)
Algeria	\bigcirc	\square				\mathcal{D}	Σ	C	C	X	2
New Zealand	\bigcirc	\supset								C	2
Australia	\bigcirc	\supset	\supset	DC	DC	DC	C	C	C	C)
Netherlands	()	X	X)()()(X)()())

Thank you for your time and patience If you have any additional comments, you can write them here

26. Comments

External link to the Form's answers:

https://1drv.ms/b/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxxXXFML24VAAAV3

	Avg Product Alignment	Avg Psychic distance	Avg Market knowledge	Avg Intelectual property	Avg Managerial competencies	Avg Product superirity
Netherlands	4,00	5,88	5,79	1,25	4,25	6,17
France	1,88	2,38	2,07	1,00	1,50	1,83
Belgium	1,38	4,63	3,29	1,00	1,25	3,67
Luxembourg	1,88	3,63	2,29	1,00	1,50	2,00
Monaco	2,13	2,38	1,21	1,00	1,50	1,67
Switzerland	2,00	2,75	1,50	1,25	1,25	2,00
UK	1,88	3,63	3,50	1,00	2,00	2,00
Morocco	2,13	1,38	1,07	1,25	1,25	2,00
Algeria	2,00	1,38	1,43	2,25	1,25	2,00
Tunisia	2,00	1,63	1,14	2,00	1,25	1,83
Egypt	2,13	1,00	1,07	2,25	1,25	1,83
Australia	1,88	2,75	4,29	1,00	1,25	2,83
Finland	2,63	4,63	4,64	1,00	4,00	4,17
Germany	2,50	4,63	2,93	1,25	1,25	2,50
Romania	2,00	1,88	2,14	2,25	1,25	2,17
Singapore	2,13	2,25	1,50	1,50	1,25	1,67
New Zealand	2,88	3,63	4,43	1,00	2,75	4,50
United Arab Emirates	2,00	1,25	1,86	1,75	1,25	2,17
USA	1,75	2,63	3,14	1,25	1,25	2,33
Norway	2,75	5,50	4,57	1,00	2,00	4,50
Iceland	2,88	5,00	4,64	0,75	3,25	5,33
Ireland	2,13	4,13	2,00	0,75	1,50	2,33
Canada	1,75	2,75	1,79	0,75	1,25	2,17
Austria	2,13	2,38	1,71	0,75	1,25	1,83
Qatar	2,00	1,00	1,14	1,75	1,25	2,00
Malaysia	2,25	1,13	1,14	1,75	1,25	2,17
Sweden	2,50	5,13	5,36	0,75	5,75	4,17
Czech Republic	1,75	2,00	1,21	1,25	1,25	2,17
Poland	2,00	1,75	1,50	2,00	1,25	2,00
Croatia	1,88	1,75	1,21	1,75	1,50	2,17
Latvia	2,25	1,75	1,07	1,50	1,25	2,00

Appendix 4: Subjective variables – Form result compounding External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

Appendix 5: Fuzzy expert system settings

External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

Node 💌	Node Name 💌	Node Label 💌	Number of Inputs 💽	Number of rules 💌	Membership 💽	Defined Range 💌
1	Market Size	ms_node	2	9	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
2	Market Growth	mg_node	2	9	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
3	Market Intensity	mi_node	4	108	[Low-Medium-High-VeryHigh]	[0-1]
4	Market Potential	mp_node	3	36	[Low-Medium-High-VeryHigh]	[0-1]
5	Market Access	ma_node	2	9	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
6	Market Attractiveness	matt_node	2	12	[Low-Medium-High-VeryHigh]	[0-1]
7	Country Risk	cr_node	4	75	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
8	Internet Infrastructure	ii_node	2	12	[Low-Medium-High-VeryHigh]	[0-1]
9	Education and infrastructure development	eid_node	4	144	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
10	Government expenditure in educatiion	gee_node	2	9	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
11	Economic development	ed_node	4	36	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
12	Economic social and infrastructure developement	esid_node	2	9	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
13	Cultural distance and geographical proximity	cdgp_node	4	81	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
14	Country attractiveness	catt_node	4	108	[Low-Medium-High-VeryHigh]	[0-1]
15	Public library sector attractiveness	plsa_node	3	27	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
16	Product perception	pp_node	2	9	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
17	Knowledge and competencies	kc_node	3	27	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
18	Management perception	mgtp_node	3	21	[Low-Medium-High]	[0-1]
19	Country Selection	cs node	3	36	[Low-Medium-High-VeryHigh]	[0-1]

Appendix 6: Rule base and their arguments External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/p/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyx9Ok9cDAzkXU19t</u>

Var 14 (Market Size) - 9 Rules

- Ind 1 = High & Ind 2 = High, Then Var 15 = High
- Ind 1 = High & Ind 2 = Medium Then Var 15 = High
- ♦ Ind1 = High & Ind 2 = Low Then Var 15= Medium
- ♦ Ind 1 = Medium & Ind 2 = High, Then Var 15 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 1 = Medium & Ind 2 = Medium, Then Var 15 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 1 = Medium & Ind 2 = Low, Then Var 15 = Medium
- Ind 1 = Low & Ind 2 = High, Then Var 15 = Medium
- Ind 1 = Low & Ind 2 = Medium, Then Var 15 = Low
- \diamond Ind 1 = Low & Ind 2 = Low, Then Var 15 = Low

- Urbanization (Ind1)

- Population (Ind2)

Argument: Urbanization (ind1) seems to be more important than just the number of inhabitant (ind2), the more Urbanized the country the more likely to find a viable infrastructure for public libraries, thus for the LMS,

Var 15 (Market growth rate) - 9 Rules

- ♦ Ind 3 = High & Ind 4 = High, Then Var 15 = High
- ♦ Ind 3 = High & Ind 4 = Medium Then Var 15 = High
- Ind 3 = High & Ind 4 = Low Then Var 15 = Medium
- Ind 3 = Medium & Ind 4 = High, Then Var 15 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 3 = Medium & Ind 4 = Medium, Then Var 15 = Medium
- Ind 3 = Medium & Ind 4 = Low, Then Var 15 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 3= Low & Ind 4 = High, Then Var 15 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 3 = Low & Ind 4 = Medium, Then Var 15 = Low
- \diamond Ind 3 = Low & Ind 4 = Low, Then Var 15 = Low

- Actual growth rate (Ind3)

- Projected growth rate (Ind4)

Argument: Actual growth rate (ind3) is more relevant since the projected one (ind4) is yet subject to change

Var 16 (Market Intensity) – 108 Rules							
lad 5	= High, Ind_6 = Very High and :	Ind 5 =	High, Ind 6 = High and :		Ind 5 = High, Ind 6 = Medium and : *	Ind :	5 = High, Ind 6 = Low and :
	Ind 7 = High		Ind 7 = High		♦ Ind 7 = High		Ind 7 = High
	♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 Very High		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 High
	♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Very High		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 High		Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
	♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 7 = Medium		Ind 7 = Medium		♦ Ind 7 = Medium		Ind 7 = Medium
	♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
	♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 1 High		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 7 = Low		Ind 7 = Low		♦ Ind 7 = Low		Ind 7 = Low
	♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium
	♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Low
	♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		• Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Low		♦ Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Low
Ind	5 = Medium, Ind 6 = Very High and : *	In	5 = Medium, Ind $6 = High and :$		Ind 5 = Medium, Ind 6 = Medium and :		nd.5 = Medium, Ind.6 = Low and :
	Ind 7 = High		Ind 7 = High		♦ Ind 7 = High		♦ Ind 7 = High
			Ind 8= High then Var 16 High				 Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Very High				Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		 Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
	 Ind 8 = Iow Then Var 16 High 		Ind 8 = Iow Then Var 16 High		 Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium 		♦ Ind 8 = Iow Then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 7 = Medium		Ind 7 = Medium		♦ Ind 7 = Medium		♦ Ind 7 = Medium
	Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		Ind 8= High then Var 16 High		 Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium 		 Ind 8= High then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 High		Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium		Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
	Ind 8 = Iow Then Var 16 High		Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium		Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Low
	Ind / = Low		Ind 7 = Low		♦ Ind / = Low		♦ Ind / = Low
	 md 8= High then Var 16 High a 16 8 = Madium Then Var 16 High 		 Ind 8= High then Var 16 High Ind 8 = Multium Theo Var 16 Multium 		 Ind S= High then Var 16 Medium Ind S = Modium Thus Var 16 Medium 		Ind 8= High then Var 16 Low
	Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 High		 Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Medium 		 Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Low 		 Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Low Ind 8 = low Then Var 16 Low

- GNI per capita (Ind 5) HDI (Ind 6) Trade in services to GDP (Ind 7) Danish share of the total imports (Ind 8)

- = Low, Ind 6 = Very High and :
 Ind 5 = Low, Ind 6 = High and :
 Ind 5 = Low, Ind 6 = Low, Ind 7 = High

 Ind 7 = High
 Ind 7 = High
 Ind 7 = High
 Ind 7 = High
 Ind 7 = High

 ind 8 = High then Var 16 High
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 High
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium

 ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium

 ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium

 ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 Ind 7 = Medium
 Ind 7 = Medium

 ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = Northen Var 16 Medium
 Ind 7 = Medium
 Ind 7 = Medium

 ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium

 ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = High then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium

 ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 ind 8 = Inor Then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 Ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium

 ind 8 = Medium Then Var 16 Medium
 <td

Argument: Ind 6 (HDI) includes already the Ind 5 (GNP per Capita), but it is judged to be less updated, that is why we found it wise to keep both indicators. In addition, the former deserves more weight as it involves larger aspects. As for the Ind 7 it is kess important than both but shows the importance of importing services for the country. The last had 8 is the part of Danish share on the total import, and I believe it to be a good indicator, however, it does have the lower weight.

	Int 3 (Market Potential) – 36 Rules	
 Var 15 = High, Var 14 = High and : Var 16 = Very High then <u>but 3</u> = Very High Var 16 = High Then <u>but 3</u> = High Var 16 = Medium Then <u>but 3</u> = High Var 16 = Low Then <u>but 3</u> = Low 	 Var 15 = High, Var 14 = Medium and : Var 16 = Very High then Jag 3 = Very High Var 16 = High Then Jag 3 = High Var 16 = Medium Then Jag 3 = Medium Var 16 = Low Then Jag 3 = Medium 	 ♦ Var 15 = High, Var 14 = Low and : ♦ Var 16 = Very High then <u>log</u> 3 = High ♦ Var 16 = High Then <u>log</u> 3 = High ♦ Var 16 = Medium Then <u>log</u> 3 = Medium ♦ Var 16 = Low Then <u>log</u> 3 = Low
 Var 15 = Medium, Var 14 = High and : Var 16 = Very High then Int 3 = High Var 16 = High Then Int 3 = High Var 16 = Medium Then Int 3 = Medium Var 16 = Low Then Int 3 - Low 	 Var 15 = Medium, Var 14 = Medium and : Var 16 = Very High then Int 3 = High Var 16 = High Then Int 3 = Medium Var 16 = Medium Then Int 3 = Medium Var 16 = Low Then Int 3 - Medium 	 ♦ Var 15 = Medium, Var 14 = Low and : ♦ Var 16 = Very High then Int 3 = High ♦ Var 16 = High Then Int 3 = Medium ♦ Var 16 = Medium Then Int 3 = Medium ♦ Var 16 = Low Then Int 3 = Low
 ♦ Var 15 = Low, Var 14 = High and : ♦ Var 16 = Very High then Int 3 = High ♦ Var 16 = High Then Int 3 = High ♦ Var 16 = Medium Then Int 3 = Medium ♦ Var 16 = Low Then Int 3 = Low 	 Var 15 = Low, Var 14 = Medium and : Var 16 = Very High then Int 3 = High Var 16 = High Then Int 3 = Medium Var 16 = Medium Then Int 3 = Medium Var 16 = Low Then Int 3 = Low 	 ♦ Var 15 = Low, Var 14 = Low and : ♦ Var 16 = Very High then Int 3 = Medium ♦ Var 16 = High Then Int 3 = Medium ♦ Var 16 = Medium Then Int 3 = Low ♦ Var 16 = Low Then Int 3 = Low

Argument: Var 16 (Market intensity) and Var 15 (growth rate), might have more importance for the firm than Var 15 (market size) because it gave more importance to the potential of a country in being able to acquire such solutions than the capacity present on the country although of course both aspects an important to aspect being able to

Int 4 (Market Access) – 9 Rules

- ♦ Var 17 = High & Var 18 = High, Then Int 4= High
- ♦ Var 17 = High & Var 18= Medium Then Int 4 = Hig
- \diamond Var 17 = High & Var 18 = Low Then Int 4 = Medium
- ♦ Var 17 = Medium & Var 18 = High, Then Int 4 = Medium
- ♦ Var 17= Medium & Var 18 = Medium, Then Int 4 = Medium
- ♦ Var 17= Medium & Var 18 = Low, Then Int 4 = Medius
- \diamond var 17 = Low & var 18 = Medium, Then int 4 = Low
- So Var 17 = Low & Var 18 = Low, Then Int 4 = Low
- Level of competition (Var 17)
- Entry barriers (Var 18

Argument: Level of competition appears to have more importance when it comes to the industry structure than the entry barriers, as competition is more challenging to overcome.

Int 9 (Market Attractiveness) - 9 Rules

- Int 3 = Very High & Int 4 = High, Then Int 9= Very High
- Int 3 = Very High & Int 4 = Medium, Then Int 9= High
- Int 3 = Very High & Int 4 = Low, Then Int 9= Medium
- ✤ Int 3 = High & Int 4 = High, Then Int 9= High
- Int 3 = High & Int 4 = Medium, Then Int 9= Mediu
- ♦ Int 3 = High & Int 4 = Low, Then Int 9= Medium
- Int 3 = Medium & Int 4 = High, Then Int 9= High
- ✤ Int 3 = Medium & Int 4 = Medium, Then Int 9= Medium
- ♦ Int 3 = Medium & Int 4 = Low, Then Int 9= Low
- ♦ Int 3 = Low & Int 4 = High, Then Int 9= Medium
- ♦ Int 3 = Low & Int 4 = Low, Then Int 9= Low
- Market potential (Int 3)
- Market access (Int 4)
- Argument: Both variables have important weight against each other.

	Int 8 (Country Risk) – 75 Rules	
• Var 9 = High, Var 10 = High and :	♦ Var 9 = High, Var 10 = Medium and :	Source State St
♦ Var 11 = High		♦ Var 11 = High
 Var 13= High then Int 8 = Low 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = Low 	 Var 13- High then Int 8 = High
♦ Var 13— Medium then Int 8 – Low	 Var 13– Medium then Int 8 – Low 	Var 13- Medium then Int 8 - Medium
Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Low	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Low 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Low
♦ Var 11 = Medium	• Var 11 = Medium	♦ Var 11 = Medium
 Var 13= High then Int 8 = Medium 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = Medium 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
 Var 13- Medium then Int 8 - Medium 	 Var 13- Medium then Int 8 - Medium 	Var 13- Medium then Int 8 - High
 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Low 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Medium 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High
• Var 11 = Low	♦ Var 11 = Low	♦ Var 11 = Low
 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Medium then Int = High 	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High
 Var 13- Low then Int 8 - High 	 Var 13- Low then Int 8 - High 	 Var 13– Low then Int 8 – High
♦ Var 9 = Medium. Var 10 = High and :	♦ Var 9 = Medium, Var 10 = Medium and :	♦ Var 9 = Medium, Var 10 = Low and :
♦ Var 11 = High	◊ Var 11 = High	♦ Var 11 = High
♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = Low	♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Low	Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Medium
♦ Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Low	♦ Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Low
\diamond Var 11 = Medium	♦ Var 11 = Medium	◊ Var 11 = Medium
♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = High	♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Medium	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Medium 	♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Medium
♦ Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Medium
♦ Var 11 = Low	♦ Var 11 = Low	♦ Var 11 = Low
♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = High	♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = High	♦ Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = Medium	♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High	♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Madium 	• Var $13 = 1$ ow then let $8 = High$	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High

Var 9 = Low, Var 10 = High and :	Solution Var 9 = Low, Var 10 = Medium and :	Var 9 = Low, Var 10 = Low and :
♦ Var 11 = High	o Var 11 = High	Var 11 = High
 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = Medium 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High
♦ Var 11 = Medium	Var 11 = Medium	♦ Var 11 = Medium
 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High 	♦ Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High 	• Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High
♦ Var 11 = Low	♦ Var 11 = Low	o Var 11 = Low
Var 13= High then Int 8 = High	• Var 13= High then Int 8 = High	 Var 13= High then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Medium then Int 8 = High
 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High 	 Var 13= Low then Int 8 = High

Argument: The firm prioritizes first, the Var 10 (Ease of doing Business) and the Var 11 (Economic freedom), then the var 13 (level of competition), and finally comes the Var 9 (Political Freedom) with lower perceived importance.

Var 24 (Web Infrastructure) - 12 Rules

- ♦ Ind 9 = Very High & Ind 10 = Medium Then Var 24 = High
- ♦ Ind 9 = Very High & Ind 10= Low Then Var 24= Medium
- Ind 9 = High & Ind 10 = High, Then Var 24= High
- Ind 9 = High & Ind 10 = Medium Then Var 24 = High
- Ind 9 = High & Ind 10= Low Then Var 24= Medium
- ♦ Ind 9 = Medium & Ind 10 = High, Then Var 24 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 9 = Medium & Ind 10= Medium, Then Var 24 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 9 = Medium & Ind 10= Low. Then Var 24 = Medium
- Ind 9 = Low & Ind 10 = High, Then Var 24 = Medium
- ♦ Ind 9 = Low & Ind 10= Medium, Then Var 24 = Low
- ⊗ Ind 9= Low & Ind 10 = Low, Then Var 24 = Low

on the security toward its solution.

Var 28 (Government Expenditure in education) – 9 Rules

- ♦ Ind 12 = High & Ind 11 = Medium Then Var 28 = High
- ♦ Ind 12 = High & Ind 11= Low Then Var 28= Medium
- Ind 12 = Medium & Ind 11 = High, Then Var 28 = Medium
- Ind 12 = Medium & Ind 11 = Medium, Then Var 28 = Medium

important than the % of the education expenditure out of the total government expenditure (Ind 12), it indicates more how important is that sector on the state budget expenditures.

Int 5 (Education and infrastructure development) - 144 Rules

Var 25 = High, Var 26 = High and :

- - ♦ Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium

 - Var 23= Low then Int = Medium

r 25 = High, Var 26 = Medium and :	⇒ Var 25 = Medium, Var 26 = Medium and :	Var 25 = Low, Var 26 = Medium and :
Var 24 = Very High	→ Var 24 = Very High	 Var 24 = Very High
 Var 23= Very High then Jut 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 =High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Meelin
 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium
 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium
 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = High	♦ Var 24 = High	
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var23= Very High then Int 5 = High
 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	 Var23= High then Int 5 = Medium
 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	• Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium
 Var23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = Medium	 Var 24 = Medium 	o Var 24 = Medium
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Media
 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium 	+ Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium
 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Low
 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	* Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = Low	 Var 24 = Low 	 Var 24 = Low
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Media
 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium
 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var23= Medium then Int 5 = Low
 Var23= Lowrhen Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Low 	 Var23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = Very High	♦ Var 24 = Very High	♦ Var 24 = Very High
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	♦ Var 23= Very High then Int 5=High	♦ Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Medium
♦ Var 23= High then Int 5 = High	♦ Var 23= High then Int 5= High	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Low
Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = High	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Low
 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5= Medium 	Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = High	♦ Var 24 = High	♦ Var 24 = High
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	♦ Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Medium
 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	♦ Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium	♦ Var 23= High then Int 5 = Low
♦ Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = High	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	♦ Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Low
Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium	♦ Var23= Low then Int 5 = Medium	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = Medium	♦ Var 24 = Medium	♦ Var 24 = Medium
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Low
 Var 23= High then Int 5 = High 	♦ Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Low
 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Low
 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Medium 	♦ Var 23= Low then Int 5 = Low
Var 24 = Low	◊ Var 24 = Low	♦ Var 24 = Low
 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = High 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Very High then Int 5 = Low
♦ Var 23= High then Int 5 = High	 Var 23= High then Int 5 = Medium 	• Var 23= High then Int 5 = Low
 Var 23= Medium then Int 5= Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 	 Var 23= Medium then Int 5 = Low

Argument: Var 25 (literacy rate) might be a bit more important than the Var 26 (Education level). Both are perceived to be more important that the infrastructure parwhich can be overcome, the Var 23 (Communication infrastructure) and Var 24 (Bandwidth coverage). The Var 24 is to be the less important in terms of priorities.

Int 6 (Economic development) - 36 Rules

- Var 30= Very High then Int 6 = High

- Var 30= Medium then Int 6 = Medium
 Var 30= Medium then Int 6 = Medium

- - ♦ Var 30= Very High then Int 6 = High
- Argument: Var 27 (Inflation rate) is usually correlated with the exchange rate, Var 29, which means that when one is up the other is most likely to be down. As for the Var 28 (government expenditure in education), it might come after in terms of importance and so is the Var 30 (FDI inflows), both reflects the combination of economic development factors and other elements and shows the attractiveness of the investment in the country.

Int 10 (cult	ral distance and geographic proxim	ity) – 81 Rules
 Var 19 = High, Var 20 = High and : Var 21 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = High Var 21 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High 	 Var 19 = High, Var 20 = Medium and : Var 21 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium 	 Var 19 = High, Var 20 = Low and : Var 21 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = High Var 21 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Low Var 21 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium
 Var 22= Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 19 = Medium, Var 20 = High and : Var 21 = High Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = High Var 21 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = High Var 21 = Medium Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = High Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium 	 Var 22= Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 19 = Medium, Var 20 = Medium and : Var 21 = High Var 22= High then Int 10 = High Var 22= Medium then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= Hedium then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Low Var 21 = Low Var 22= High then Int 10 = Medium 	 Var 22= Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 19 = Medium, Var 20 = Low and : Var 21 = High Var 22= High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= Medium then Int 10 = Medium Var 22= Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Hedium then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 21 = Low Var 21 = Low Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Low then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = High then Int 10 = Medium Var 22 = Medium then Int 10 = Medium

- \diamond Var 21 = Medium

♦ Var 19 = Low, Var 20 = Low and :

Argument: Var 21 (time zone) and 22 (geographic distance) are less important for the company than the Var 20 (Language) and the Var 19 (cultural difference), since both last variables impact strongly the production of the service.

Int 11 (Economic, social and infrastructure development) - 16 rules

- ♦ Int 5 Medium& Int 6 Medium, Then Int 11- Medium
- Int 5 = Low & Int 6 = Very High, Then Int 11= Medium

- Argument: Both Variables seems to be of similar importance, Int 5 (Education and Infrastructure development) and Int 6 (economic development).

Int 13 (Public library sector attractiveness)

♦ Var 32 = Medium, Var 31 = Medium and :

- ♦ Var 32 = Medium, Var 31 = High and :
 - ♦ Var 33 = Very High then Int 13 = High
- ♦ Var 33 = Very High then Int 13= High

- ♦ Var 33 = Very High then Int 13 = High

Argument: Var 32 (Spending on public libraries) and Var 31 (Number of public libraries), might have more importance for the firm than Var 33 (Registered users) because it gave more importance to the potential of ROI.

Int 12 (Country attractiveness) - 108 Rules

Int 8	8 = High, Int 9 = Very High and : \diamond 1	Int 8 =	High, Int 9 = High and : ♦	= High, Int 9 = Medium and :	= High, Int 9 = Low and :
	Int 11 = Very High		Int 11 = Very High	Int 11 = Very High	Int 11 = Very High
	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		• Int $10 =$ Low then Int $5 =$ Medium	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium	\bullet Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	Int 11 = High		Int 11 = High	Int 11 = High	Int 11 = High
	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium	Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	• Int $10 =$ Low then Int $5 =$ Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium	♦ Int $10 =$ Low then Int $5 =$ Low
	Int 11 = Medium		Int 11 = Medium	Int 11 = Medium	Int 11 = Medium
	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	Int 11 = Low		Int 11 = Low		Int 11 = Low
	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low

96

Int 8	= Medium, Int 9 = Very High and : *	Int 8	= Medium. Int 9 = High and : +	Int 8	= Medium. Int 9 = Medium and : *	Int 8	= Medium, Int 9 = Low and :
	Int 11 = Very High		Int 11 = Very High		Int 11 = Very High		Int 11 = Verv High
	 Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium 		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	Int 11 = High		Int 11 = High		Int 11 = High		Int 11 = High
	 Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium 		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium				♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	♠ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	Int 11 = Medium		Int 11 = Medium		Int 11 = Medium		Int 11 = Medium
	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium				
	 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	Int II = Low		Int 11 = Low		Int 11 = Low		Int 11 = Low
	♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
Int 8 -	= Low Int 9 = Very High and :	Tet 8 =	low lot 9 = High and :	lot 8 -	- Low lat 9 = Madium and . A	nt 8 -	Low Int 9 = Low and :
	Int 11 = Very High		Int 11 = Vers High		for 11 = Very High	ut 0 -	Int 11 = Very High
	 A fat 10= High then lat 5 = High 		 A Let 10= High then let \$ = High 		 A Lot 10= With then lot 5 = Medium 		 A. Let 10= High then let 5 = Low
	Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Very High		 Int 10= High user int 5 = High A Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		 Int to Fright then int 5 = Medium Int 10= Medium then int 5 = Medium 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = 1 ow
	 Int 10 = Low then Int 5 = Vary High 		 Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High 		 Int 10 = I on then let 5= Madium 		 Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium
	Int 11 = High		Int 11 = High		Int II = Hinh		Int 11 = High
	 Tet 10 = Flick then for \$ = Flick 		 Int III = High then Int 5 = High 		 A Tot I/I = Wink there for 5 = Medium 		a. Int 10= High then Int 5 = Low
	 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Very High 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	 Int 10 = Low than Int 5= Van High 		* Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		• Int $10 = 1$ out than let $5 = Madium$		 Int 10 = Low then Int S= Medium
	Int II = Medium		Int 11 = Madium		Int II = Medium		Int 11 = Medium
	 Int 11 = Michtain Int 10 = High than Int 5 = High 		 Int 10= High then Int S = Medium 		A Int H = Much then int S = 1 nuc		
	 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = High 		Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	 Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High 		* Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High		 Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Medium 		♦ Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	Int 11 = Low		Int 11 = Low		Int II = Low		Int 11 = Low
	 Int I0 = High then Int 5 = Medium 		 Int 10= High then Int 5 = Medium 		 Int 10= High then Int 5 = Logs 		♦ Int I0= High then Int 5 = Low
	Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Held		 Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Medium 		Int IO= Medium then Int 5 = Low		♦ Int 10= Medium then Int 5 = Low
	 Int 10 = Four then Int 5= High 		 Int 10 = Low then Int 5= High 		• Int $10 = 1$ ow then let $5 = Medium$		 Int 10 = Low then Int 5= Low
	e in te - tow men na o- rugh		and a short must be refer		· In to - Low then in Medium		

Argument: Int 8 (Country visk) is most likely to be of the highest importance, since it means if the country is even worth consideration, then followed by the Int 9 (Market attractiveness) that shows the potential of the market and the access to it. Then after, to exploit the potential the country need a minimum of Int 11 (economic and infrastructure development) to facilitate the entry, finally the cultural (Int 10) aspect should no be neglected since it can create an important gap and difficulties to expand.

Int 16 (Product Perception) – 9 Rules

- ♦ Var 1 = High & Var 8 = Medium, Then Int 16 = High
- ♦ Var 1 = High & Var 8 = Low, Then Int 16 = Medium
- ♦ Var 1 = Medium & Var 8 = High, Then Int 16 = High
- ♦ Var 1 = Medium & Var 8 = Medium, Then Int 16 = Medium
- ♦ Var 1 = Medium & Var 8 = Low, Then Int 16 = Medium
- ♦ Var 1 = Low & Var 8 = High, Then Int 16 = Medium
- ♦ Var 1 = Low & Var 8 = Medium, Then Int 16 = Medium
- ♦ Var 1 = Low & Var 8 = Low, Then Int 16 = Low

Product alignment (Var 1)

- Product superiority (Var 8)
- Argument: Both variables seems to have important weight against each other

Int 17 (Knowledge and competencies) – 27 Rules

- ♦ Var 6 = High, Var 3 = Low and :
 ♦ Var 6 = Medium, Var 3 = Low and :
 ♦ Var 7 = High then Int 17 = Medium
 ♦ Var 7 = Medium then Int 17 = Medium
 ♦ Var 7 = Medium then Int 17 = Medium
 ♦ Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Medium
 ♦ Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Low

Intellectual property (Var 6)
Market knowledge (Var 3)
Managerial competencies (Var 7)

- - Var 7 = High then Int 17 = Medium
 Var 7 = Medium then Int 17 = Medium
 Var 7 = Medium then Int 17 = Medium
 Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Medium
 Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = High then Int 17 = Medium
 Var 7 = High then Int 17 = Medium
 Var 7 = High then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = Medium then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = Medium then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Low
 Var 7 = Low then Int 17 = Low

Argument: Intellectual property and market knowledge have more importance since they shape strongly the ability to enter successfully the targeted market, then the competencies complement the entry by raising the odds of success and the implementation efficiency.

	Int 18 (Management perception) – 27	Rules
 Int 17 = High, Int 16 = High and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = High Int 17 = High, Int 16 = Medium and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = High 	 Int 17 = Medium, Int 16 = High and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = High Int 17 = Medium, Int 16 = Medium and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Medium 	 Int 17 = Low, Int 16 = High and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = High Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = High Int 17 = Low, Int 16 = Medium and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Medium
 Int 17 = High, Int 16 = Low and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = Mediu Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Medium Knowledge and competencies (Int 17 Product perception (Int 16) Psychic distance (Var 2) 	 Val 2 Eow taken in 16 Valcedani Int 17 = Medium, Int 16 = Low and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = Medium Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = Low Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Low Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Low 	 Int 17 = Low, Int 16 = Low and : Var 2 = High then Int 18 = Low Var 2 = Medium then Int 18 = Low Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Low Var 2 = Low then Int 18 = Low
 F] Int 12 = Very High & Int 13 = High, Int 18 = High Then Output = Very High Int 18 = Medium Then Output = High Int 18 = Low Then Output = High 	 INAL OUTPUT (Country Selection) - 36 F Int 12 = Very High & Int 13 = Medium Int 18 = High Then Output = High Int 18 = Medium Then Output = High Int 18 = Low Then Output = High 	* Int 12 = Very High & Int 13 = Low * Int 18 = High Then Output = Medium * Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Medium * Int 18 = Low Then Output = Medium
 Int 12 = High & Int 13 = High Int 18 = High Then Output = High Int 18 = Medium Then Output = High Int 18 = Low Then Output = High Int 12 = Medium & Int 13 = High Int 18 = High Then Output = High 	 Int 12 = High & Int 13 = Medium Int 18 = High Then Output = High Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Medium Int 18 = Low Then Output = Medium Int 12 = Medium & Int 13 = Medium Int 18 = High Then Output = Medium 	 Int 12 = High & Int 13 = Low Int 18 = High Then Output = Medium Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Medium Int 18 = Low Then Output = Medium Int 12 = Medium & Int 13 = Low Int 18 = High Then Output = Medium
 Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Medium Int 18 = Low Then Output = Medium Int 12 = Low & Int 13 = High Int 18 = High Then Output = High Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Medium 	 Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Medium Int 18 = Low Then Output = Medium Int 12 = Low & Int 13 = Medium Int 18 = High Then Output = Medium Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Low 	 ♦ Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Low ♦ Int 18 = Low Then Output = Low ♦ Int 12 = Low & Int 13 = Low ♦ Int 18 = High Then Output = Low ♦ Int 18 = Medium Then Output = Low

Argument: Int 12 (Country attractiveness) and Int 13 (Public library attractiveness) are of higher importance since they are more based on quantitative insights and contribute with larger number of indicators, the Int 18 (management perception) is of less importance but still essential for this approach to add another optique and more experiential knowledge to the logic of choice.

Appendix 7: Source Code of the Fuzzy Expert System External link: https://ldrv.ms/u/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyx4r5z45XPeCZL3q

The following code was built on the software Matlab R2018a.

The Function:

function [Co	untry_selection, Management_perception, ¥
Public_libra	ry_sector_attractiveness,Country_attractiveness,Market_attractiveness] = 🗹
ims_calc(inp	uts)
%% Internati	onal market selection - Expert system
% Inputs are	1
8	1- % of Urbanization
8	2- Population Size
8	3- Real GNP Growth
8	4- Projected GNP Growth
8	5- GDP Per Capita In \$
8	6- Human Development Index
8	7- Ratio Trades in services to GDP
8	8- Proportion of danish imports to total imports
8	9- Level of Competition
8	10- Entry Barrier in computer services
8	11- Political Freedom index
8	12- Ease of doing business index
8	13- Economic Freedom index
8	14- Level of Corruption
8	15- Secure servers index
8	16- Web index
8	17- Communication Infrastructure index
8	18- Literacy rate
8	19- Education rate
8	20- Part of Education in GDP
8	21- Part of Education in Governement expenditures
8	22- Inflation rate
8	23- Exchange rate to US\$
8	24- Foreign Direct Investment net inflows
8	25- Cultural Differences
8	26- English Language Proficiency
8	27- Time Zone Difference
8	28- Geographic Distance
8	29- Number of public libraries
8	30- Spending on public libraries
8	31- Number of public libraries' users
8	32- Perportion of product alignement
8	33- Perception of product superiority
8	34- Perception of market knowledge
8	35- Perception of Intelectual property
8	36- Perpoetion of managerial competencies
8	37- Perception of Psychic distance
% The Output	is the ranking of countries with high potential that represent
% the market	s to target and prioritize and those to monitor
%% Defined a	verage Weights of inputs assigned by the Management
% PF= Politi	cal Freedeom, EDB= Ease of doing business, EF= Economic Freedom, LC= Level
of corruptio	n
PF = 1.67;	
EDB = 6.67;	
EF = 6.67;	

LC = 6.0; \leq MS = Market Size, MG= Market Growth, MI= Market Intensity MS = 7.0; MG = 5.33; \leq CL= Level of Competition, EB= Entry Barriers CL = 6.0; EB = 7.67; \leq CD= Cultural distance, L= Language, TZ= Time Zone, GD= Geographic Distance CD = 5.33; L = 7.33; GD = 3.0; \leq CI= Communication infrastructure, IF= Internet Infrastructure, LR= Literacy level, \checkmark EL= Education level, IR= Inflation rate \leq GEE= Government Expenditure in education, ER= Exchange rate, FDI= Foreign direct \checkmark investment CI = 4.33; IF = 4.67; EL = 5.0; EL = 5.67; ER = 2.0; FDI = 2.67; \leq ML = 6.67; \leq ML = 6.67; \leq ML = 6.67; \leq PA = Product alignement, MK= Market Knowledge, IP= Intelectual Property, MC= \checkmark Managerial competencies, PD= Psychic distance, PS= Product superiority PA = 5.67; MX = 4.67; MX = 4.67; HZ = 5.0; MC = 4.67; HZ = 5.0; HZ = 5.

%% NODES: The system consists of 19 nodes for processing information collected for all \checkmark 37 inputs

\$\$ Node 1: Market size_node has two inputs urbanization and population and its output $\prime\prime$ is Market size

ms_node = readfis('ms_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = [urbanization, population]; Market_size = evalfis(inputs(1:2), ms_node);

\$ To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: \$ Plotfis(ms_node)

% Surfview(ms_node)

%% Node 2: Market growth_node has two inputs Real GNP growth and Projected GNP growth ϵ' and its output is Market Growth

mg_node = readfis('mg_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = [GNP_growth, Pro_gnp_growth]; Market_growth = evalfis(inputs(3:4), mg_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(mg node)

% Surfview(mg_node)

%% Node 3: Market intensity_node has 4 inputs; GNI per capita, HDI, Service import to ℓ' GDP, Danish imports and its output is Market intensity

mi_node = readfis('mi_node.fis');
% It has four inputs: inputs = [GDP_per_capita, HDI, Service_to_imports,
danish_imports];
Market_intensity = evalfis(inputs(5:8), mi_node);

 $\boldsymbol{\vartheta}$ To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands:

% Plotfis(mi_node)
% Surfview(mi_node)

%% Node 4: Market potential_node has 3 inputs; Market size, Market growth and market \varkappa' intensity and its output is Market potential

mp_node = readfis('mp_node.fis'); % It has three inputs: inputs = [Market_size, Market_growth, Market_intensity]; % Adjusted weights: ms = MS/(MS+MG+MI); ms = 1 + ms; mg = MG/(MS+MG+MI); mi = 1 + m; mi = 1 + m; Market_potential = evalfis([Market_size * ms, Market_growth * mg , Market_intensity * 4' mi], mp_node);

 $\ensuremath{\mathfrak{s}}$ To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands:

% Plotfis(mp_node)
% Surfview(mp_node)

%% Node 5: Market access node has 2 inputs; Level of competition and Entry barriers and ${\bf \ell}$ its output is Market access

ma_node = readfis('ma_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = [Level_of_competition, Entry_barriers]; % Adjusted weights: cl = CL/(CL+EB); cl = 1 + cl; eb = EB/(CL+EB); eb = 1 + eb; Market_access = evalfis([inputs(9) * cl,inputs(10) * eb], ma_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(ma_node) % Surfview(ma_node)

%% Node 6: Market attractiveness_node has 2 inputs; Market potential and Market access ${\bf \ell}$ and its output is Market attractiveness

matt_node = readfis('matt_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = [Market_potential, Market_access]; Market_attractiveness = evalfis([Market_potential, Market_access], matt_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(matt_node) % Surfview(matt_node)

5% Node 7: Country risk_node has 4 inputs; Political freedom, ease of doing business, ${\bf v}'$ economic freedom and level of corruption and its output is Country risk

cr_node = readfis('cr_node.fis'); % It has four inputs: inputs = [Political_freedom , Ease_of_doing_business, </ Economic_freedom, Level_of_corruption]; % Adjusted weights: pf = FF/(PF+EDB+EF+LC); pf = 1 + pf; edb = EDB/(PF+EDB+EF+LC); edb = 1 + edb; ef = 1 + ed; lc = LC /(PF+EDB+EF+LC); lc = 1 + lc; Country_risk = evalfis([inputs(11) * pf,inputs(12) * edb,inputs(13) * ef,inputs(14) *

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(cr_node) % Surfview(cr_node)

%% Node 8: Internet infrastructure_node has 2 inputs; Secure servers and Web index and \checkmark the output is Internet infrastructure

ii_node = readfis('ii_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = [Secure_servers, Web_index]; Internet_infrastructure = evalfis(inputs(15:16), ii_node); % To plot the mode and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(ii node)

% Surfview(ii_node)

%% Node 9: Education and infrastructure development_node has 4 inputs; Internet \checkmark infrastructure, communication infrastructure,literacy level and education level and its \checkmark output is Education and infrastructure development

i_f = IF/(IF+CI+LR+EL); i_f = 1 + i_f; ci = CI/(IF+CI+LR+EL); C1 = C1/(IF+C1+LR+EL); ci = 1 + ci; lr = LR /(IF+C1+LR+EL); lr = 1 + 1r; el = EL /(IF+C1+LR+EL); el = 1 + el;

Education_infrastructure_development = evalfis([Internet_infrastructure * i_f , inputs4 (17) * ci, inputs(18) * lr, inputs(19) * el], 🖌

eid node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(eid node) % Surfview(eid node)

%% Node 10: Government expenditure in education_node has 2 inputs; Part of the GDP,Part \checkmark of government expenditures and its output is Government expenditure in education

gee_node = readfis('gee_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = [Part_in_GDP, Part_in_expenditures]; Government_expenditure_education = evalfis(inputs(20:21), gee_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(gee node) % Surfview(gee_node)

%% Node 11: Economic development node has 4 inputs; Governement expenditures in⊭ education, inflation rate, exchange rate, and FDI net inflows and its output is Economic Development

ed_node = readfis('ed_node.fis'); % It has four inputs: inputs = [Government_expenditure_education, Inflation_level, % Adjusted weights gee = GEE/(GEE+IR+ER+FDI);

gee = 1 + gee; ir = IR/(GEE+IR+ER+FDI); ir = 1 + ir; er = ER /(GEE+IR+ER+FDI); er = 1 + er; fdi = FDI /(GEE+IR+ER+FDI); fdi = 1 + fdi;

 $\texttt{Economic_development = evalfis([Government_expenditure_education * gee, inputs(22)* \measuredangle}$ ir,... inputs(23) * er,inputs(24) * fdi], ed node);

 $\ensuremath{\$}$ To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: Plotfis(ed_node) % Surfview(ed node)

%% Node 12: Economic social and infrastructure development_node has 2 inputs; Economic ℓ' development and education and infrastructure development and its output is Economic ℓ' social and infrastructure developmment

esid_node = readfis('esid_node.fis'); % It has two inputs = [Economic_development, Education_infrastructure_development]; Economic_social_infra_development = evalfis([Economic_development, K Education_infrastructure_development], esid_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(esid_node)
% Surfview(esid_node)

%% Node 13: Cultural distance and geographical proximity_node has 4 inputs; Cultural ν' differences,Language, time zone and geographic distance and its output is Cultural ν' distance and geographical proximity

cdgp_node = readfis('cdgp_node.fis'); % It has four inputs: inputs = [Cultural_differences, Language, Time_zone, Geographic_distance]; % Adjusted weights: cd = CD/(CD+L+T2+GD); cd = 1 + cd; 1 = L/(CD+L+T2+GD); 1 = 1 + 1; 1 = 1 + 1; tz = TZ /(CD+L+TZ+GD); tz = 1 + tz; gd = GD /(CD+L+TZ+GD); gd = 1 + gd;

Cultural_distance_geoproximity = evalfis([inputs(25) * cd,inputs(26) * 1,... inputs(27) * tz, inputs(28) * gd], cdgp_node);

% To plot the mode and the rule base surface plot use the commands:
% Plotfis(cdgp_node)
% Surfview(cdgp_node)

%% Node 14: Country attractiveness_node has 4 inputs; Country risk, market attractiveness, Cultural distance and geographic proximity,Education, social and infratructure development and its output is Country attractiveness

catt_node = readfis('catt_node.fis'); % It has four inputs: inputs = [Country_risk, Market_attractiveness, 4' Cultural_distance_geoproximity,Economic_social_infra_development 1; Country_attractiveness = evelfis((Country_risk, Market_attractiveness, 4' Cultural_distance_geoproximity,Economic_social_infra_development) , catt_node);

4 To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: 4 Plotfis(catt_node) 8 Surfive(catt_node)

%% Node 15: Public library sector attractiveness_node has 3 inputs; Number of ℓ' libraries, spending on public libraries, Registred users and its output is public ℓ' library potential

plsa_node = readfis('plsa_node.fis'); % It has three inputs: inputs = [Number_of_libraries, Spending_public_libraries, *' Registred_users]; % Adjusced weights: nl = NL/(NL+SPL+RU); nl = 1 + n1; spl = SPL/(NL+SPL+RU); spl = 1 + spl; ru = RU /(NL+SPL+RU); ru = 1 + ru;

Public_library_sector_attractiveness= evalfis([inputs(29) * nl, ... inputs(30) * spl, inputs(31) * ru], plsa_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Plotfis(plsa_node) % Surfview(plsa_node)

44 Node 16: Product perception_node has 2 inputs; Product alignment and product & superiority and irs output is product perception

pp_node = readfis('pp_node.fis'); % It has two inputs: inputs = (Product_alignment, Product_superiority); % Adjusted weights: pa = PA/(PA+PS); pa = 1 + pa; ps = PE/(PA+PS); ps = 1 + ps;

Product_perception= evalfis([inputs(32) * pa, inputs(33) * ps], pp_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands: % Distfic(np mode)

% Plotfis(pp_node)
% Surfview(pp_node)

%% Node 17: Knowledge and competencies_node has 3 inputs; Market knowledge, ℓ' intellectual property and managerial competencies and its output is Knowledge and ℓ' competencies

kc_node = readfis('kc_node.fis'); % It has three inputs: inputs = [Market_knowledge, Intellectual_property, 4' Managerial_competences;; % Adjusted weights: mk = 1 + mk; ip = IP/(MK+IP+MC); mc = MC/(MK+IP+MC); mc = 1 + mc; Knowledge_and_competencies= evalfis([inputs(34) * mk, inputs(35) * ip, inputs(36) * 4' mc], kc_node);

 $\ensuremath{\mathfrak{F}}$ To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands:

% Plotfis(kc_node)
% Surfview(kc_node)

%% Node 18: Management perception node has 3 inputs; Product perception, Knowledge and ℓ' competencies and Psychic distance its output is Management perception

mgtp_node = readfis('mgtp_node.fis'); % It has three inputs: inputs = [Knowledge_and_competencies, Product_perception, * Psychic_distance]; % Adjusted weight: pd = PD/(PD); pd = 1 + pd;

pd = 1 + pd;

Management_perception= evalfis([Knowledge_and_competencies, Product_perception,inputst'
(37) * pd], mgtp_node);

% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands:

% Plotfis(mgtp_node)
% Surfview(mgtp_node)

%% Node 19: Country selection node has 3 inputs; Country attractiveness, public library ℓ sector attractiveness and management perception and the final output is country ℓ'

selection

```
cs_node = readfis('cs_node.fis');
% It has three inputs: inputs = [Country_attractiveness, </
Public_library_sector_attractiveness, Management_perception];
Country_selection = evalfis([Country_attractiveness, </
Public_library_sector_attractiveness, Management_perception], cs_node)
% To plot the node and the rule base surface plot use the commands:
% Plotfis(cs_node)
% Surfview(cs_node)
% NOTES:
% when values are outside the range of a variable it will be cropped to that range and
```

The main execution code:

```
data = xlsread('Dataset.xlsx');
[country, variables] = size(data)
country_cs = [];
Management_P = [];
Public_Library_Sa = [];
country_a = [];
for i = 1:country
    inputs = data(i,:);
    [Country_selection, Management_perception, Public_library_sector_attractiveness, &
Country_attractiveness, Market_attractiveness] = ims_calc(inputs);
    country_cs = [country_cs; Country_selection];
    Management_P = [Management_P; Management_perception];
    Public_Library_Sa = [Public_Library_Sa; Public_library_sector_attractiveness];
    country_a = [country_a; Country_attractiveness];
    market_a = [market_a; Market_attractiveness];
    Total = [country_cs, Management_P, Public_Library_Sa, country_a, market_a];
end
```

Appendix 8: Interviews - Follow up emails



- Is it essential (not just desirable) for the Cicero use by the key customer to have any particular technology, attributes or surrounding industries ? for instance, a specific infrastructure, a certain knowledge, specific skills...etc.

Yes, we have requirements for the infrastructure. Knowledge and skills is not that important, as we provide the education,

- I understood that the current customers using the Cicero product are not completely satisfied with the product? what is the reason for that, what's missing?

There has been no development in progress (due discussion of ownership) The customers has sent a lot of wishes for improvements to KOMBIT, but they have only 5 million to develop for and do not allow libraries themselves to pay / order. There is a lack of visibility regarding the responsibilities for development of the system and its surroundings

(KOMBIT, DBC, FBS Steering Group, Further Development Group, Systematic),

I have enclosed the latest customer survey (unfortunately in danish. It is confidential).

- Do you think there are any upcoming trends that might affect the Cicero sales, in the near/Mid future?

Yes. A desire for open source and a web based solution.

 With respect to the product implementation, will the information supplied by the client be of complex nature, in other words, would the interaction between you and your customer be intense and high in order to produce the final service? (The more important the interaction with the customer the more the impact of cultural difference can be impactful and of relevance on choosing markets).

Yes, it will be somewhat complex. However, we might have an advantage here, as implementation is one of our USP. We are very good at implementations,

- Does the Cicero LMS require that the client take part as a member of the team producing the service and thus will contribute directly to the work?

- Does it require a close monitoring by the client?

The implementation requires a professional project management by the customer,

- What type of interaction does the Cicero LMS require with the client? (Person to person, group interaction, joint working...etc.)

Person to system.

- Usually what mode of interaction will be involved? (face to face, via computer, telephone...etc.)

Via computer.

- When it comes to looking for secondary data, to identify markets and pertinent information, do you perceive it as available and easily accessible?

Not easy, but possible.

Selecting and entering a new foreign market, implies that there is a pursuit of some kind of benefit by you and by your company. Each market will most likely provide a different benefit. According to you what are those goals and why? for instance: Obtain Sales, Ongoing sales growth, Increase market share, Increase the international corporate image, Acquiring new learning, Disposing of a product no longer attractive in other markets, Increase product profitability, Channel the excess of capacity, Minimizing efforts (Quantity and quality of resources)...

Increase product profitability and increase product growth. Moreover, in the long run also to increase market share,

- what are the usual parameters you consider in screening a new market with respect to the library business?

Volume, Would the market provide cases large enough to cover development costs. Does the marked seek a solution that provides the USP that Cicero provides? What are the library culture (what does the customer and the end users value)? Which competitors exist in the market?

 Did you proceed to any market research (besides satisfaction) with respect to the librarians' perception of the market offers (especially your product), their motivation and needs, in other words, an exploratory research to be more dose on what actually one of the key decision makers are exactly thinking of? either in the respective market, you are already present in or in other potential markets you were considering? If not why?

Yes,

- Does systematic has any constraints\minimum requirements when it comes to agreeing on the viability of a market, for instance, size of the potential market, contract size or other elements? what are they?

Yes, Larger customers which can benefit from a joint solution is of interest to us. Moreover, the cost of selling are high. Therefore, the contract needs to have a volume to cover the costs. But we are open also to smaller contracts as long as the customer would like to develop with us, and the joint development makes us attractive to other customers.

Some markets demands access to the source code, This is not acceptable to us,	
- Is there any risk factors you think are of utmost importance when considering entering new markets for the Library learning market unit?	and
Not really.	
Thank you very much for your time,	
After processing all the information that you will provide me, I will send a final small questionnaire online to fill, In ord transform your perceptions in a scaled form and also have your opinion with respect to the weights of the variables t will be included in the model,	ler to hat
Looking forward to your answers,	
have a nice day, Best regards,	
Soufiane Abeddaa	
Udtræk af FBS brugertilfredshedsundersøgelse 2018 23Jan2018.pdf	

Appendix 9: Data set External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

Country ~	% Urbanization *	Population	Real GNP Growth	Projected GNP Growth	GDP per capita \$	HDI -	Trade in ser	rvices to GDP 🛛 👻 F	art of Danish imports 👻	Level of competitio	n 🔹 Entry barrier	s computer services
Netherlands	0,91	17.084.459,00	3,20	2,	0 52.959,00 47.802.00	0,924	-	0,38	0,0091		8,00	0,20
Belgium	0,80	11 498 519 00	2,10	2,	47.802,00	0,897		0,19	0,0030		6.00	0,10
Luxembourg	0,90	590.321,00	4,30	3,	0 104.091,00	0,898		2,688	0,001		3,00	0,21
Monaco	1,00	38.695,00	3,20	3,	70 115.700,00	0,950		0,2	0,0040		0,00	0,2
Switzerland	0,74	8.544.034,00	2,30	2,	65.096,00	0,939		0,327	0,0028		7,00	0,35
UK	0,83	66.573.504,00	1,60	1,	50 43.857,00	0,909		0,209	0,0085		15,00	0,2
Morocco Algeria	0,61	42 008 054 00	4,10	3,	10 8.600,00 50 15.100.00	0,647		0,231	0,0018		2,00	0,2
Tunisia	0,50	11.659.174.00	2,00	2.	70 12.000.00	0,745		0,149	0.0024		3.00	0,2
Egypt	0,43	99.375.741,00	4,20	4,	50 13.000,00	0,691		0,094	0,0033		4,00	0,2
Australia	0,90	24.450.561,00	3,20	2,	49.113,00	0,939		0,095	0,0050		11,00	0,17
Finland	0,84	5.542.517,00	3,00	2,	50 45.204,00	0,895		0,225	0,0300		4,00	0,28
Germany	0,76	82.293.457,00	2,50	2,	50,705,00	0,926		0,169	0,0120		8,00	0,17
Singapore	1.00	5 791 901 00	2 25	4,	24.000,00	0,802		0,187	0,0039		5.00	0,2
New Zealand	0,86	4.705.818,00	2,60	3,	40.695,00	0,915		0,145	0,0040		8,00	0,18
United Arab Emirates	s 0,86	9.504.338,00	1,40	3,	10 68.200,00	0,840		0,2	0,0018		7,00	0,2
USA	0,82	324.459.463,00	2,20	2,	50 59.535,00	0,920		0,067	0,0037		21,00	0,18
Norway	0,81	5.305.383,00	2,10	1,	60.675,00	0,949		0,23	0,0560		2,00	0,27
Ireland	0,94	4 802 748 00	3,50	4,	50 53.817,00 70 76.485.00	0,921		0,425	0,0610		6.00	0,40
Canada	0,84	36 867 110 00	3.00	2,	70 76.483,00 10 46.320.00	0,925		0.119	0,0074		16.00	0,15
Austria	0,66	8.747.528,00	3,00	2,	50 52.561,00	0,893		0,282	0,0040		7,00	0,28
Qatar	0,99	2.639.211,00	1,70	2,	50 124.900,00	0,856		0,306	0,0026		4,00	0,2
Malaysia	0,75	31.624.264,00	5,80	5,	20 28.900,00	0,789		0,253	0,0012		6,00	0,2
Sweden	0,86	9.982.709,00	3,05	2,	50.090,00	0,913		0,259	0,0770		6,00	0,24
Czech Republic Poland	0,74	38 104 832 00	4,27	3,	40 36.927,00 55 28.948.00	0,878		0,224	0,0058		3,00	0,15
Croatia	0,60	4.164.783.00	3.00	2.	50 24.100.00	0.827		0,347	0.0068		2.00	0,2
Latvia	0,70	4.164.783,00	5,22	4,	24 27.641,00	0,830		0,281	0,0220		1,00	0,11
France		0,90	0,7619	0,6390	0,70		849,00	0,8	09	8,24	0,99	0,32
Belgium		0,95	0,7192	0,6/50	0,75		1.018,00	0,89	61	/,81	0,99	0,37
Monaco		0,98	0,0800	0,7040	0,82		4 234 00	0,00	00	8,47	0.00	0,40
Switzerland		0.96	0.7573	0.8170	0.85		3.063.00	0.8	73	8.74	0,99	0.4
UK		0.95	0.8234	0,7800	0,82		1.409.00	0.9	67	8.65	0.99	0.42
Morocco		0.41	0.6794	0.6190	0.4		7.00	0.40	38	4.77	0.685	0.25
Algeria		0,35	0,4672	0,4470	0,33		4,00	0,60	100	4,67	0,802	0,25
Tunisia		0,78	0,6378	0,5890	0,42		13,00	0,5	93	4,82	0,818	0,25
Egypt		0,26	0,5612	0,5340	0,32		5,00	0,28	98	4,63	0,738	0,25
Australia		0,98	0,8014	0,8090	0,77		1.431,00	0,8	27	8,24	0,99	0,42
Finland		1,00	0,8048	0,7410	0,85		1.791,00	0,98	81	7,88	1	0,42
Germany		0,95	0,7919	0,7420	0,81		1.648,00	0,80	19	8,39	0,99	0,27
Romania		0,84	0,7270	0,6940	0,48		159,00	0,60	00	6,48	0,988	0,25
Singapore		0,51	0,8453	0,8880	0,84		890,00	0,7	16	8,05	0,97	0,25
New Zealand		0,98	0,8673	0,8420	0,89		1.187,00	0,8	48	8,33	0,99	0,36
United Arab Emirates	s	0.201	0,7686	0,7760	0,/1		391,00	0,44	90	7,21	0,938	0,25
USA		0.20	0.9255	0.7570	0.75		1 (22 00)	0.0	50	0.10	0.00	
Norway		0,20	0,8255	0,7570	0,75		1.623,00	0,94	52	8,18	0,99	0,44
Norway	-	0,20 1,00 0.97	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700	0,75 0,85 0,77		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151.00	0,94	52 32	8,18 8,47 8.98	0,99	0,44 0,48 0.37
Norway Iceland Ireland		0,20 1,00 0,97	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040	0,75 0,85 0,77		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00	0,94	32 72 78	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02	0,99 1 0,99 0,99	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41
Norway Iceland Ireland Canada		0,20 1,00 0,97 0,96	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00	0,94 0,97 0,92 0,78	52 32 72 28	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77	0,99 1 0,99 0,99	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41 0,54
Norway Iceland Ireland Canada Austria		0,20 1,00 0,97 0,96 0,99 0,95	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,7869	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770 0,7180	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74 0,82 0,75		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.520,00	0,94 0,97 0,93 0,73 0,74 0,88	52 32 772 28 82 00	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,99	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41 0,54 0,39
Norway Iceland Ireland Canada Austria Oatar		0,20 1,00 0,97 0,96 0,99 0,95 0,26	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,7869 0,6425	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770 0,7180 0,7180 0,7260	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74 0,82 0,75 0,63		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.520,00 269,00	0,94 0,97 0,97 0,78 0,88 0,88 0,88	52 32 72 28 82 00 01	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02 7,21	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,98 0,973	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41 0,54 0,39 0,25
Norway Iceland Ireland Canada Austria Qatar Malaysia		0,20 1,00 0,97 0,96 0,99 0,95 0,26 0,44	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,7869 0,6425 0,7747	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770 0,7180 0,7260 0,7450	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74 0,82 0,75 0,63 0,63		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.520,00 269,00 106,00	0,94 0,97 0,77 0,88 0,88 0,33 0,34	52 32 77 28 82 00 00 34	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02 7,21 6,38	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,98 0,973 0,945	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41 0,54 0,39 0,25
Norway Iceland Ireland Canada Austria Qatar Malaysia Sweden		0,20 1,00 0,97 0,96 0,99 0,95 0,26 0,44 1,00	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,7869 0,6425 0,7747 0,8124	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770 0,7180 0,7260 0,7450 0,7450	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74 0,82 0,75 0,63 0,63 0,47 0,84		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.520,00 269,00 1.06,00 1.780,00	0,94 0,97 0,97 0,77 0,88 0,88 0,88 0,034 0,034	52 32 72 228 82 000 01 34 97	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02 7,21 6,38 8,41	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,98 0,973 0,946 0,99	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41 0,54 0,39 0,25 0,25 0,25
Norway Iceland Ireland Canada Austria Qatar Malaysia Sweden Czech Republic		0,20 1,00 0,97 0,96 0,99 0,95 0,26 0,44 1,00 0,94	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,7869 0,6425 0,7747 0,8124 0,7624	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770 0,7180 0,7260 0,7450 0,7450 0,7630 0,7450	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74 0,82 0,75 0,63 0,47 0,47 0,84 0,57		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.520,00 269,00 1.06,00 1.780,00 1.346,00	0,94 0,97 0,97 0,77 0,88 0,88 0,88 0,84 0,33 0,44 0,99 0,99	52 32 77 28 82 000 01 34 97 50	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02 7,21 6,38 8,41 7,16	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,98 0,973 0,946 0,99 0,99 0,99	0,44 0,48 0,37 0,41 0,54 0,39 0,25 0,25 0,25 0,39 0,39
Norway Iceland Canada Austria Qatar Malaysia Sweden Czech Republic Poland		0.20 1.00 0.97 0.96 0.99 0.95 0.26 0.44 1.00 0.94 0.89	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,7869 0,6425 0,7747 0,8124 0,7624 0,7712	0,7570 0,7430 0,7700 0,8040 0,7770 0,7180 0,7260 0,7450 0,7450 0,7420 0,6850	0,75 0,85 0,77 0,74 0,82 0,75 0,63 0,63 0,47 0,84 0,67 0,6		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.520,00 269,00 1.06,00 1.780,00 1.346,00 763,00	0,94 0,97 0,97 0,71 0,88 0,88 0,88 0,33 0,44 0,99 0,66 0,51	52 32 72 28 82 00 01 34 97 50 88 81	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02 7,21 6,38 8,41 7,16 6,89	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,98 0,973 0,946 0,99 0,999 0,998	0.44 0.48 0.37 0.41 0.54 0.39 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.39 0.31 0.31 0.43
Norway Iceland Canada Austria Qatar Malaysia Sweden Czech Republic Poland Croatia	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	0.20 1.00 0.97 0.96 0.99 0.95 0.26 0.44 1.00 0.94 0.89 0.89 0.89	0,8255 0,8241 0,7849 0,7970 0,7938 0,6425 0,7747 0,8124 0,7624 0,7624 0,7712 0,715	0.7570 0.7430 0.7700 0.8840 0.7770 0.7180 0.7250 0.7450 0.7630 0.7450 0.7630 0.7450 0.6850 0.6100	0,75 0,88 0,77 0,74 0,74 0,75 0,63 0,975 0,63 0,47 0,84 0,57 0,66 0,49		1.623,00 2.075,00 3.151,00 866,00 1.254,00 1.254,00 269,00 106,00 1.780,00 1.346,00 763,00 324,00	0,9- 0,9' 0,9: 0,7' 0,8: 0,8: 0,8: 0,8: 0,8: 0,3: 0,4: 0,5: 0,6: 0,6:	52 52 52 52 52 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	8,18 8,47 8,98 8,02 7,77 8,02 7,21 6,38 8,41 7,16 6,38 8,41 7,16 6,89 7,24	0,99 1 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,99 0,973 0,946 0,999 0,998 0,998	0.44 0.48 0.37 0.41 0.54 0.39 0.25 0.39 0.39 0.31 0.39 0.31 0.43 0.43

Country ~	Education to GDP	Education to Gov expenditure -	Inflation level	Exchange rate US -	FDI net inflows	Cultural differences	English Language Prof	Time difference
Netherlands	0,053	0,121	0,013	0,89	1,039	48,7	0,7145	0,00
France	0,054	0,097	0,012	0,89	0,283	92,1	0,6158	0,00
Belgium	0,064	0,119	0,022	0,89	1,017	105,2	0,5439	0,00
Luxembourg	0,048	0,097	0,012	0,89	4,127	71,3	0,6457	0,00
Monaco	0,01022	0,0501	0,015	0,89	0,33	92	0,6	0,00
Switzerland	0,057	0,1546	0,005	0,99	1,202	77,3	0,6095	0,00
UK	0,047	0,1388	0,026	0,78	0,455	58,4	1	1,00
Morocco	0,05264	0,173	0,009	9,64	0,529	96,7	0,4791	1,00
Algeria	0,044	0,114	0,055	108,9	0,173	96	0,4211	1,00
Tunisia	0,065986	0,229	0,045	2,48	0,7	90	0,4901	1,00
Egypt	0,037587	0,1051	0,235	18,05	0,308	119,7	0,4651	0,00
Australia	0,051927	0,1388	0,02	1,31	0,458	59,9	1	9,00
Finland	0,061	0,125	0,08	0,89	0,345	43,8	0,6583	1,00
Germany	0,042	0,112	0,016	0,89	0,222	88,4	0,6235	0,00
Romania	0,037	0,0924	0,011	4,08	0,384	122,8	0,5913	1,00
Singapore	0,029158	0,199	0,009	1,39	3,692	96,2	0,6603	6,00
New Zealand	0,029158	0,1799	0,022	1,42	0,385	50,1	1	11,00
United Arab Emirates	0,011094	0,05	0,021	3,67	0,318	134,6	0,4888	2,00
USA	0,049895	0,1345	0,021	1	0,344	59,2	1	6,00
Norway	0,056	0,175	0,021	8,31	0,367	34,8	0,6777	0,00
Iceland	0,071	0,1767	0,018	111,7	0,481	34,1	0,65	2,00
Ireland	0,033	0,1345	0,004	0,89	0,286	55,8	1	1,00
Canada	0,052744	0,1222	0,016	1,31	0,625	49,0	1	6,00
Austria	0,049	0,11	0,016	0,89	0,404	85,2	0,6218	0,00
Qatar	0,036072	0,111	0,009	3,64	0,217	100	0,4819	1,00
Malaysia	0,049664	0,215	0,038	4,34	0,41	102,8	0,6107	6,00
Sweden	0,066	0,152	0,016	8,44	0,566	26,9	0,704	0,00
Czech Republic	0,045	0,15	0,023	23,34	0,597	94,7	0,5787	0,00
Poland	0,05	0,113	0,019	3,75	0,398	107,7	0,6207	0,00
Croatia	0,048	0,096	0,011	6,57	0,548	102,1	0,5	0,00
Latvia	0,055	0,1396	0,03	0,91	0,515	82,1	0,5	1,00

Country	Geographic distance *	Number of public libr -	Spending on public librarie 👻	Users	Perception of product aligne -	Perception of Product superi *	Perception of Market knowledge
Netherlands	764,00	781,00	760.901.000,00	4.009.000,00	4,00	6,17	5,79
France	1.596,00	16.100,00	935.805.018,00	5.300.000,00	1,88	1,83	2,07
Belgium	947,00	1.150,00	181.875.958,00	2.448.175,00	1,38	3,67	3,29
Luxembourg	945,00	22,00	1.319.755,00	30.356,00	1,88	2,00	2,29
Monaco	1.750,00	22	1.000.000,00	1.934,75	2,13	1,67	1,21
Switzerland	1.280,00	2.000,00	311.034.143,00	2.173.900,00	2,00	2,00	1,50
UK	1.808,00	4.089,00	1.880.900.000,00	35.600.806,00	1,88	2,00	3,50
Morocco	3.799,00	600,00	40.000.000,00	360.727,23	2,13	2,00	1,07
Algeria	3.198,00	83,00	40.000.000,00	420.080,54	2,00	2,00	1,43
Tunisia	3.739,00	371,00	48.230.000,00	53.000,00	2,00	1,83	1,14
Egypt	3.687,00	912,00	40.000.000,00	1.674.000,00	2,13	1,83	1,07
Australia	14.405,00	1.469,00	1.010.400.000,00	9.999.492,00	1,88	2,83	4,29
Finland	1.568,00	740,00	382.996.000,00	2.095.336,00	2,63	4,17	4,64
Germany	691,00	9.011,00	1.270.150.000,00	8.170.000,00	2,50	2,50	2,93
Romania	2.150,00	2.406,00	11.888.837,00	2.142.000,00	2,00	2,17	2,14
Singapore	10.142,00	26,00	40.000.000,00	2.066.924,00	2,13	1,67	1,50
New Zealand	17.995,00	314,00	79.426.627,00	826.715,00	2,88	4,50	4,43
United Arab Emirates	6.795,00	20,00	40.000.000,00	95.043,38	2,00	2,17	1,86
USA	7.483,00	17.218,00	10.968.435.163,00	172.550.528,00	1,75	2,33	3,14
Norway	568,00	740,00	134.336.000,00	1.314.521,00	2,75	4,50	4,57
Iceland	1.808,00	78,00	9.475.280,00	122.886,00	2,88	5,33	4,64
Ireland	1.997,00	332,00	140.530.000,00	881.320,00	2,13	2,33	2,00
Canada	6.251,00	3.415,00	1.500.157.916,00	6.630.893,00	1,75	2,17	1,79
Austria	1.355,00	1.372,00	45.393.522,00	996.540,00	2,13	1,83	1,71
Qatar	6.462,00	10,00	40.000.000,00	3.100,00	2,00	2,00	1,14
Malaysia	9.765,00	1.457,00	71.005.987,00	1.920.000,00	2,25	2,17	1,14
Sweden	1.063,00	1.145,00	274.491.245,00	2.753.208,00	2,50	4,17	5,36
Czech Republic	1.052,00	6.245,00	38.978.897,00	1.430.991,00	1,75	2,17	1,21
Poland	1.049,00	7.984,00	125.560.683,00	8.915.894,00	2,00	2,00	1,50
Croatia	1.728,00	207,00	5.931.323,00	530.261,00	1,88	2,17	1,21
Latvia	1.842.70	800.00	15.141.924.00	667.000.00	2.25	2.00	1.07

Country	Intellectual property *	Managerial competencies *	Perception of psychic distance
Netherlands	1.25	4.25	5.88
France	1,00	1,50	2,38
Belgium	1,00	1,25	4,63
Luxembourg	1,00	1,50	3,63
Monaco	1,00	1,50	2,38
Switzerland	1,25	1,25	2,75
UK	1,00	2,00	3,63
Morocco	1,25	1,25	1,38
Algeria	2,25	1,25	1,38
Tunisia	2,00	1,25	1,63
Egypt	2,25	1,25	1,00
Australia	1,00	1,25	2,75
Finland	1,00	4,00	4,63
Germany	1,25	1,25	4,63
Romania	2,25	1,25	1,88
Singapore	1,50	1,25	2,25
New Zealand	1,00	2,75	3,63
United Arab Emirates	1,75	1,25	1,25
USA	1,25	1,25	2,63
Norway	1,00	2,00	5,50
Iceland	0,75	3,25	5,00
Ireland	0,75	1,50	4,13
Canada	0,75	1,25	2,75
Austria	0,75	1,25	2,38
Qatar	1,75	1,25	1,00
Malaysia	1,75	1,25	1,13
Sweden	0,75	5,75	5,13
Czech Republic	1,25	1,25	2,00
Poland	2,00	1,25	1,75
Croatia	1,75	1,50	1,75
Latvia	1.50	1.25	1.75

Appendix 10: Data sources External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

Parameters ~	Source of Data 👻	Link	Date 🗠
% Urbanization	Worldometers	http://www.worldometers.mfo/world-population/	2017
Population	Worldometers	http://www.worldometers.info/world-population/	2017
GNP Growth	IMF	http://www.imf.org/external/datamapper/NGDP_RPCH@WEO/OEMDC/ADVEC/WEOWORLD/SVK/ESH/DJI	2017
	Monacostatistics	http://www.monacostatistics.mc/Economy-and-Finance/GDP	2015
Projected GNP Growth	European commission	https://ec.europa.eu/info/business-economy-euro/economic-performance-and-forecasts/economic-performance-country/austria/economic-forecast-austria_en	2018
	Swiss institute	http://institute.swissre.com/research/overview/economic_outlook/us_economic_outlook.html	2018
	Statista	https://www.statista.com/statistics/263613/gross-domestic-product-gdp-growth-rate-in-the-united-kingdom/	2018
	PWC	https://www.pwc.co.uk/services/economics-policy/insights/uk-economic-outlook.html	2018
	Trading economics	https://tradingeconomics.com/australia/gdp-growth	2018
	OECD	https://data.oecd.org/gdp/real-gdp-forecast.htm	2018
GDP per capita	OECD	https://data.oecd.org/belgium.htm	2017
• •	CIA factbook	https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world-factbook/rankorder/2004rank.html	2017
HDI	HDI index	http://hdr.undp.org/en/composite/HDI	2015
Trade in services to GDP	World bank	https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/RG.GSR.NESV.GD.ZS	2016
	Comtrade	https://comtrade.up.ord/	2016
	World bank	https://wite.worldhave.org/CountryProfile/en/country/https://andwar/ITST/endwar/ITST/indicator/PG-GSR-MESU-GD-7S	2016
Part of Danish imports	OEC	Indeps/wite/workdownko/grodowny/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/file/eu/the/fi	2016
rare of Danish Imports	World hank	n ups // auto-initia.init.cou/cit/prome/country/init/ http:///www.initia.init.cou/cit/prome/country/init/forest/con/2015/End/Con/2015/End/Court/Doctors/DV_COUNTDY/Initiation/ADDT_DDTND_CLD	2016
	December Terds Earth	https://wits.wondoank.org/countyFrome/mrcuondy/Rot/Statterar/2015/FideProv/Import/Partier/St-CookEntyFnotation/witeFrenews	2010
I mul of commutation	Resource Trade Farm	https://resourcernae.earm/autaryear=zutoexporter=zuteximporter=44zeunits=weight	2016
Level of competition	LIOTARY technology guides	nttps://www.ntytecnnology.org/products/regions.pl	2016
Entry barriers	STRI	http://www.compareyourcountry.org/service-trade-restrictions	2016
Political freedom	Freedom House	https://freedomhouse.org/report/freedom-world/freedom-world-2018	2017
Ease of doing business	Doing Business	http://www.doingbusiness.org/rankings	2017
Economic freedom	Heritage foudnation	https://www.heritage.org/index/	2018
Level of corruption	Transparency International	https://www.transparency.org/news/feature/corruption_perceptions_index_2017#table	2017
Secure servers	World bank	https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/IT.NET.SECR.P6	2016
Internet Index	World wilde web	http://thewebindex.org/data/?indicator=INDEX&country=ALL	2014
Communication infrastructure	ICT Devlopment index	https://www.itu.int/net4/ITU-D/idi/2017/	2017
	World wilde web	http://thewebindex.org/data/?indicator=COMMUNICATIONS_INFRASTRUCTURE&country=IRL	2014
Literacy level	CIA factbook	https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world-factbook/fields/2103.html	2015
	-	https://www.indexmundi.com/austria/literacy.html	2015
Education level	OECD	https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_countries_by_tertiary_education_attainment	2014
Education to GDP	European commission	http://appso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/	-
Education to expenditures	OECD	https://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/docserver/eag-2017-en.pdf?expires=1524562704&id=id&accname=guest&checksum=DA1DFB470444F3AFF7D9F1FE1EABFCB7	2016
-	Trading economics	https://tradingeconomics.com/monaco/government-expenditure-on-education-total-percent-of-gdp-wb-data.html	2017
		https://knoema.com/atlas/Algeria/topics/Education/Expenditures-on-Education/Public-expenditure-on-education	-
	CIA factbook	https://www.cia.gov/librarv/publications/the-world-factbook/rankorder/2206rank.html	2008-2012
Inflation level	CIA factbook	https://www.cia.eo//library/publications/the-world-factbook/fields/2002.html	2017
	Inflation euro	http://www.inflation-rates/cn-inflation-2017.aspx	2017
Exchange rate	CIA factbook	http://www.cia.env/likratv/nublications/the.world-farthox/fields/2026.html	2017
in a change that	OFCD	http://www.exed.org/conjection/archange-rates interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/interedoen/inte	2017
FDI not inflows	OECD	http://duracecorg.com/com/com/com/com/com/com/com/com/com/	2017
A DA Det HILIOWS	UNCTAD	Imperize MMM on executing Link and executing instruments (UTSUBIL) bits // United and an // Decore (ULSE // United // 2019 and // Country Exet Shoet areas	2017
	OFCD	nup_//unctad.org/en/rages/unke/words/zolimes/metport/county-rad-sneets.aspx	2010
Cultural differences	Unfrtada	Indy / www.weedco.org.com/any/investment/point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Investment/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/Point/P	2017
Cultural differences	For the former	https://www.noistede=insignts.com/product/compare-countries/	2017
Language	ragash proticiency	nutps://www.et.novepi	2017
	HBR	https://hbr.org/2016/11/research-companies-and-industries-lack-english-skills	2016
lime zone	-	https://www.timeanddate.com/worldclock/difference.html?p1=69&sort=1	-
Geographic distance	Google Map		-
Number of libraries	IFLA	http://ibrarymap.itia.org/map/Metric/Number-of-libraries/LibraryType/National-Libraries,Academic-Libraries,Public-Libraries,Community-Libraries,School-Libraries,Other-Libraries,	2009-2016
	Public libraries 2020	http://www.publiclibraries2020.eu/	2017
	OCLC	https://www.oclc.org/en/global-library-statistics.html	-
Spending on public libraries	OLCL	https://www.ocfc.org/en/global-library-statistics.html	2009-2016
Registred users	OLCL	https://www.ocfc.org/en/global-library-statistics.html	2009-2016
Product perpeetion in market	Google form	-	-
Perception of psychic distance	Google form	-	-
Perpetion of secondary data a	Google form	-	-
Degree of experiential knowled	Google form	•	-
Importance of local network	Google form	-	-
Perception of Product superior	Google form	-	-
Intellectual property	Google form		-
Managerial competencies	Google form	-	

Appendix 11: Definition of the level of competition External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

	Follett	Infor Library and information Solutions	Innovative Interfaces	Lucidea	OCLC	SirsiDvnix	TLC	ProOuest (Exlibris)	EBSCO Information Service
Netherlands	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No
France	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Belgium	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No
Luxembourg	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
Monaco	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Switzerland	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
UK	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Morocco	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No	No
Algeria	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Tunisia	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No	No
Egypt	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No	No
Australia	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Finland	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Germany	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No
Romania	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Singapore	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
New Zealand	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
United Arab Emirates	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No	No
USA	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Norway	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Iceland	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Ireland	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
Canada	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Austria	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No
Qatar	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
Malaysia	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Sweden	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
Czech Republic	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Poland	No	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
Croatia	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Latvia	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No

	Axiell	Water Solutions	TIND Technologies	Biblionix	Auto-Graphics	InfoVision	Baratz	Capita	Mandarin Library Automation	COMPanion	Book Systems	Civica	Koha	OPALS(Mediaflex)	Evergreen (Equinox)
Netherlands	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
France	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Belgium	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No
Luxembourg	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Monaco	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Switzerland	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
UK	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Morocco	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Algeria	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Tunisia	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Egypt	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Australia	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
Finland	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Germany	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No
Romania	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Singapore	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No
New Zealand	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
United Arab Emirates	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
USA	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Norway	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Iceland	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Ireland	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No
Canada	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Austria	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Qatar	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Malaysia	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Sweden	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Czech Republic	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Poland	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Croatia	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Latvia	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No

	Number of competitors
Netherlands	8
France	8
Belgium	6
Luxembourg	3
Monaco	0
Switzerland	7
UK	15
Morocco	2
Algeria	1
Tunisia	3
Egypt	4
Australia	11
Finland	4
Germany	8
Romania	1
Singapore	5
New Zealand	8
United Arab Emirates	7
USA	21
Norway	2
Iceland	1
Ireland	6
Canada	16
Austria	7
Qatar	4
Malavsia	6
Sweden	6
Czech Republic	3
Poland	4
Croatia	2
Latvia	1

Appendix 12: Cultural differences - Morosini Formula using Hofstede dimensions External link : <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

Morosini (1998) Formula:
$$CD_i = \sqrt{\sum_{i=1}^{6} (I_{ij} - I_{il})^2}$$

Country	Cultural differences	Power distance	Individualism	Masculinity	uncertainty avoidance	Long term orientation	Indulgence
Denmark	-	18	74	16	23	35	70
Netherlands	49	38	80	14	53	67	68
France	92	68	71	43	86	63	48
Belgium	105	65	75	54	94	82	57
Luxembourg	71	40	60	50	70	64	56
Monaco	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Switzerland	77	34	68	70	58	74	66
UK	58	35	89	66	35	51	69
Morocco	97	70	46	53	68	14	25
Algeria	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Tunisia	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Egypt	120	70	25	45	80	7	4
Australia	60	36	90	61	51	21	71
Finland	44	33	63	26	59	38	57
Germany	88	35	67	66	65	83	40
Romania	123	90	30	42	90	52	20
Singapore	96	74	20	48	8	72	46
New Zealand	50	22	79	58	49	33	75
United Arab Emirates	135	90	25	50	80	0	0
USA	59	40	91	62	46	26	68
Norway	35	31	69	8	50	35	55
Iceland	34	30	60	10	50	28	67
Ireland	56	28	70	68	35	24	65
Canada	49	39	80	52	48	36	68
Austria	85	11	55	79	70	60	63
Qatar	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Malaysia	103	100	26	50	36	41	57
Sweden	27	31	71	5	29	53	78
Czech Republic	95	57	58	57	74	70	29
Poland	108	68	60	64	93	38	29
Croatia	102	73	33	40	80	58	33
Latvia	82	44	70	9	63	69	13

Calculation Example - Netherland:

 $CD_N = \sqrt{(38-18)2\ +\ (80-74)2\ +\ (14-16)2\ +\ (53-23)2\ +\ (67-35)2\ +\ (68-70)2}$

Appendix 13: Definition of the Number of public libraries External link : <u>https://ldrv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

	IFLA	Date	Public libraries 2020	Date	OCLC	Date	Articles\reports	Date	Data Triangulation	Final Numbers
Netherlands	1135	2015	781	2017	177	2010	154		958	781
France	16100	2014	16100	2017	3410	2008	7500		16100	16100
Belgium	1105	2015	1150	2017	641	2010			1127,5	1150
Luxembourg	9	2015	22	2017	21	2012			15,5	22
Monaco	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-
Switzerland	208	2015	-	-	2000	2010			208	2000
UK	-	-	4089	2017	208	2010			4089	4089
Morocco	-	-	-	2017	600	2010			600	600
Algeria	-	-	-	2017	83	2010			83	83
Tunisia	-	-	-	2017	371	2010	420	2017	371	371
Egypt	912	2017	-	2017	50	2010			912	912
Australia	1469	2015	-	2017	1429	2012			1469	1469
Finland	880	2016	740	2017	308	2011			810	740
Germany	5021	2015	9011	2017	8195	2011			7016	9011
Romania	2406	2015	2406	2017	2943	2010			2406	2406
Singapore	26	2016	-	2017	23	2010			26	26
New Zealand	314	2015	-	2017	296	2010			314	314
United Arab Emirates			-	2017	20	2010			20	20
USA	17218	2014	-	2017	9042	2013			17218	17218
Norway	740	2015	-	2017	744	2011			740	740
Iceland	-	-	-	2017	78	2011			78	78
Ireland	357	2016	332	2017	348	2011			344,5	332
Canada	3415	2012	-	2017	3311	2015			3415	3415
Austria	1372	2017	-	2017	1473	2011			1372	1372
Qatar	10	2017	-	2017	7	2010			10	10
Malaysia	1457	2015	-	2017	1392	2010			1457	1457
Sweden	1132	2016	1145	2017	2090	2010			1138,5	1145
Czech Republic	6245	2016	-	2017	5407	2010			6245	6245
Poland	8050	2015	7984	2017	8290	2011			8017	7984
Croatia	198	2016	207	2017	319	2011			202,5	207
Latvia	800	2016	800	2017	815	2012			800	800

NB: Some averages were not based on three sources even though their data was available, in order to avoid the impact of the substantial date gap of one of the sources.

Appendix 14: Subjective variables – Result compounding External link: <u>https://1drv.ms/x/s!ArgZcFYMxqsqyxojKWrq3qfzpf_1</u>

	Avg Product Alignment	Avg Psychic distance	Avg Market knowledge	Avg Intelectual property	Avg Managerial competencies	Avg Product superirity
Netherlands	4,00	5,88	5,79	1,25	4,25	6,17
France	1,88	2,38	2,07	1,00	1,50	1,83
Belgium	1,38	4,63	3,29	1,00	1,25	3,67
Luxembourg	1,88	3,63	2,29	1,00	1,50	2,00
Monaco	2,13	2,38	1,21	1,00	1,50	1,67
Switzerland	2,00	2,75	1,50	1,25	1,25	2,00
UK	1,88	3,63	3,50	1,00	2,00	2,00
Morocco	2,13	1,38	1,07	1,25	1,25	2,00
Algeria	2,00	1,38	1,43	2,25	1,25	2,00
Tunisia	2,00	1,63	1,14	2,00	1,25	1,83
Egypt	2,13	1,00	1,07	2,25	1,25	1,83
Australia	1,88	2,75	4,29	1,00	1,25	2,83
Finland	2,63	4,63	4,64	1,00	4,00	4,17
Germany	2,50	4,63	2,93	1,25	1,25	2,50
Romania	2,00	1,88	2,14	2,25	1,25	2,17
Singapore	2,13	2,25	1,50	1,50	1,25	1,67
New Zealand	2,88	3,63	4,43	1,00	2,75	4,50
United Arab Emirates	2,00	1,25	1,86	1,75	1,25	2,17
USA	1,75	2,63	3,14	1,25	1,25	2,33
Norway	2,75	5,50	4,57	1,00	2,00	4,50
Iceland	2,88	5,00	4,64	0,75	3,25	5,33
Ireland	2,13	4,13	2,00	0,75	1,50	2,33
Canada	1,75	2,75	1,79	0,75	1,25	2,17
Austria	2,13	2,38	1,71	0,75	1,25	1,83
Qatar	2,00	1,00	1,14	1,75	1,25	2,00
Malaysia	2,25	1,13	1,14	1,75	1,25	2,17
Sweden	2,50	5,13	5,36	0,75	5,75	4,17
Czech Republic	1,75	2,00	1,21	1,25	1,25	2,17
Poland	2,00	1,75	1,50	2,00	1,25	2,00
Croatia	1,88	1,75	1,21	1,75	1,50	2,17
Latvia	2,25	1,75	1,07	1,50	1,25	2,00



